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Foreword

This volume, the eighth and final in the series to reconstruct the Debates of the House of
Commons, represents an unofficial record of debate drawn from newspaper reports of the day for
the First Session of the Third Parliament, dating from 26 March until 26 May, 1874.

Canada’s Third Parliament opened on March 26 with a new government in power: Alexander
Mackenzie led the Liberal Party in a majority government, having defeated the sitting
Conservative Prime Minister Sir John A. Macdonald in the general election of January 22, 1874.
The Liberal government would last for only this Parliament, however, with Macdonald returning
to power after the next general election in 1878, and the Conservatives forming majority
governments through the subsequent 18 years.

Debates in 1874 still heard the ghosts of the previous parliament’s disputes, with the Pacific
Railway issue resulting in a compromised plan for development of rail in Western Canada, a plan
which left British Columbia disappointed and its Members furious. The opening session of the
Third Parliament also saw the culmination of the Riel Affair: Louis Riel had won the seat
representing Provencher, Manitoba in an 1873 by-election. He was re-elected in the same riding
in the general election, and though Riel did sign the roll of members in late March, he never sat
in the Commons. The report for the 30th of March in this volume gives an indication of the level
of interest and anticipation around Riel’s attendance palpable in Parliament at the time.

The majority of government spending was focused on infrastructure development as would be
expected for a new and expanding country and prohibition was a constant preoccupation of the
chamber, with petitions for prohibition being tabled regularly.

In the context of the reconstituted debates project, it is perhaps most significant that official
reporting of debates was finally determined in this session: both the previous and the sitting
Prime Minister had endorsed the idea of official reporting, and the matter was referred to a select
committee who presented their report on the matter on the 8th of May, 1874. Thus, official
reporting began in 1875, and with this final volume, the reconstituted debates project now closes.
We are indebted to Parliamentary Librarian, Sonia L’Heureux, and her predecessors who,
together with their staff, have filled this significant gap in the record of our Parliament’s earliest
years, and who continue to work to render our documentary heritage more broadly accessible to
the world’s researchers, students, and readers of Canada’s proud history.

The Hon. Andrew Scheer, M.P.
Speaker of the House of Commons
Ottawa, 2013



Preface

From the early years of Confederation to 1875, when the House of Commons began to report its
debates officially, speeches delivered in the House were reported in major newspapers of the
day, notably the Ottawa Times and the Toronto Globe. Parliamentary library staft clipped the
reports and preserved them in scrapbooks; these became known as the “Scrapbook Debates”,
which have provided most of the source material in producing the present volume.

This volume represents the First Session of the Third Parliament and brings to light a period of
parliamentary history presenting numerous firsts; notably, the governing party changed for the
first time in the existence of our young nation, and a law was passed to create the first Military
College in Canada. In terms of lasts, this session represents the last without an official record of
debates.

As Parliamentary Librarian, I take great pride in having led this final stretch of the reconstituted
debates project, which has served to fill the gap in Canada’s early parliamentary record.
Reconstruction of the parliamentary record from 1867 to 1874 was initiated in the 1960s under
Eric Spicer, then Parliamentary Librarian. In his Preface to the first volume, he described the
reconstituted debates as “very valuable in preserving a continuous record of the political history
of the Dominion”. I echo that sentiment as we mark the publication of this final volume in the
project.

I am grateful to the Honourable Andrew Scheer, Speaker of the House of Commons, for his
support and recognition of the value of this work. Thanks are due to Dr. David Farr, one of three
eminent Canadian historians who over the years have painstakingly reconstructed this material
from primary sources. Thanks also go to Lynn Brodie, Director General, Information and
Document Resource Service, to our dedicated Library staft, and to our parliamentary partners for
their support and invaluable contribution to the project.

Sonia L’Heureux
Parliamentary Librarian
Ottawa, 2013



Introduction

This edition of the Debates of the House of Commons for the First Session of Canada’s Third
Parliament, held in the year 1874, is the eighth and final volume published by the Library of
Parliament to reconstitute the earliest debates of the House from sources of the time. The
Canadian Senate had already begun keeping a record of its debates in 1871, and in the session
of 1874 a reform-minded House of Commons would decide to do likewise. Official reporting
of the Commons Debates in the Canadian Hansard would begin in 1875, with the Second
Session of the Third Parliament.

Our knowledge of the Senate and House debates prior to the establishment of the official
records of the two chambers is derived from the private verbatim reports of the newspapers of
the day, for whose readers the deliberations of Parliament were a subject of high interest.
Such parliamentary reporting in the press was often quite extensive. For example, the Toronto
Globe, the newspaper which, during the years immediately after Confederation, devoted the
most space to reporting the Senate and the House of Commons, often assigned half or more of
several of its large nine-column pages to the proceedings in Parliament. With a page size of
20 x 30 inches, these long columns of dense Victorian type gave a substantial account of what
was done and said.

The newspaper accounts of the debates were collected by the staff of the Library of
Parliament and pasted into large ledgers, from which they have gained the name “Scrapbook
Debates”. Until the reconstitution project issued its first volume in 1967, the “Scrapbook
Debates” in the Library were our most convenient source for a record of the early debates in
Parliament.' The newspaper reporting of the debates was frankly partisan since a political
point of view was a hall-mark of the Canadian press in the mid-Victorian period. Partisanship
was most usually shown by the shortening of the opposing party’s contribution to a debate
and a fuller reporting of your own party’s position. Occasionally distortions and half-truths
were resorted to in the political wars of the newspapers but lapses of this sort are less
common.

For the 1874 session the fullest account of the proceedings of the House and Senate is to be
found in the Toronto Globe. This is hardly surprising. The Globe had been established in
1844 by the man who founded and dominated the Reform/Liberal political faction in Ontario,
George Brown. In 1874 the Globe was celebrating the accession to office of the first national
Reform/Liberal government, led by Brown’s colleague Alexander Mackenzie, Brown, no
longer in the thick of political conflict since an electoral defeat in 1867, remained a close
adviser to Mackenzie. He was present in Ottawa during much of the 1874 parliamentary
session, having been appointed to the Senate in December 1873. Thus the Globe spared no
effort to ensure that the speeches of the virtuous Grits in the House and Senate were fully and
faithfully reported. As the newspaper with the largest circulation in Canada, the Globe was a

1 There have been difficulties for the editor and transcribers in preparing this edition of the 1874 Commons
Debates. The ledgers containing the Globe’s reports for that year have been unaccountably lost from the
Parliamentary Library. Thus it has been necessary to go back to original and microfilm versions of the
newspaper for the text of its coverage of the debates. In many instances this material has been less legible
than photocopies taken directly from the Library’s clippings from the newspaper. There is, therefore, a
greater possibility of textual error for the reconstitution of the 1874 debates than for the reconstitution of
the debates of earlier years.



formidable voice on the Canadian political scene. It is the principal source for this edition of
the reconstituted Commons debates.

The other newspaper which nicely complemented the Globe during these years, both in its
extensive reporting of parliamentary debates and in its political point of view, was the Ottawa
Times. The Times was a young upstart compared to the (Globe, having come to Ottawa as
recently as 1865, the child of a Quebec City newspaper. Its editors, George and James
Cotton, began their enterprise with the hope of winning the contract to publish an official
Hansard. Thus during the first administration of Sir John A. Macdonald (1867-1873) they
were particularly solicitous of the views of the government. Their reporting was often fuller
respecting Conservative spokesmen than it was for the views of the opposition. In 1870 and
1871 James Cotton published a shortened version of the reports of the debates for the benefit
of members of the Commons. This gesture did not gain the proprietor of the 7imes the prize
he sought because the Macdonald government took no action to institute an official Hansard.
That initiative was left to the new Liberal administration of Alexander Mackenzie when it
came into office. The 7imes attempted to win the favour of the new government but its
conversion was regarded with suspicion by the Liberals and the contract, when it was
awarded, went to another interest. The 7imes faltered and surrendered its task, ceasing
publication in 1877.

Other Canadian newspapers took only a passing interest in the debates in the federal
Parliament. A partial exception would be the Toronto Mail, specifically founded by
Macdonald and his associates (1872) to provide a Conservative voice in Toronto. Reports
from the Mail occasionally found their way into the “Scrapbook Debates” and have been
utilized in this compilation. Other English-language newspapers, in Montreal, Halifax and
Saint John, paid only a fleeting attention to the debates in Ottawa. French-language
newspapers showed even less interest, their legislative reporting being directed to the
proceedings of the assembly in Quebec City. There were a number of reasons for this bias in
favour of the provincial scene, one of the major ones being the virtually unilingual character
of the debates in Ottawa. French-language contributions to the debates were rare in the
1870°s and when they were made they were often cursorily reported by the English-speaking
correspondents in attendance. Occasionally a speech by a local member was reported in a
Quebec newspaper but these instances were not frequent.

The rules for preparing the reconstituted version of the early Commons debates from the
contemporary newspaper reports are straightforward. They were largely formulated by
Professor P. B. Waite, who served as founding editor of the reconstituted debates series,
producing the first three volumes (for the sessions of 1867-1868, 1869 and 1870). Professor
Waite’s editorial guidelines are laid down in his introduction to the First Session of the First
Parliament, published in English in 1967, and the present editor’s adaptation of Dr. Waite’s
editorial rules is contained in his own introduction to the debates of the Fifth Session of the
First Parliament (session of 1872).

e The most important rule is simply that in the preparation of the reconstituted text,
editorial interventions are kept to a minimum. The attempt is to provide a clear and
balanced account, as far as this is possible, of what was said in the chamber of the
House of Commons.

e The source for particular speeches is not identified; indeed several sources may be
drawn upon to produce the most credible account.



e The longer version of a speech is generally preferred since it has been discovered that
journalists rarely put words in the mouths of members they were reporting. More
often they abridged the remarks of speakers with whose opinions they had little
sympathy. Sometimes words have been inserted or removed in order to give a
clearer understanding of what might have been said.

e Spellings have been corrected, sometimes in members’ names, frequently in
geographical place names. To reporters from Ontario, the distant spaces of the
Atlantic Provinces, Manitoba and especially British Columbia, were a fabula rasa.

The reader should bear in mind, however, that it will never be possible to construct a wholly
accurate rendering of the early debates of Parliament. The text here presented is as clear and
objective as human intervention, more than 120 years later, can provide.

Now that the reconstitution of the early Commons debates has reached its final lap, it is
appropriate to say a word about the genesis of the project and those who guided it. Norman
Ward of the University of Saskatchewan, a noted student of Canada’s Parliament, was the
first to conceive the project, making his interest known to the Hon. Roland Michener, Speaker
of the House, 1957-1962, who strongly endorsed the proposal. Erik J. Spicer, Parliamentary
Librarian, saw the plan as a worthy Centennial project for Parliament. The Speakers of the
Day, the Hon. Sydney J. Smith of the Senate and the Hon. Lucien Lamoureux of the
Commons, gave the project their blessing.*

The task of preparing the reconstituted debates has been carried out by three editors. Over a
ten-year span from 1967 to 1976, P. B. Waite of Dalhousie University published reconstituted
debates of both the Senate and the House of Commons for the first three sessions of the First
Parliament, 1867-1868, 1869 and 1870. Norman Ward of the University of Saskatchewan
then edited the 1871 session of the Commons Debates, with an important historical
introduction later provided by Duncan McDowall. David Farr of Carleton University
subsequently edited the Commons Debates for the final session of the First Parliament in
1872, for the two tumultuous sessions of the Second Parliament in 1873, and for the First
Session of the Third Parliament in 1874. In every case the original English text had been
translated into French by Government of Canada Translation Services. The bilingual texts
were then transcribed by the Directorate of Parliamentary Publications of the House of
Commons into the format of the contemporary Hansard.

The Commons Debates for the five sessions from 1871 to 1874 were all brought to
publication between 2009 and 2014, as the fruits of a twenty-year project co-ordinated by
several capable members of the staff of the Library of Parliament. Students of the history of
Canada’s Parliament will be forever in their debt.

The reconstitution of the early Debates of the House of Commons, in English and French, is
now complete. The remaining task, and it is not a slight one, is to prepare a French language
text of the early debates of the Senate. When that task is completed Canada will possess a
bilingual text of all the proceedings of its federal Parliament from its origins in 1867 to the
present day. As a mine of material on the political life and history of Canada during the first

2 More information on the original project to reconstitute the early debates of the Parliament of Canada is
found in David Farr, “Reconstituting the Early Debates of the Parliament of Canada”, Canadian
Parliamentary Review, 15 (Spring 1992), pp. 26-32.



years of Confederation, the reconstituted debates will represent a distinctive and unsurpassed
historical resource.

Third Parliament, First Session
from 26 March 1874 to 26 May 1874
The setting

The Second Parliament of Canada, just ended, had been short but eventful. It had been elected
in August 1872, began its first session on 5 March 1873, was prorogued amid scandal on 13
August 1873, then was reconvened on 23 October for a second session which proved fatal to
the government. A new government met the House on 7 November but then prorogued the
second session to allow the return of its ministers and other candidates in by-elections.
Despite victories in all of these no third session was to be; the Second Parliament had been
dissolved on 2 January 1874.

The Second Parliament had been dominated by discussion of the “Pacific scandal”, the
charges of serious financial impropriety on the part of the governing Conservative party
during the general election of 1872. Facing an adverse vote in the Commons over the issue,
Sir John A. Macdonald and his colleagues resigned office on 5 November. They were
immediately succeeded as a government by the opposition Reform or Liberal party, the only
time when a majority government in Canada has resigned through the defection of its
supporters and given way to another without an intervening general election. The new
government was headed by the prominent Ontario Reform leader, Alexander Mackenzie of
Sarnia. It was only after considering for almost two months the relative merits of carrying on
in a third session or going to the people for a clear mandate that the Mackenzie government
asked the Governor-General, Lord Dufferin, to dissolve the Second Parliament and issue writs
for Canada’s second general election in seventeen months.

Although not required by law, the third general election was, as far as possible, held
simultaneously across the country. Most electoral districts voted in late January or early
February, thus providing no electoral advantage for the governing party in the spacing of the
contests. A single polling day for general elections was indeed to form part of the electoral
law of 1874, a centrepiece in the returned Mackenzie government’s legislation. The Liberals,
continuing the stance they had taken in opposition, campaigned not only for major reform in
Canada’s electoral law, but for the creation of a Supreme Court and for a scale-down in the
construction of the trans-continental railway promised to British Columbia when it entered
Confederation in 1871. Their platform won overwhelming public support.

The Third Parliament, which assembled on 26 March 1874, was the same size as the Second
Session of the Second Parliament, when six members from newly-admitted Prince Edward
Island had taken their seats for the first time. It consisted of 206 members, distributed among
the seven provinces in the following manner:

Quebec 65  (the benchmark for assigning provincial representation)
Ontario 88

Nova Scotia 21

New Brunswick 16

Manitoba 4

British Columbia 6

Prince Edward Island 6



Of the 206 members elected in the winter federal election of 1874, no fewer than 70 came to
the House of Commons for the first time. The substantial turnover in membership of the
House reflected the disastrous losses the Liberal-Conservative party (Conservatives) had
suffered in the recent election. From a core Commons support of perhaps 104 members after
their victorious 1872 contest, Macdonald’s party was reduced to 67 supporters, a loss of about
one-third of its strength. The Liberals, on the other hand, won 138 seats in 1874 compared to
the much smaller core support they had won in opposition in 1872, in a Parliament where the
Maritime Liberals in fact mostly intended to vote with the Conservatives. In 1873 even with
the support of the Maritimers the Liberal opposition, until the final defections that caused the
government’s collapse, could muster no more than perhaps 96 votes in the House; after the
election of 1874, the revitalized and unified Liberal government, with the support of an
independent from Manitoba, held a majority of some 70 seats over the opposition
Conservatives. Forty-eight of the seventy members making their first appearance in the Third
Parliament belonged to the Liberal ranks.

Seven years after Confederation and in an election fought on the issue of corruption in
government, party affiliations had become more meaningful than in previous elections.’
There was still uncertainty regarding the position of individual members from the Maritime
Provinces but party divisions in Quebec and Ontario were clear cut. In Nova Scotia and New
Brunswick the Conservatives held on to only eight seats out of the 37 at stake in the two
provinces. All six members returned from Prince Edward Island were Liberals. In Quebec
the Liberals made smaller gains but still won 35 seats as opposed to the Conservatives’ 30. It
is significant that 29 seats in Quebec were decided by acclamation, a measure of the
continuing traditional basis of voting in that province. In Ontario the Liberals won a
resounding victory, taking 66 of the province’s 88 seats, 18 more than they had won
seventeen months earlier. Thirteen of the Ontario Liberal candidates came into oftice through
acclamation. The Conservatives took the 22 remaining seats. Manitoba sent two Liberals to
Ottawa, together with a Conservative and the M¢étis leader, Louis Riel. Only British
Columbia, insistent on the completion of the Pacific railway on the strict terms of union, gave
its full support to the Conservatives.

No fewer than thirty by-elections, or “special elections” as they were called, were held in the
first year of the Third Parliament.” The most common cause was the need to elect a new
member after the results of a previous election had been successfully challenged. The
Controverted Elections Act of 1873 (36 Vict., cap. 28) placed the responsibility of examining
disputed elections on the courts rather than on committees of the House of Commons. But the
new procedure took months to follow through, with the result that members returned in the
third general election but challenged in the courts occupied and held on to their seats
throughout the sitting of 1874. Eighteen members of the Commons, judged to have won their
seats through irregular elections, went through a second election in the final months of the
year, to be safely returned to their seats. (Sir John A. Macdonald himself endured this
experience in Kingston.) In four other cases a new member was returned when earlier
elections had been declared void, but only after the session of 1874 had ended. And a

® Party standings in the Third Parliament are drawn from The Canadian Directory of Parliament, 1867-1967,

edited by J.K. Johnson, Ottawa, Public Archives of Canada, 1968, and from J. Murray Beck, Pendulum of
Power, Scarborough, Ontario, Prentice-Hall, 1968, pp. 22-29.

4 The “special elections” held in 1874 are meticulously set forth in N. Ormer Coté, (ed.), Political
Appointments, Parliaments and the Judicial Bench in the Dominion of Canada, 1867-1895, Ottawa, Thoburn
and Co., 1896, pp. 216-227.



member who died after the close of the session, William Harvey of Elgin East, was replaced
in a special election held on 11 August 1874.

Five of the special elections held during the year were to replace members of the House of
Commons who had resigned, but only two affected membership in the First Session of the
Third Parliament. In Durham West, Ontario, a long-time colleague of Mackenzie and Edward
Blake, Edmund Burke Wood, who had won re-election in January, resigned his seat on 11
March when he was appointed Chief Justice of Manitoba. Wood, therefore, did not sit in the
opening session of the Third Parliament. On 10 April Harvey William Burk, another Liberal,
was elected to succeed him.  Another veteran Liberal who had sat in Parliament since
Confederation, Ebenezer Vining Bodwell of Oxford South, resigned his place on 23 April to
become superintendent of the Welland Canal. He was succeeded by Col. James A. Skinner,
who assumed Bodwell’s seat on 26 May, the final day of the First Session of the Third
Parliament. Three other resignations occurred after the First Session. Two Liberal ministers,
A.-A. Dorion and William Ross, resigned following the sitting to take up positions of
emolument under the Crown, while a Nova Scotia member, E.R. Oakes of Digby, left the
House in September to take up an appointment to the Legislative Council of Nova Scotia.

In addition, a by-election was required when Félix Geoffrion of Verchéres was brought into
the cabinet in July as minister of Inland Revenue. And then there was the case of the Métis
rebel Louis Riel, twice elected for Provencher in Manitoba in 1874, actually sworn in once as
a member, but forbidden to take his seat by order of the House.

The players

During the 1874 session the Liberal cabinet, headed by Alexander Mackenzie as prime
minister, was composed of thirteen individuals, two of whom sat in the Senate. The cabinet
was a disparate collection of Liberal/Reformers, few of whom had enjoyed previous
experience in government.

Mackenzie himself, 52 years old in 1874, had served as the federal leader for Ontario of the
Liberal/Reform group since 1867. In 1873 he had become the national leader of the Liberals,
a party whose Ontario, Quebec and Maritime wings were slow to coalesce into a coherent
political faction. Mackenzie was thus the first official Leader of the Opposition in the
Canadian Parliament. When the Macdonald government fell on 5 November 1873 Mackenzie
had been diffident about assuming the position of leader of the government, believing that his
brilliant but unstable Ontario colleague, Edward Blake, possessed greater authority for the
task. But Blake declined to assume the leadership and Mackenzie was obliged to head the
new administration. Intent on eliminating waste in railway and canal contracts, Mackenzie
himself also assumed the demanding portfolio of public works in addition to the post of prime
minister.

Edward Blake even hesitated to enter the new cabinet in any definite ministerial capacity.
Eventually he came in as a minister without portfolio but withdrew in February 1874, shortly
before the new session began. Other prominent Liberals too were reluctant to serve in cabinet.
Luther H. Holton, for example, a prominent and experienced Quebec Liberal, refused, for
personal reasons, to become minister of finance.

The leader of the Nova Scotia Liberals, Col. Alfred G. Jones of Halifax, also declined to enter
the ministry. Albert James Smith from Westmorland, a former premier of New Brunswick,



did come onside as minister of marine and fisheries, but otherwise Mackenzie was obliged to
fall back on lesser Liberals from Nova Scotia, Prince Edward Island and New Brunswick to
provide Maritime representation in his administration.

The strength of the cabinet, however, lay in Quebec and Ontario, notably in the persons of
Québec Rouge leader Antoine-Aimé Dorion of Napierville, twice premier of the old Province
of the United Canadas, and Richard Cartwright of Kingston, a former supporter of
Macdonald’s. Dorion was appointed minister of justice and Cartwright was given the finance
portfolio. Mackenzie, Cartwright and Dorion were the chief spokesmen for the government in
the new Parliament. Dorion remained at Mackenzie’s side during the session of 1874 but
reluctantly resigned, to become chief justice of Quebec and shore up a weak provincial bench,
on 31 May 1874.

If the Liberal cabinet was not outstanding, the Conservative opposition benches were not
filled with talent either. Macdonald brooded, unable to give up his post as leader because of
the determination of his followers that he stay on and rehabilitate the party. His interventions
in debate in 1874 were scattered and usually of brief duration. His trusted Quebec lieutenant,
Sir George-Etienne Cartier, had been dead for almost a year and Cartier’s successor, Hector-
Louis Langevin, had been defeated in the recent general election. Sir Francis Hincks was not
in the new Parliament and Macdonald’s former finance minister, Leonard Tilley, had given up
his seat to become lieutenant-governor of New Brunswick. John Carling had been defeated in
London, the Hon. James McDonald in Pictou and the brothers Gibbs, T.N. and W .H., had lost
their seats in Ontario.

Only the redoubtable Dr. Charles Tupper, premier of Nova Scotia until Confederation and still
the member of Parliament from Cumberland, was left as a familiar figure on the opposition
benches. But Tupper was a mighty host, an army all by himself. In addition to acting as the
Conservatives’ chief budget critic, Tupper was heard on almost every important issue that
came before Parliament during the 1874 session. On the government’s revised plans for the
Pacific railway, for instance, Mackenzie and Tupper engaged in a long and biting dialogue
that dominated the debate.

A session of reforms

One hundred and seventeen pieces of legislation were introduced and piloted through the First
Session of the Third Parliament. True to their campaign pledges, the Liberals placed
emphasis on the reform of the electoral process, something they saw as essential for the
establishment of a working democracy in British North America. In their eyes, Macdonald
and his colleagues had cynically manipulated elections for their own benefit; their tactics
should now be ruled beyond the pale for the future.

The first step in this process had been achieved the year before through the abolition of dual
representation in provincial legislatures and the House of Commons (36 Vict., Cap. 2, 1873).
This act went into effect with the dissolution of the Second Parliament on 2 January 1874.
Thus there were no members of the Third Parliament who also sat in local legislatures.
During the first session of 1873 there had also been passed a new controverted elections act,
under which judges, rather than committees of members, reviewed petitions arising from
disputed elections (36 Vict, Cap.28, 1873). An expanded version of this measure was passed
the next year in the 1874 session (37 Vict., Cap. 10.) The stage was therefore set for a major
revision of Canada’s electoral law in the session of 1874.



The electoral legislation of 1874 was the child of A.-A. Dorion, minister of justice, a veteran
Rouge who had fought his way through many elections and knew their defects. Introduced by
Dorion for second reading in a long speech on 21 April, the bill was the subject of lengthy
debates over fine points before attaining royal assent at the end of the session on 26 May
1874. The act (37 Vict., Cap. 9) overhauled federal voting practices. General elections were
now to be held on the same day across the country, except for isolated ridings in Ontario and
Quebec and for contests in Manitoba and British Columbia. The secret ballot would become
the norm in federal elections as it had already become in New Brunswick even before 1867
and in Nova Scotia in 1870; Ontario had adopted it in 1873 and Quebec was to follow two
years later. Election expenses were to be tabulated and made public within two months after
the voting and the use of liquor for election purposes was forbidden. The franchise for
Dominion elections was to continue to be defined by the provinces, except that property
qualifications were to be abolished. The old-style raucous election meetings “on the
hustings”, held for the purpose of publicly nominating candidates, were to become a thing of
the past.

The whole of the electoral law of 1874 was used for the first time in the fourth general
election on 17 September 1878. The secret ballot was used for the first time federally in a by-
election in the constituency of Toronto City West in November 1875.

Reformers in the Ontario wing of the Liberals continued in the First Session of the Third
Parliament to make efforts to modify the structure of the federal government. The legally
learned David Mills, member for Bothwell, moved that the Senate be appointed by the
provincial legislatures, while George W. Ross, member for Middlesex West, argued in favour
of an elected Senate. A debate on the subject occurred on 13 April 1874 but it was
inconclusive, the Mackenzie government having no intention of committing itself on the
matter; late in 1873 it had already sought, but failed to get, approval from Whitehall to
appoint extra Senators itself and swamp the Conservatives in the upper house.

A change in House practice introduced in the 1874 session complemented the new electoral
law. This was the decision, made through the adoption of a committee report, to begin the
official recording of the debates of the Commons. The matter had come up many times before
in the First and Second Parliaments but had never won the necessary bipartisan support. The
objections to the introduction of official reporting were twofold: that the task has already
been carried out satisfactorily by newspapers such as the Globe and the Times and that official
reporting would be too costly. There were also the side issues as to whether official reporting
could ever be truly non-partisan and whether it would encourage verbosity in the House.

Alexander Mackenzie, who had prepared the first report favouring an official Hansard in the
1867-1868 session, saw a public record of debates, prepared by the Commons’ own staff, as
leading to a more accountable Parliament. He envisioned an official record of debates as
similar in intent to the changes embodied in the new electoral law. Mackenzie was supported,
in his endorsement of an official record, by Dr. Charles Tupper, who saw such a record as a
useful historical document for the Canadian people and as a reference source for prospective
settlers and investors living abroad.

In 1872 the Commons had decided, as an experiment, to purchase copies for members of a
shortened report of the debates prepared by James Cotton of the Ottawa 7imes. Six hundred
copies of the “Cotton Debates” for 1870 and 1871 were eventually purchased and distributed.



The Senate, in the meantime, had adopted official reporting with the appointment of the
young John George Bourinot of Sydney as “Short-Hand Writer to the Senate and Committees
of the Senate”. Bourinot had begun recording Senate debates in 1871, establishing the first
continuous official record of debates in the Canadian Parliament.

In the light of his long-standing interest in an official Hansard, Prime Minister Mackenzie did
not delay in striking a select committee of the House of Commons in 1874 to enquire into “the
most effectual and cheapest mode of obtaining the publication of a Canadian Hansard”. The
committee of nine members was led by James Young of Waterloo South, a businessman from
Galt. With Tupper’s backing, the committee went to work, reporting on 18 May. The official
record of debates should begin in the next session with each intervention to be reported in its
own language. There should be a Chief Reporter, a permanent employee of the House and
under him four reporters, one French-speaking. Two thousand copies of Hansard would be
printed in sheet form, one for each newspaper in Canada and six for each member. The
probable cost of the operation for each session would be $7984, of which $5000 would be
needed for the stipends of the reporters. The committee’s report was opposed by a small
group of members, the proponents of private reporting. The most outspoken were both
Liberals: Frank Killam of Yarmouth and Robert Wilkes from Toronto City Centre. Their
amendment was turned down on a division, as Mackenzie, Blake, Mills, Macdonald and J -E.
Cauchon all endorsed the proposal for an official report. Thus the official record of debates
for the Commons would begin with the Second Session of the Third Parliament in 1875.°

If reform of the political process was a congenial subject for the new government, the
responsibility for the construction of the Pacific railway linking British Columbia with
Ontario was not. The terms of union for British Columbia’s entry into Confederation,
negotiated by the Macdonald government in 1871, contained generous provisions for the
completion of a transcontinental railway. The line would be commenced within two years of
the act of union, i.e. by July 1873. It would be completed within ten years, i.e. by July 1881.
Evidence suggests that even the British Columbia delegates were surprised by the promises
made by the federal government respecting the railway. In addition Cartier, the minister
responsible for the negotiation of the railway terms, had promised that the enterprise would be
carried out without an increase in general taxation! The Liberal opposition had been aghast at
the railway commitments, which it characterized as reckless and ruinous, from the moment
the terms had been announced. It had fought the Macdonald government’s transportation
plans through the parliamentary sessions of 1872 and 1873, but in vain. It had seen the
company chartered to build the railway fail because of its inability to raise the necessary
private capital in England. It had seen the government which had sponsored the railway fall
from grace and leave office. Now it was faced with the awesome responsibility of carrying
forward the Pacific railway project.

By 1874 the management of the project seemed more of a burden than ever. An economic
slump in North America had depressed Canadian government revenues and two years of
waiting had only hardened the demand of the province of British Columbia that the railway
terms be fully honoured. They represented a solemn obligation on the part of the federal
government, the administration in Victoria insisted. True, surveys for the line were going
forward, but in the western mountains they only revealed what most people suspected, that the

> For a fuller account of the controversy over official reporting of debates see David Farr, “Reconstituting the
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construction of a railway through British Columbia represented, in the words of the chief
engineer for the project, a work of the “most formidable character”.

Faced with these inhospitable conditions, the Mackenzie government, on taking office,
decided to continue with surveys, mainly in the rocky country north and west of the Great
Lakes, develop land routes west of Lake Superior through the improvement of the Dawson
road and seek some relaxation of the railway terms from the other partner to the contract.

To the latter end it despatched a young Toronto lawyer who had failed to win re-election in
January, James Edgar, out to British Columbia in March 1874. Edgar was to offer the
construction of a graving dock for the naval base at Esquimalt on Vancouver Island in return
for concessions from British Columbia. It was clear that construction of the line could not,
realistically, be completed in ten years. Surveys would be pressed forward energetically, with
the understanding that construction would follow as quickly as possible. Ottawa would begin
to lay down a telegraph line and build a wagon road along the route of the proposed railway
without delay. If these terms did not satisfy British Columbia, Ottawa would consider
building a railway from Esquimalt north to Nanaimo to link up with the transcontinental when
it reached the Pacific coast. The Esquimalt and Nanaimo line was clearly seen as a
compensation for the non-fulfilment of the principal railway terms, since it would have no
appeal for residents of the province living on the mainland. The Edgar mission failed in spite
of a promise to build the Vancouver Island railway, to construct the telegraph line and to
prosecute the route surveys energetically.

The Mackenzie government had to bring forward a new railway plan, reluctantly conscious
that the line would have to be built, in the main, with public funds. On 12 May 1874, in a
lengthy presentation to the House, Mackenzie outlined the Liberal government’s railway
policy. British Columbia would be requested once more to drop its insistence on the ten-year
period for the construction of the railway and in return Ottawa would build the line from
Esquimalt to Nanaimo. The engineers would endeavour to use “water stretches” for
transportation where possible across the plains. There would be a line connecting Fort Garry
with the railways in the American territory to the south and another link would connect
Georgian Bay with southern Ontario railways. British Columbia would be given more
financial backing to build the new graving dock at Esquimalt. The construction of the railway
would be carried forward as a leading purpose of the federal government but it would have to
be accomplished without “increasing the present rate of taxation”. (This was the pledge
Cartier had given in 1871.) The Liberal government’s railway motion, although bitterly
opposed by British Columbia members such as Amor De Cosmos, was easily approved in the
House of Commons.

The session of 1874 heard no more about the Pacific railway but the issue continued to plague
the Liberal government. Lord Dufferin, the Governor-General, and Lord Carnarvon, the
colonial secretary in London, suggested a recourse to arbitration by the imperial government
to settle the railway dispute with British Columbia.® Reluctantly the loyal Mackenzie agreed
to this intervention, which would centre on the question of whether or not the Liberal motion
was fulfilling Ottawa’s railway obligations. Eventually Carnarvon put forward new terms,
accepted conditionally by the Mackenzie government but never approved by Parliament and
thus inoperative. The matter dragged on, to embitter the relations between Mackenzie and

¢ Dufferin-Carnarvon Correspondence 1874-1878, edited by C.W. de Kiewiet and F.H. Underhill Toronto:
Champlain Society, 1955, pp. 60 ff.



Blake and Lord Dufferin in 1876. It was not until 1885, under another government and
another private railway company, that the Canadian Pacific Railway was brought to
completion.

Towards the end of the First Session of the Third Parliament the Mackenzie government
brought forward a proposal for the establishment of a Canadian military college. The Hon.
William Ross, minister of militia and defence, explained the purposes and structure of the
new college on the second reading of its founding bill on 15 May. The college would
combine the best features of the instruction offered at West Point in the United States and at
famous British institutions such as Sandhurst and Woolwich. It would train officers for
service in the cavalry, the artillery, the engineers and the infantry. An argument strongly in its
favour was that it would also meet the need for engineers for civil tasks as well as military
ones. Once its four-year course of study was in place, it would have an enrolment of 96
cadets.

There was general approval for the scheme in the Commons, the chief point of discussion
being competing claims by members for the location of the school. The government had not
announced a site, saying only that it was proposed to locate the college in one of the country’s
garrison towns. But Mackenzie had worked on the Martello towers in Kingston as a young
stone mason, and in June he revisited Fort Henry, already the site of a school for gunnery for
the Canadian militia. By the end of the year it was known that the military college would be
located at Kingston. Instruction began at the college in 1876.

Louis Riel, M.P.

By far the most dramatic moments in the First Session of the Third Parliament arose from the
early clash between French and English-speaking members in the House of Commons over
the election and seating of Louis Riel.

Riel, the Métis leader in the Red River who had been instrumental in winning provincial
status for Manitoba in 1870, was a fiercely controversial figure in 1874. His decision, as
leader of the provisional government at Red River, to execute an opponent, the obstreperous
Orangeman Thomas Scott, outraged residents of Scott’s home province, Ontario. Riel was
indicted for Scott’s murder before a grand jury in Manitoba and the government of Ontario
offered a reward of $5000 for his arrest. Complicating the question was a government
promise of 1869 that no legal proceedings would be taken against those involved in the Red
River uprising. This amnesty had been granted in a proclamation by the Governor-General in
December 1869, before Scott’s death. Amnesty for Riel and his associates had been
discussed during the negotiations for the Manitoba Act but no formal commitment had been
made.

The Macdonald government, recognizing the incendiary issue posed by Riel, had secretly paid
him an allowance to live in the United States. Riel, however, had returned to the Red River,
where he was regarded as a hero by the Métis community in which he lived. In the general
election of 1872 he had been persuaded not to try for the Métis seat of Provencher, south of
Fort Garry, and had allowed Sir George-Etienne Cartier, defeated earlier in Montreal, to take
the seat by acclamation. This practical gesture of support for the Macdonald government did
not win him the desired amnesty, however. After Cartier’s death Riel was elected for
Provencher in a by-election held in October 1873, and again in the general election of 1874.



Shortly before the First Session of the Third Parliament convened, Riel secretly came to
Ottawa and, accompanied by Dr. J.-B. Romuald Fiset, Liberal member for Rimouski, took the
oath as a member of the House of Commons. This action created a passionate debate between
English and French-speaking members. Most Ontario members saw Riel as the murderer of
Thomas Scott and a fugitive from justice. Quebec members celebrated him as a hero who had
upheld the Roman Catholic faith and French culture in the Northwest. They insisted that he
had been guaranteed an amnesty for his conduct during the Red River disturbances, by Sir
George-E. Cartier on behalf of the Macdonald government. The issue posed a delicate
question for the new Mackenzie administration. It had not been in office at the time of the
negotiation of the Manitoba Act but two of its leading members, Alexander Mackenzie and
Edward Blake, had been members of the Ontario government which had offered the reward
for Riel’s arrest.

Riel’s audacity in coming to Ottawa to sign the parliamentary roll created great excitement at
the opening of the 1874 session. Would the “rebel leader” attempt to take his seat? On the
day following the Speech from the Throne, 30 March, Col. L.-F -R. Masson, a Conservative
member (Terrebonne) and a friend of Riel’s, delivered an impassioned speech urging an
amnesty for Riel and the other M¢étis leaders. Masson had hardly finished when another
militia colonel, Mackenzie Bowell of Belleville, rose to the counter-attack. Bowell,
Grandmaster of the Orange Order of British North America since 1870, moved that the Clerk
of the Crown in Chancery attend the House to produce the evidence respecting Riel’s election
for Provencher and that the Attorney-General of Manitoba be summoned to give information
on Riel’s indictment. Both motions, seconded by Dr. John C. Schultz (Lisgar), who had been
a leader of the Canadian party in the Red River troubles, were approved without division.

The next day evidence was submitted that showed Riel had been duly elected. There was a
long questioning, by Bowell and others, of H.J. Clarke, the Manitoba attorney-general, who
appeared at the bar of the House. Bowell’s purpose was clearly to show that Riel was a
fugitive from justice who had been directly involved in the “murder” of Thomas Scott. At the
end of Clarke’s interrogation Bowell moved that Riel appear in his place in the House on the
following day. This motion was also carried with a recorded vote.

On 1 April, with Riel still not present, the order for his appearance was withdrawn and
another date fixed, “Wednesday next” (8 April). The week’s delay was caused by the House
going into recess for Easter from 2 to 6 April. In the meantime it was decided to appoint a
nine-member select committee to enquire into the causes of the difficulties in the Northwest
in 1869-1870. Bowell, Edward Blake, Masson and Donald A. Smith, the Hudson’s Bay
Company official who had negotiated with Riel on behalf of the Canadian government and
was now the member for Selkirk, Manitoba, were named to the committee.

When the Commons resumed after the Easter break, the Riel case again took centre stage.
Clarke returned to appear before the House again on 8 and 9 April, together with two Ottawa
detectives who had been vainly seeking Riel in order to serve him his warrant. Hon. Timothy
W. Anglin, the Speaker, called upon the member for Provencher to appear in his place but, as
the Journals quaintly recorded, “the said Honourable Member appeared not”.” The way was
now clear for Bowell to give notice of his intention to move a motion to expel Riel from the
Commons. He had fixed the date of 13 April for this action but for some reason the matter
did not come up on that day. The next day had already been allotted for the first budget

7 Journals, 9 April 1874, p. 37.



address by the new minister of finance so there was no opportunity to discuss the Riel case on
that day. Finally the issue came to a climax on 15 and 16 April.

The first of these days was devoted to a lengthy and, at times, heated debate between those
demanding an amnesty for Riel (mainly, but not exclusively, French-speaking members) and
those who saw Riel as an outlaw who was not entitled to sit in the honourable House of
Commons. On 15 April Bowell moved his motion to expel Riel. Two amendments were
promptly offered.

The first amendment to Bowell’s motion for expulsion was one which stood no chance of
passing. It was put forward by Joseph-Alfred Mousseau from Bagot and seconded by L.-F -
G. Baby from Joliette (both Conservatives). The amendment asked for a full and complete
pardon for all “acts, crimes and offences that may have been committed in the Province of
Manitoba during the [1869-1870] disturbances”.® This was too sweeping an absolution for
Justice Minister A.-A. Dorion and the Quebec Liberal members to accept, and most joined
with Ontario Liberals to defeat the amendment, 164 to 27.

The second amendment sought to delay the decision to expel Riel until the select committee
of 1 April had reported on the causes of the Red River insurrection, including the promises of
amnesty allegedly made to “the actors” in them. This moderate approach was devised by the
Hon. Luther H. Holton, a veteran and experienced Liberal representing Chateauguay, who
was close to the Mackenzie cabinet. The Hon. Malcolm Cameron, another long serving
Liberal (Ontario South) seconded Holton’s amendment. This course of action was supported
by a rising young Quebec member who had entered the House for the first time in the recent
election. Wilfrid Laurier, member for Arthabaska in the Eastern Townships, declared that
members had no right to expel Riel before they had seen evidence of the truth of the charges
made against him. This they would gain from the findings of the select committee. It was the
voice of reason and conciliation that would be heard many times in the future throughout
Laurier’s career. Holton’s suggestion of a stay of proceedings did not satisfy an excited
House and his amendment too was defeated, 117-76. Mackenzie, Blake and Macdonald all
rejected the course of action proposed.

The way was now clear for the division on the main question, the Bowell-Schultz motion that
Riel, having failed to appear in the House on 9 April, be expelled. This question was put to
the vote on 16 April. There could be no doubt of the sentiment of the chamber: the motion
was carried 124 to 68. The prime minister was to be found among those speaking against Riel.
The Manitoba member was a fugitive from justice since there were no grounds to consider
Thomas Scott’s death a legitimate execution by political authority. It was, rather, a crime
against humanity. The issue of whether an amnesty had been promised by the late
government should be considered a separate question and investigated by the select
committee. Laurier, together with most of the Quebec Liberals, voted against Bowell’s
motion. But the House had spoken decisively and following the vote the election of Louis
Riel to the House of Commons was formally annulled.

It was not to be the end of Riel’s political aspirations. The select committee, under the
chairmanship of Félix Geoffrion, Liberal member for Verchéres, reported on 22 May, only
days before the end of the 1874 session. It reached no conclusions but assembled a mass of
evidence from 21 witnesses and examination of hundreds of documents over 37 meetings.

8 Journals, 15 April 1874, p. 65.



There can be no doubt, from the perusal of this material, that Sir George-E Cartier, on behalf
of the Macdonald government, had held out the promise of an amnesty to Riel.” The
Provencher seat having been declared vacant, a by-election was necessary and called for 3
September. Riel was the only candidate and was defiantly re-elected for the third time by the
voters of the Manitoba riding. He did not, however, attempt to take his seat for the 1875
session of Parliament.

Early in the 1875 session Riel’s attempts to enter Parliament would come to a conclusion in a
second expulsion from the Commons, occasioned not by any action of his but by the eventual
political resolution of the Manitoba question. The issue of an amnesty for the leaders of the
Red River uprising had continued as a cause célébre in the months after Riel’s first expulsion
from the Commons. In Manitoba one of his lieutenants, Ambroise Lépine, was tried and
found guilty of the murder of Thomas Scott. Riel was clearly also guilty by association.
Lépine’s death sentence posed a cruel dilemma for the Mackenzie cabinet. Quebec and the
Roman Catholic Church continued to demand an amnesty for Riel and his associates. French-
speaking members of Mackenzie’s cabinet threatened to resign if Lépine’s conviction was
allowed to stand. Ontario members, reflecting the emotional views of their constituents,
pressed for justice to take its course. In the end it was the Governor-General, Lord Dufferin,
who extricated Mackenzie and his colleagues from their dilemma. With the approval of the
Colonial Office, Dufferin commuted Lépine’s death sentence on his own authority, waiting
until the Ontario election of January 1875 was over before announcing his decision. Lépine’s
sentence was commuted to two years’ imprisonment, coupled with a loss of civil rights.

In consequence, early in the 1875 session Prime Minister Mackenzie was able to move in the
House of Commons that an amnesty be granted to all those involved in the Manitoba troubles
except for Riel, Lépine and an associate, W.B. O’Donohue. Riel and Lépine would receive the
pardon if they agreed to leave “Her Majesty’s dominions” for five years. Riel was once again
expelled from the House of Commons on 12 February 1875, when Mackenzie’s motion to this
effect was carried, 126-50. Riel’s Commons seat was declared vacant once again.

Before going into exile, Riel suffered a mental breakdown and was confined, under a
pseudonym, in hospitals in Quebec. In 1878 he went to the United States, whence, six years
later, he was called back to Canada by the grievances of his people living in northern
Saskatchewan. His end would be tragic, executed for renewed rebellion there, and his ghost
still haunts Canada today.

An incomplete agenda

Other issues of the day did not surface or were touched upon only briefly in the session of
1874. The Liberals had campaigned on the promise of an appellate court, a supreme court, for
the new Dominion but the government put aside this promise during its first crowded year in
office. The act establishing the Supreme Court would only be presented during the 1875
session and it would be left to Edward Blake, as the new minister of justice, to argue
unsuccessfully with the British authorities that there should be no leave to appeal to England
from the judgments of the new court. Appeals to the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council
in London would only be abolished in 1949.

° See the committee’s report, Journals 1874, Appendix 6, “North-West Committee Evidence”.



The sensitive New Brunswick school question, turning on whether Roman Catholics in New
Brunswick had possessed legal rights to separate schools in 1867, did not come before the
1874 session despite of the best efforts of the indefatigable John Costigan of Victoria, New
Brunswick. Instead the matter was pursued through judicial channels. In July, after the
session was over, the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council dismissed the Catholic
minority’s appeal against a negative New Brunswick court judgment. In the 1875 session
Costigan would try for an amendment to the British North America Act to acknowledge the
Catholic position, but his effort was unsuccessful and the issue died. The Liberal
administration and the Conservative opposition alike breathed a sigh of relief.

Temperance measures were also on the public agenda in 1874. There was demand for a
federal law restricting or banning alcoholic beverages. But the Canada Temperance Act
(popularly known as the Scott Act) would only be passed by the Mackenzie Liberals in 1878,
allowing for the prohibition of spirituous liquors in municipalities according to the wishes of
the electorate, and thereby laying to rest an issue that had dogged Parliaments since
Confederation.

Events outside Canada barely touched the 1874 session. The most salient topic was whether
the Liberal elder statesman, George Brown, sent by Mackenzie to Washington to try for a
renewal of the reciprocity treaty, would be successful. Questions were asked about the state
of Brown’s negotiations during the session but Mackenzie chose not to be specific in reply.
At last, on 18 June, a completed treaty was sent to the United States Senate, but without an
endorsement by the Grant administration. It was received by the foreign relations committee,
postponed until the following year and never reported into the full Senate. The cause of free
trade with the United States of America, advocated by the Liberals, was not an opportune one.
Indeed, Macdonald and the Conservatives were to go on to mine a richer deposit of
protectionism, with their “National Policy” to protect Canadian manufacturers from American
competition helping them back into power in 1878.

The session of 1874 was an important one for the new administration of Alexander
Mackenzie. Through it the Liberals were able to establish their credentials as “reformers” and
move the country from a reliance on electoral practices that were becoming increasingly
discreditable. Through the adoption of a system of official reporting, a start was made
towards ensuring that the deliberations of Parliament would be better and more widely
understood and its legislative function made more accountable. Alexander Mackenzie never
exhibited the mastery of Parliament achieved by his rival John A. Macdonald, but in his
leadership of the House in 1874 he acted with an honest respect for the institution that was to
be an important example for the country in the years to come.
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IN ALPHABETICAL ORDER AND CONSTITUENCIES

Name of Member Constituency

Abbott, Hon. John Joseph Caldwell .................................. Argenteuil, Quebec

Anglin, Hon. Timothy Warren .............................oo Gloucester, New Brunswick

Appleby, Stephen Burpee ... Carleton, New Brunswick

Archibald, Cyril ... Stormont, Ontario

Aylmer, Hon. Henry ... Richmond—Wolfe, Quebec

Baby, Louis Frangois Georges ...............c...ccccooeveeieinin. Joliette, Quebec

Bain, Thomas ... Wentworth North, Ontario

Barthe, Georges Isidore ...................oocooiiiiiiiii Richelieu, Quebec

Béchard, Frangois ... Iberville, Quebec

Bernier, Henri ... Lotbiniére, Quebec

Bertram, John ... Peterborough West, Ontario

Biggar, James Lyons ................ccccoocooiiioiiiieee e Northumberland East, Ontario

Blackburn, Robert ... Russell, Ontario

Blain, David ... York West, Ontario

Blake, Hon. Edward ... Bruce South, Ontario

Bodwell, Ebenezer Vining .....................cccoooeoioiiiii Oxford South, Ontario

Borden, Frederick William ............................................ Kings, Nova Scotia

Borron, Edward Barnes ... Algoma, Ontario

Bourassa, Frangois .................ccccccoiiiiiiiiiiici Saint-Jean, Quebec

Bowell, Mackenzie ................c.c.ccooiiiiiiiiiiii Hastings North, Ontario

Bowman, Isaac Erb ... Waterloo North, Ontario

Boyer, Louis Alphonse ....................coocoooiiiiiii Maskinongé, Quebec

Brooks, Edward Towle ...............ccccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiii Sherbrooke (Ville), Quebec

Brouse, William Henry ... Grenville South, Ontario

Brown, JAmMES ..o Hastings West, Ontario

Buell, Jacob Dockstader ... Brockville, Ontario

Bunster, Arthur ... Vancouver, British Columbia

'Burk, Harvey William ... Durham West, Ontario

Burpee, Charles ... Sunbury, New Brunswick

Burpee, Hon. 1saac .................ccoooooiiiiiiiiiiiee St. John (City & County),
New Brunswick

Cameron, Hon. John Hillyard ......................................... Cardwell, Ontario

Cameron, Malcolm ..., Ontario South, Ontario

Cameron, Malcolm Colin .....................ooccoiiii, Huron South, Ontario

Carmichael, James William ..., Pictou, Nova Scotia

Caron, Joseph Philippe René Adolphe .............................. Québec (Comte), Quebec

! Elected in by-clection, April 7, 1874.
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Cartwright, Hon. Richard John .................................... Lennox, Ontario
Casey, George EIliott ..., Elgin West, Ontario
Casgrain, Philippe Baby ...................oocooiiii L’Islet, Quebec
Cauchon, Hon. Joseph Edouard ... Quebec Centre, Quebec
Charlton, John ... Norfolk North, Ontario
Chauveau, Hon. Pierre-Joseph-Olivier ......................... Quebec (Comté), Quebec
Cheval, Guillaume dit St-Jacques .................c.cooeeiiio, Rouville, Quebec
Chisholm, Daniel Black ......................coooocviii, Halton, Ontario
Church, Charles Edward ..., Lunenburg, Nova Scotia
Cimon, Marie Honorius Ernest ......................................... Chicoutimi—Saguenay, Quebec
Cockburn, Alexander Peter ..., Muskoka, Ontario
Coffin, Hon. Thomas ..o, Shelburne, Nova Scotia
Colby, Charles Carroll ..., Stanstead, Quebec
Cook, Herman Henry ..., Simcoe North, Ontario
Costigan, John ... Victoria, New Brunswick
Cunningham, James ....................cccooieiiiiiiiiieee New Westminster,

British Columbia
Cunningham, Robert ... Marquette, Manitoba
Currier, Joseph Merrill ... Ottawa (City), Ontario
Davies, Daniel ... King’s County, P.E.IL
Dawson, John A. ... L Pictou, Nova Scotia
De CoSmOS, AMOT ........coooiiiiiii e Victoria, British Columbia
Delorme, LOUIS .....ooooiiiiiiie e Saint-Hyacinthe, Quebec
De St-Georges, Joseph Esdras Alfred ............................... Portneuf, Quebec
Desjardins, Alphonse .................coooooiiiiiiieieeee Hochelaga, Quebec
De Veber, Jeremiah Smith Boies ...................................... St. John (City), New Brunswick
Dewdney, Edgar ... Yale, British Columbia
Domville, James ... King’s, New Brunswick
Donahue, William ... Missisquoi, Quebec
Dorion, Hon. Antoine Aime ......................ccooiieiii Napierville, Quebec
Dugas, FIrMin ..o Montcalm, Quebec
Dymond, Alfred Hutchinson ...........................o.ccoo York North, Ontario
Farrow, Thomas .................oooiiiieiiiecie e Huron North, Ontario
Ferguson, Charles Frederick ... Leeds North and Grenville North,

Ontario

Ferris, JoOhn ... Queen’s, New Brunswick
Fiset, Jean-Baptiste Romuald ....................................... Rimouski, Quebec
Fleming, Gavin .................ccoccocoiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee Brant North, Ontario
Flesher, William Kingston .....................cccoocooiiiiin Grey East, Ontario
Flynn, Edmund Power ..o Richmond, Nova Scotia

Forbes, James Fraser .................ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiei Queens, Nova Scotia
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Fournier, Hon. Télesphore .......................ccoocoooiiiii Bellechasse, Quebec
Fréchette, Louis Honoré ...................cccccooiiiiiiiiiiii Lévis, Quebec

Galbraith, Daniel ... Lanark North, Ontario
Gaudet, Joseph ... Nicolet, Quebec
Geoffrion, FEIIX ... Vercheéres, Quebec
Gibson, William ... Dundas, Ontario

Gill, Charles ..o Yamaska, Quebec

Gillies, John ..., Bruce North, Ontario
Gillmor, Arthur Hill ..., Charlotte, New Brunswick
Gordon, Adam ... Ontario North, Ontario
Goudge, Monson Henry ...................cocooioiiiii Hants, Nova Scotia

Hagar, Albert ... Prescott, Ontario

Haggart, John Graham ... Lanark South, Ontario
Hall, James ... Peterborough East, Ontario
Harper, Louis GEOrges ..............cccooovvvviioiiiiieeiieeeeee Gaspé, Quebec

Harvey, William ... Elgin East, Ontario
Harwood, Robert William .......................................... Vaudreuil, Quebec
Higinbotham, Nathaniel ........................................... Wellington North, Ontario
Holton, Hon. Luther Hamilton ......................................... Chateauguay, Quebec
Horton, HOrace ................ooooiiiie e Huron Centre, Ontario
Huntington, Hon. Lucius Seth ..................................... Shefford, Quebec
Hurteau, Hilaire ... L’ Assomption, Quebec
Irving, Aemilius ... Hamilton, Ontario

Jetté, Louis Amable ... Montréal-Est, Quebec
Jodoin, Amable ... Chambly, Quebec

Jones, Alfred Gilpin ... Halifax, Nova Scotia
Jones, David Ford ... Leeds South, Ontario
Kerr, William ... Northumberland West, Ontario
Killam, Frank ... Yarmouth, Nova Scotia
Kirk, John Angus ............cccoooiiiiiii e Guysborough, Nova Scotia
Kirkpatrick, George Airey ................ccccooovviviiiiieiiiiii Frontenac, Ontario
Laflamme, Toussaint Antoine Rodolphe ....................... Jacques-Cartier, Quebec
Laird, Hon. David ... Queen’s County, P.E L
Lajoie, Charles Gérin ... Saint-Maurice, Quebec
Landerkin, George ..................coocooiiiiiii Grey South, Ontario
Langlois, Jean ... Montmorency, Quebec
Lantier, Jacques Philippe ..o Soulanges, Quebec

Laurier, Wilfrid ... Drummond-—Arthabaska, Quebec
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Little, William Carruthers ... Simcoe South, Ontario
McCallum, Lachlin ... Monck, Ontario
Macdonald, Alexander Francis .....................ccccccccviiii. Cornwall, Ontario
Macdonald, Hon. Donald Alexander .............................. Glengarry, Ontario
Macdonald, Right Hon. Sir John Alexander ...................... Kingston, Ontario
McDonald, William ... Cape Breton, Nova Scotia
McDonnell, Samuel ... Inverness, Nova Scotia
McDougall, John Lorn ..................ooocoooiiiiii Renfrew South, Ontario
McDougall, William ... Trois-Rivieres, Quebec
McGreevy, Hon. Thomas ..................cocoooiiiiiiicice Québec Ouest, Quebec
McGregor, William ... Essex, Ontario
Mclntyre, Peter Adolphus ..................c.cooooiiiii King’s County, P.E.L
MclSaac, ANGUS ..o Antigonish, Nova Scotia
Mackay, Newton LeGayet ....................ocoooeviiiiiiiii Cape Breton, Ontario
McKay, ThOmas .............cooooiiiiiieeee e Colchester, Nova Scotia
Mackenzie, Hon. Alexander ........................cccccccciiiii.. Lambton, Ontario
Mackenzie, Frederick ... Montréal-Ouest, Quebec
MacLennan, JAames .............ccooooiiiiiii e Victoria North, Ontario
McLeod, GEOIZe ........oooooviiiiiiiieceee e Kent, New Brunswick
McQuade, Arthur ... Victoria South, Ontario
Masson, Louis-Frangois-Rodrigue ..................................... Terrebonne, Quebec
Metcalfe, James ... York East, Ontario
Mills, David ... Bothwell, Ontario
Mitchell, Hon. Peter ..............ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieei Northumberland, New Brunswick
Moffatt, GEOTrZe ..........oooooiiiiiiieee e Restigouche, New Brunswick
Monteith, ANdrew ... Perth North, Ontario
Montplaisir, Hippolyte .................coocooiiiiiiiiei Champlain, Quebec
MosS, ThOMaAS ..........ooooii i West Toronto, Ontario
Mousseau, Joseph Alfred ... Bagot, Quebec
NOITIS, JAMES ..o Lincoln, Ontario
Oakes, Edwin Randolph ... Digby, Nova Scotia
O’Donohoe, John ... Toronto East, Ontario
Oliver, ThOMAS ........occooiiiiiiii e Oxford North, Ontario
Orton, George Turner ..................cccoooiveeiioiiieeieeee Wellington Centre, Ontario
Ouimet, Joseph-Aldéric ... Laval, Quebec
Palmer, Acalus Lockwood ......................ccoocoiiii St. John (City & County),
New Brunswick
Paquet, Anselme-Homere ... Berthier, Quebec
Paterson, William ... Brant South, Ontario

Pelletier, Charles-Alphonse-Pantaléon .......................... Kamouraska, Quebec



Name of Member Constituency

Perry, Stanislaus Francis ......................ccoocooioiiii Prince County, P.E.L
Pettes, Nathaniel ... Brome, Quebec

Pickard, John ... York, New Brunswick
Pinsonneault, Alfred ...l Laprairie, Quebec

Plumb, Josiah Burr ... Niagara, Ontario

Pope, Hon. John Henry ... Compton, Quebec
Pouliot, Jean-Baptiste ... Témiscouata, Quebec
Power, Patrick ... Halifax, Nova Scotia
Pozer, Christian Henry ... Beauce, Quebec

Prévost, Wilfred ... Deux-Montagnes, Quebec
Ray, William Hallett ... Annapolis, Nova Scotia
Richard, Edouard Emery .................................................... Mégantic, Quebec

Riel, LOULS ..o Provencher, Manitoba
Robillard, Ulysse Janvier ......................oooooiiiiiiii Beauharnois, Quebec
Robitaille, Hon. Théodore .....................oooiiiiiiiiii Bonaventure, Quebec
Rochester, John ... Carleton, Ontario

Roscoe, Francis James ... Victoria, British Columbia
Ross, George William ... Middlesex West, Ontario
ROSS, LEWIS ..o Durham East, Ontario
Ross, Walter ... Prince Edward, Ontario
Ross, Hon. William ... Victoria, Nova Scotia
Rouleau, Frangois Fortunat .............................................. Dorchester, Quebec

Ryan, Michael Patrick ... Montréal Centre, Quebec
Rymal, Joseph ... Wentworth South, Ontario
St-Jean, Pierre ................cooooiiiiii e Ottawa (City), Ontario
Scatcherd, Thomas ... Middlesex North, Ontario
Schultz, John Christian .....................ccoooiiiiiiiiiii Lisgar, Manitoba

Scriver, JULTUS ..o Huntingdon, Quebec
Shibley, Schuyler ... Addington, Ontario
Sinclair, Peter ... Queen’s County, PE.L
Skinner, James AtChiSON ... Oxford South, Ontario
Smith, Hon. Albert James ... Westmorland, New Brunswick
Smith, Donald Alexander .....................cccoooiiiiiiii Selkirk, Manitoba

Smith, Robert ... Peel, Ontario

Snider, GEOTZE .........c.oooiviiiiieieee e Grey North, Ontario
Stephenson, Rufus ... Kent, Ontario

Stirton, David ... Wellington South, Ontario
Stuart, JOn ... Norfolk South, Ontario
Taschereau, Henri Thomas ..........................c..ccccoi. Montmagny, Quebec

* Elected in by-election, May 23, 1874.



Name of Member Constituency

Thibaudeau, ISIAOre ... Québec Est, Quebec
Thompson, David ... Haldimand, Ontario
Thompson, Joshua Spencer ..., Cariboo, British Columbia
Thomson, William Alexander ..............................ccc........ Welland, Ontario
Tremblay, Pierre-Alexis ...............c..ooooeiiiioiiiiii Charlevoix, Quebec
Trow, JAMES .. ..o Perth South, Ontario
Tupper, Hon. Charles, CB. ..., Cumberland, Nova Scotia
Walker, John ... London, Ontario
Wallace, John ... Albert, New Brunswick
White, John ... Hastings East, Ontario
White, Peter ... Renfrew North, Ontario
Wilkes, RoObert ..o Toronto Centre, Ontario
Willson, Crowell ... Middlesex East, Ontario
Wood, Andrew Trew ... Hamilton, Ontario

Wood, Hon. Edmund Burke ....................................... Durham West, Ontario
Wright, AlONZO ..o Ottawa (Comt¢), Quebec
Wright, William McKay ... Pontiac, Quebec

Y €0, JAMES ..o Prince County, P.E.1

Young, JAMES .........coooiviiiiii i Waterloo South, Ontario



CONSTITUENCIES BY PROVINCE WITH
NAME OF MEMBERS ELECTED

PROVINCE OF MANITOBA

LASGAT oo John Christian Schultz
MaArqUELEE ...t Robert Cunningham
Provencher ... Louis Riel

Selkirk ..o Donald Alexander Smith

PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

CaribOO ..o Joshua Spencer Thompson
New WeStmMInster ..............ocoooviiiiiiiioiioeeeeeeeeee James Cunningham
VaANCOUVET ...t Arthur Bunster

VICKOIIA ..o Francis James Roscoe
VICOIIA ..o Amor De Cosmos

Yale oo Edgar Dewdney

PROVINCE OF NEW BRUNSWICK

ATDETt oo John Wallace

Carleton ..ot Stephen Burpee Appleby
Charlotte ..........ocooiiii e Arthur Hill Gillmor
GloOUCESLET ..., Hon. Timothy Warren Anglin
Kent ..o George McLeod

KING S oo James Domville
Northumberland ... Hon. Peter Mitchell

QUEEBIS oo, John Ferris

Restigouche ... George Moffatt

St. John City ... Jeremiah Smith Boies De Veber
St. John (City & County) ..........oooooiiiiiioiiiiiieeee Hon. Isaac Burpee

St. John (City & County) ..........oooooviiiiiiiiieieee Acalus Lockwood Palmer
SUNBUIY oo Charles Burpee

VICOTIA .o Hon. John Costigan
Westmorland ... Hon. Albert James Smith
FUE & s win & s o o s e 6 oo R B SAS0E it B s John Pickard

PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA

ANNAPOLIS ..o William Hallet Ray
ANti@ONISh ... Angus Mclsaac

Cape Breton .............coooiiiiiiii Newton LeGayet Mackay



PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA (cont’d)

Cape Breton .............cocooiiiiii e William McDonald
ColCheSter ..o Thomas McKay
Cumberland ... Hon. Charles Tupper
DIgbY oo Edwin Randolph Oakes
Guysborough ... John Angus Kirk

Halifax ... Patrick Power

Halifax ... Alfred Gilpin Jones

Hants ..o Monson Henry Goudge
INVEINESS ..o Samuel McDonnell

KINGS oo Frederick William Borden
Lunenburg ... Charles Edward Church
PiCtOU ..o James William Carmichael
PiCtOU ..o John A. Dawson

QUEEBIIS .o James Fraser Forbes
Richmond ... Edmund Power Flynn
Shelburne ............c.cooiiiiio e Hon. Thomas Coftin
VICOMIA ..o Hon. William Ross
Yarmouth ... Frank Killam

PROVINCE OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND

King’s COUNLY ........ocoooiiiiiiiiiiii e Daniel Davies

King’s COUNLY ........oooooiiiiiiiiiiiei e Peter Adolphus MclIntyre
Prince COUNtY ..........ccoooviiiiiiiii e Stanislaus Francis Perry
Prince COUNtY ..........c.ooooiiiiiiii e James Yeo

Queen’s COUNLY ........ocoooiiiiiiiei e, Hon. David Laird

Queen’s COUNLY ........oc.ooiiiiiiiiiei e, Peter Sinclair

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO

AddIington ... Schuyler Shibley

ALGOMA ..o Edward Barnes Borron
Bothwell ... David Mills

Brant North ... Gavin Fleming

Brant South ... William Paterson

Brockville ... Jacob Dockstader Buell
Bruce North ... John Gillies

Bruce South ... Hon. Edward Blake
Cardwell ... Hon. John Hillyard Cameron
Carleton ..ot John Rochester

Cornwall ... Alexander Francis Macdonald

DUNAAS oo William Gibson



PROVINCE OF ONTARIO (cont’d)

Durham East ... Lewis Ross

Durham West ... Hon. Edmund Burke Wood
Durham West ... 'Harvey William Burk
Elgin East ... William Harvey

Elgin West ... George Elliot Casey

ESSEX oo William McGregor
Frontenac ................cc.ooooiiie e George Airey Kirkpatrick
GIeNGaITY ..o Hon. Donald Alexander Macdonald
Grenville South ... William Henry Brouse
Grey Bast ... William Kingston Flesher
Grey NOth ..o George Snider

Grey South ... George Landerkin
Haldimand ... David Thompson

Halton ... Daniel Black Chisholm
Hamilton ... Aemilius Irving

Hamilton ... Andrew Trew Wood
Hastings East ... John White

Hastings North ... Mackenzie Bowell
Hastings West .............oooooiiiiioi e James Brown

Huron Centre ...............oooooiiiiiiiicicee e Horace Horton

Huron North ... Thomas Farrow

Huron South ... Malcolm Colin Cameron
Kent ..o Rufus Stephenson
Kingston .............ocoooiiiii e Right Hon. Sir John Alexander Macdonald
Lambton ... Hon. Alexander Mackenzie
Lanark North ... Daniel Galbraith

Lanark South ... John Graham Haggart
Leeds North and Grenville North ................................... Charles Frederick Ferguson
Leeds South ... David Ford Jones

Lennox ..........oocooiiiiiiii e Hon. Richard John Cartwright
Lincoln ... James Norris

London ... John Walker

Middlesex East .............c.ooooiiiiiioieeeeeeee e Crowell Willson
Middlesex North ... Thomas Scatcherd
Middlesex West ..........oc.oooviiiiiiioieieeee e George William Ross
MONCK ..o Lachlan McCallum
MUSKOKA ... Alexander Peter Cockburn
NIAGATA ..o Josiah Burr Plumb

Norfolk North ... John Charlton

Norfolk South ... John Stuart
Northumberland East ... James Lyons Biggar
Northumberland West ... William Kerr

Ontario North ..., Adam Gordon

! Elected in by-election, April 7, 1874



PROVINCE OF ONTARIO (cont’d)

Ontario South
Ottawa (City)
Ottawa (City)
Oxford North
Oxford South
Oxford South
Peel
Perth North
Perth South
Peterborough East

Peterborough West
Prescott
Prince Edward ...
Renfrew North
Renfrew South
Russell
Simcoe North
Simcoe South
Stormont
Toronto Centre
Toronto East
Victoria North

Victoria South

Waterloo North
Waterloo South
Welland
Wellington Centre
Wellington North

Wellington South

Wentworth North

Wentworth South

West Toronto
York East
York North
York West

PROVINCE OF QUEBEC

* Elected in by-election, May 23, 1874

Malcolm Cameron
Joseph Merrill Currier
Pierre St-Jean

Thomas Oliver

Ebenezer Vining Bodwell
“James Atchison Skinner
Robert Smith

Andrew Monteith
Thomas Trow

James Hall

John Bertram

Albert Hagar

Walter Ross

Peter White

John Lorn McDougall
Robert Blackburmn
Herman Henry Cook
William Carruthers Little
Cyril Archibald

Robert Wilkes

John O’Donohoe

James MacLennan
Arthur McQuade

Isaac Erb Bowman
James Young

William Alexander Thomson
George Turner Orton
Nathaniel Higinbotham
David Stirton

Thomas Bain

Joseph Rymal

Thomas Moss

James Metcalfe

Alfred Hutchinson Dymond
David Blain

Hon. John Joseph Caldwell Abbott
Joseph Alfred Mousseau
Christian Henry Pozer



PROVINCE OF QUEBEC (cont’d)

Beauharnois .................cc.coooiiiii e Ulysse Janvier Robillard
Bellechasse .............cccooooiiic e Hon. Télesphore Fournier
Berthier ... Anselme-Homere Paquet
Bonaventure ... Hon. Théodore Robitaille
BIITINIR 5 oo st s 5 oo 5 0 A 5 55 0 S 5 S Nathaniel Pettes

Chambly ... Amable Jodin

Champlain ... Hippolyte Montplaisir
CharlevoiX ............cccooiiiiii e Pierre-Alexis Tremblay
Chateauguay ..........c..oooviiiiii e Hon. Luther Hamilton Holton
Chicoutimi—Saguenay ...................cccooeieiieiiiieie, Marie Honorius Cimon
COMPLON ..o Hon. John Henry Pope
Deux-Montagnes ..................cccoooiioiieiieeeieeeeeeeee Wilfred Prévost

Dorchester ... Frangois Fortunat Rouleau
Drummond—Arthabaska ... Wilfrid Laurier

GASPE ..o, Louis George Harper
Hochelaga ... Alphonse Desjardins
Huntingdon ... Julius Scriver

Iberville ... Frangois Béchard
Jacques-Cartier ................o.cooiiiiiii e Toussaint Antoine Rodolphe Laflamme
Jollette ... Hon. Louis Frangois Georges Baby
Kamouraska ... Charles-Alphonse-Pantaléon Pelletier
Laprairi€ ............ooooiiiiioe e Alfred Pinsonneault

L2 ASSOMPLION ..o Hilaire Hurteau

Laval ... Joseph-Aldéric Ouimet

LEVIS oot Louis Honor¢ Fréchette
LISIOt oo Philippe Baby Casgrain
Lotbini€re .........o.ooooiiiiiiiii e Henri Bernier

Maskinonge .............c.coooiiiiii oo Louis Alphonse Boyer
MEGANTIC ... Edouard Emery Richard
MISSISQUOL ... William Donahue

MoONtCalM ... Firmin Dugas

MONEMAGNY ..ot Henri Thomas Taschereau
MONEMOTENCY ......oviiviiiieie e Jean Langlois

Montreal Centre ..................occooiiiiiiieeee e Michael Patrick Ryan
Montreal ESt ..o Louis Amable Jetté

Montreal OUESt ...........ooooiiiiiiiiiie e Frederick Mackenzie
Napierville ... Hon. Antoine-Aimé Dorion
NICOLEE ..o Joseph Gaudet

Ottawa (Comté) .............oooiiiiiiiicee e, Alonzo Wright

PONtAC ... William McKay Wright
Portneuf ... Joseph Esdras Alfred De St-Georges
Quebec Centre ...........oc.oooiiiiiiiieieeeee e Hon. Joseph Edouard Cauchon
Quebec ESt ... Isidore Thibaudeau

Quebec OUESE ..o Hon. Thomas McGreevy



PROVINCE OF QUEBEC (cont’d)

Quebec (Comte) ........ooooiiiiiiiie e Joseph Philippe René Adolphe Caron
Quebec (Comte) ........oooooiiiiiiei e Hon. Pierre-Joseph-Olivier Chauveau
Richelieu ... Georges Isidore Barthe
Richmond—Wolfe ... Hon. Henry Aylmer

RImMoOusKL ..o Jean-Baptiste Romuald Fiset
Rouville ... Guillaume Cheval dit St-Jacques
Saint-Hyacinthe ... Louis Delorme

Saint-Jean ... Francgois Bourassa

SaINt-MaULiCe ..........ccoooiiiiiiiiiee e Charles Gérin Lajoie

Shefford ... Hon. Lucius Seth Huntington
Sherbrooke (Ville) ..............coooviiiiiieee Edward Towle Brooks

SOUIANGES ... Jacques Philippe Lantier

Stanstead ... Charles Carroll Colby

TEMISCOUALA ... Jean-Baptiste Pouliot

Terrebonne ..o Louis-Frangois-Rodrigue Masson
Trois-RIVICIES .......cooiiiiiiiieoeee e William McDougall

Vaudreuil ... Robert William Harwood

VErcheres .........coccoooiiiiiiiiiiiioii e Félix Geoffrion

Yamaska ... Charles Gill



Readers Note

This is the eighth volume in a series begun in the 1960s to reconstitute the early debates of the
House of Commons. The editorial approach followed here is set out in P.B. Waite’s Introduction
to the first volume (which presents the debates of 1867-1868).

These debates are a reconstruction from newspaper accounts and are in no way considered
official records of the House of Commons. Numbers and figures misquoted in original
newspaper reports have been corrected where required. The exact names of bills, votes, etc.,
sourced from the Journals of the House, occasionally replace the more dubious titles found in
unofficial records of the day. Professional designations have been suppressed in favour of the
official names of individuals. These were exhaustively researched using parliamentary guides,
the Dictionary of Canadian Biography, and the Library of Parliament’s own PARLINFO
database, where readers may consult the political biographies of Canada’s early
parliamentarians. The names of electoral districts have been verified and made consistent, but
readers should note that other place names, which may have changed since the 1800s, have been
left “as reported” here.

There has been no attempt to clean up awkward or incomplete sentences. The reader must adopt
the mindset of a reporter in the late 1800s, writing furiously in a noisy, bustling environment.
Likewise, the language of debate is rooted in the times, with the appearance of archaic words and
turns of phrase and liberal references to the classics of the day. Those with a keen eye will note
some creative spelling and variations in the capitalization of parliamentary terms, a lack of
consistency that honours the flavour of the times.
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The first session of the Third Parliament of the Dominion was
opened today by Lord Dufferin. The weather was of a particularly
unfavourable character, and the fickleness of the elements was
successful in detracting from the ceremony a certain amount of the
success which it would undoubtedly have enjoyed. A wet snow fell
from the dawn of day up to three o’clock in the afternoon, and
during that period clouds of an ominous character hovered
immediately above the city.

At an early hour national flags were hoisted on conspicuous
places, and by three o’clock a large crowd had assembled on the hill
to see His Excellency as he passed.

Outside the Parliament Buildings a guard of honour of the
Garrison Artillery, consisting of one hundred rank and file, was
stationed, under the command of Major Eagleton, Capt. Graham,
Capt. Patrick, and Lieut. Evans.

A little after two o’clock Sir John A. Macdonald passed through
the already large crowd before the buildings, and entered the House
by the members’ private entrance.

His Excellency, on leaving Rideau Hall, proceeded direct to the
Houses of Parliament, accompanied by his staft, viz., Col. Fletcher,
Military Secretary; Lieutenant Hamilton, A.D.C.; and Lieutenant
Ward, RN., AD.C., and escorted by the Ottawa Cavalry Troop,
commended by Captain Sparks. The band of the Ottawa Brigade of
Garrison Artillery was also in attendance. The thoroughfares from
Rideau Hall to the House were crowded with spectators.

Shortly after three o’clock the Governor General drove up to the
main entrance of the building, when the guard of honour presented
arms. The way to the Senate Chamber was kept clear by a
detachment of the Garrison Artillery, the men lining the way in the
direction of the Chamber, and a body of the Dominion police, under
the command of Supt. O’Neill.

His Excellency at once proceeded to the Senate, the galleries of
which were comfortably filled. Upon His Excellency taking his seat
upon the throne, a salute of nineteen guns was fired by the Ottawa
Field Battery in close proximity to the building.

The officers composing the staff were Colonels Aumond, Wiley,
Macpherson, Powell, J. Ross, Jackson, Majors White, Wickstead,
Perry, Matice, B.M.; Adjt. Walsh; and Lieuts. Harris, Patrick and
O’Meara. Judge Galt and Sherift Powell took up a position on the
left of His Excellency, and the Premier was stationed on the right.

The newly elected House of Commons met today for the
despatch of business, in compliance with His Excellency’s
proclamation.

Nearly all the Ministers were in their seats, including the
following: Messrs. Dorion, Cartwright, Burpee (St. John — City &
County), Coffin, Laird, Smith, Huntington, Fournier, Ross and
Macdonald (Glengarry). Among the members present were Sir John

A. Macdonald, Messrs. Holton, Cameron (Ontario South), Anglin,
Tupper, Cameron (Cardwell), Mitchell, Robitaille, Cauchon,
Young, Colby, Brooks, Jetté, Oliver, Pickard, Mills, Forbes,
Geoffrion, Brouse, De Cosmos, Cameron (Huron South), Wood
(Hamilton), Stirton, Ross (Prince Edward), Walker, Smith (Selkirk),
Dymond, Ferris, Ross (Durham East), Snider, Smith (Peel), Ross
(Middlesex West), Bowman, Lantier, McGregor, Killam, Tremblay,
Thomson (Welland), O’Donohoe, McDonnell (Inverness), Irving,
Laflamme, Fréchette, Metcalfe, Laurier, Casey, Ray, Thompson
(Haldimand), Casgrain, Landerkin, Blain, Cockbum, Paterson,
Fleming, McDonald, Galbraith, Bowell, Stephenson, Rochester,
Mousseau, Masson, Ouimet, Caron, Wright (Ottawa County),
Wright (Pontiac), Norris, Palmer, Kirkpatrick, Haggart, Brown,
Baby, White, Rochester, Donahue, Cheval, Gill, Harwood, Prévost,
Barthe, Aylmer, Robillard, Robitaille, De St-Georges, Boyer,
Harvey, Rymal, MacKenzie (Montreal West), Yeo, Davies,
Sinclair, Pinsonneault and Jodoin.

Among the members present, in addition to those already
mentioned, are Messrs. Gibson, Macdonald (Comwall), Wilkes,
Abbott, Flesher, Schultz, Currier, McDougall (Trois-Rivieres),
Ryan, Brouse, Scriver, Gillies, Béchard, Paquet, St-Jean, Wallace,
Kerr, Higinbotham, McQuade, Horton, Charlton, Orton and Burpee
(Sunbury).

At three o’clock the Clerk, Mr. Alfred Patrick, took the chair at
the table. At 3.10 the usual three knocks were heard at the door, the
Sergeant-at-Arms answered the summons and returning said: “Mr.
Clerk—A Message from His Excellency the Governor General.”

Mr. Clerk directed the admission of the Messenger, upon which
Mr. René Kimber, Gentleman Usher of the Black Rod, entered, and
after bowing to both sides of the House, said: “Gentlemen—the
Governor General desires the immediate attendance of this
Honourable House in the Senate.” The Usher of the Black Rod then
withdrew, and all the members of the House followed Mr. Clerk
into the Senate Chamber. Here His Excellency was found seated on
the Throne, surrounded by a large number of staft officers. Several
senators and a few ladies occupied seats on the floor. Hon.
Mr. Mackenzie stood on the left of the Throne; Col. Fletcher, Scots
Fusilier Guards, Military Secretary to His Excellency, stood on the
right; and the Hon. Senator Christie, Speaker of the Senate,
occupied a chair at the foot of the Throne.

On the arrival of the Commons the Speaker said: “Hon.
Gentlemen of the Senate, Gentlemen of the House of Commons,
His Excellency the Governor General does not see fit to declare the
causes of his summoning the present Parliament until a Speaker for
the House of Commons shall have been chosen according to law,
but tomorrow, at the hour of three o’clock in the afternoon, His
Excellency will declare the causes of his summoning the present
Parliament.”
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The statement was repeated in French, after which the Commons
retired to their Chamber.

His Excellency shortly afterwards left the Senate Chamber and
the building, the guard of honour presenting arms. As he drove
away another salute was fired, and the band struck up the National
Anthem.

#* k%

THE HOUSE OF COMMONS

In the House of Commons the ladies’ gallery was well filled. The
remaining galleries were comparatively empty.

On the members re-assembling in the Chamber, Mr. Alfred
Patrick, the Clerk, said the first duty was the election of a Speaker.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE: Mr. Patrick, Sir, it is my duty today,
in order to provide for the organization of the House, to propose to
the House the name of a gentleman as its presiding officer, and I
have no doubt that the gentleman whom I intend to propose is one
who will command the confidence of this House, one in whose
strict impartiality the House will safely confide, and whose long
Parliamentary experience justifies the House in confiding to him its
presidency. I need not, Sir, enlarge upon the qualifications of the
gentleman whom I intend to propose, as he is known to almost all
the members of this House, and I have no doubt that the experience
of the House with that gentleman in the chair will justify the
selection that will be made today. I have, therefore, the honour,
without saying any more, to propose the Hon. Timothy Warren
Anglin, the member for Gloucester, as Speaker for this Honourable
House.

Hon. Mr. DORION (in French) said he considered it due to the
Maritime Provinces to elect a member from that portion of the
Dominion to preside over the deliberation of the House of
Commons. The gentleman who had been named had had a long
experience in parliamentary affairs, was a man of high character
and dignified bearing, and would fill the position to which he had
been nominated with honour to himself and advantage to the House.
He had always conducted himself with propriety and decorum in
the proceedings of the Legislature, and he felt sure that he would, in
his new position, maintain that good order which was necessary and
proper in the conduct of the affairs which engaged the attention of
Parliament. He had great pleasure in seconding the nomination.
(Cheers.)

The CLERK put the motion and declared it carried. The
Speaker-elect was led from his seat, in the front row of the
government benches, to the chair, by Hon. Messrs. Mackenzie and
Dorion, amid loud cheers.

The SPEAKER, standing on the second step, then addressed the
House in the following terms: I most sincerely thank the House for
the high honour they have done me in electing me unanimously
their Speaker. 1 shall endeavour, while I occupy the chair, to prove
myself worthy of the honour by conducting myself with the strictest
impartiality and the strictest regard for the rules and practice of this
House of Parliament, and by the most zealous discharge of the
duties which I have now undertaken. (Cheers.) I am satisfied that
whenever questions of doubt or difficulty shall arise, as they may
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arise in the course of time, I can look with perfect confidence to the
men of large Parliamentary experience on both sides of the House
for their counsel and assistance in my determination of these
questions, and I am satisfied also that I may rely upon the aid of all
members on both sides of this House to assist me in maintaining the
dignity and decorum which befit the House of Commons of
Canada.

The SPEAKER then took the chair and the mace was laid on the
table.

Prayers

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE moved the adjournment of the House.

Right Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said he had paused a
moment in the expectation that some congratulations would have
been offered to Mr. Speaker from the other side of the House, to
which it had been his desire to add his own congratulations. He
could only say that he now offered Mr. Speaker his congratulations
upon his elevation to the high position which he now held. He must
confess that he did not anticipate until very recently that this hon.
friend Mr. Anglin’s name would have been submitted for the chair
of the Speaker. He had thought that his hon. friend from
Chéateauguay (Hon. Mr. Holton) would have been named for that
high position and on behalf of that side of the House he must say
that they felt that if his name had been proposed it would have been
acceptable. From his long Parliamentary experience, from the
careful study which he had made of Parliamentary rules and
practices, there could be no doubt that he would have made a
Speaker second to none who had presided in the Dominion or
Provincial Parliaments.

He was not aware that the present Speaker, although he had a
great deal of parliamentary experience, had paid so much attention
to the rules of Parliament as that hon. gentleman. He knew,
however, that he had long Parliamentary experience, and he had no
reason at all to doubt that he had paid attention to the rules of
Parliament, and he had every reason to believe that his tenure of
office would be marked as a distinguished one. He was quite certain
that the industry which was one of his striking characteristics would
make him master, if he was not already master, of the rules of
Parliament, and he was quite satistied also, from the logical turn of
his mind and the marked intellectual ability which distinguished
him, he would satisfactorily and ably apply these rules to the
proceedings of Parliament. He concluded by again congratulating
him on his election to the chair. (Cheers.)

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said he had not intended to address the
House on this occasion, but the very pointed, and he might say
gratifying, reference which the right hon. gentleman who led the
other side of the House had made to him would render it proper that
he should say very few words in reference to what he had been
pleased to say, and further, make some addition to the
congratulations which had been offered to the Speaker.

It was exceedingly gratifying. It was one of the gratifying events
which mitigated the disagreements of public life, that after having
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been opposed—steadfastly opposed—to the right hon. gentleman’s
Administration during the whole course of its existence, the
personal and official relations that had existed between them as
members of this House had been of that agreeable character which
had led to the gratitying observations they had just heard.

He might say that highly as he valued the dignity to which this
House had just elevated the Speaker, he had never contemplated the
occupation of this position himself. It had never, he had reason to
believe, been considered in the counsel of the political party to
which he belonged; and whether or not, if it had been so considered,
and the position had been tendered to him, he would have accepted,
it, it would be futile for him now to say.

He joined with his hon. friend who had moved and seconded the
Speaker’s nomination, and with the right hon. gentleman in
congratulating the Speaker upon his appointment as Speaker of this
House. He had no doubt that they would all have reason to be
satisfied with the unanimous choice which they had made. Having
had the advantage of sitting by the Speaker’s side during seven
sessions of the Parliament of Canada, having been a close observer
of his devotion to the public service, and having had abundant
opportunities of appreciating the great ability which he had brought
to bear upon the discharge of his duties, he had no reason to doubt
that his new duties would be discharged with the fidelity which had

characterized his conduct in every position to which he had been
called. (Cheers.)

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said that had the nomination of
Mr. Speaker been made by some independent private members of
the House, he would have had the greatest possible pleasure of
offering him the congratulations which the right hon. gentleman had
referred to as something missing on that side of the House; but
having proposed him himself the proposition was clearly a
compliment in itself as far as he was personally concerned. Were it
otherwise he was quite sure that nothing would give him greater
pleasure than to join in the congratulations which he was glad to say
the Speaker had received from both sides of the House. (Cheers.)

Right Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD enquired if it would
be convenient for the hon. gentleman to state if the Address would
be taken up tomorrow evening.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said he was not prepared to say, on
account of some matters, which, as the right hon. gentleman knew,
had to be attended to tomorrow evening. It might not be convenient
or it might be.

The House then adjourned at 3.30 p.m.

The formal opening will take place tomorrow, when the Speech
from the Throne will be delivered.
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The weather today has been clear and cold, accompanied by a
sharp, searching wind. The sun shone brightly during the greater
part of the day, but little warmth was derived from its rays, which
threw upon the newly fallen snow myriads of dazzling
scintillations.

At noon the temperature of the atmosphere had become slightly
reduced, and an almost imperceptible thaw was the result. At this
hour the city presented a bustling and crowded appearance, and a
number of individuals had already stationed themselves in the
corridor leading to the galleries of the Senate Chamber. The stream
of persons proceeding to the building as the hour wore on assumed
large proportions, and before the galleries of the Senate were
opened to the public the corridors without were literally packed
with anxious ladies and children, who had been patiently waiting
for upwards of an hour for the first choice of the most commanding
seats. As soon as the doors were opened a rush was made for the
front seats, all of which were immediately taken possession of.
Long before two o’clock there was scarcely a seat to be obtained in
the galleries of the Senate.

A large crowd assembled on Parliament Square, and every point
which would command a good view of His Excellency’s arrival
was crowded with spectators of both sexes. At 2.40 p.m. the guard
of honour, which consisted of 100 rank and file of the Govemor
General’s Foot Guards, arrived under the command of Capt. Horace
Lee, Lieut. Todd and Ensign Hamond. The Ottawa Field Battery
was stationed on the ground west of the Parliament Buildings, and
when His Excellency drove up, a little after three o’clock, they fired
a salute, the reverberations of which were perceptibly experienced
within the buildings.

#* kK

THE SENATE

On ecither side of the Senate Chamber rows of seats were
occupied by ladies in full dress, while in the centre of the floor the
Senators and several distinguished strangers were accommodated
with seats. The scene was one of the most gorgeous that has been
witnessed for some years on the floor of the Chamber. No available
space was left unoccupied. The rich attire of the ladies formed a
marked contrast with the plain dress costumes of the gentlemen.
The galleries were crowded to excess, the occupants, as before
stated, being principally representatives of the fairer sex.

A few minutes before 3 o’clock Lady Dufferin entered by the
door on the left of the throne. She wore a lavender satin dress,
richly trimmed, and carried in her hand a magnificent bouquet of
choice flowers.

Prominent amongst the ladies on the floor of the Chamber were
Mrs. Anglin, Mrs. Shaw (Toronto), Mrs. O. Ford, Mrs. J. Sinclair,

Mrs. Casgrain, Mrs. Letellier, Mrs. E. Sherwood and daughter,
Miss Kearns, Mrs. Anderson and daughter, Mrs. Dupense, Mrs. and
Miss O’Connor, Mrs. Lyons, Mrs. Trudeau, Miss Bell, Mrs. and
Misses Dennis, Mrs. Drummond and daughters, Mrs. Carruthers
and daughter, Mrs. Hughes, Miss Vidal, Miss Chisholm, Mrs.
Hastings, Miss Thompson, Mrs. Wright, Miss Ferris, Miss
Cameron, Mrs. Wickstead and the Misses Wickstead, Mrs. Slater,
Miss Slater, Mrs. Deevly, Mrs. Noel, Miss Coultbee, Miss Odell,
Mrs. Tilton, Mrs. MacFarland, Mrs. Ferguson, Miss Bell, Mrs.
McLennan, Mrs. Walker, Mrs. Irving, Mrs. and Miss Kingsford,
Mrs. and Miss McNab, Miss Pigott, Mrs. Armstrong and daughter,
Mrs. Featherstone, Mrs. and Miss Himsworth, Mrs. Kidd, Mrs.
Palmer and daughter, Mrs. Teakles, Mrs. and Misses Russell, Mrs.
Gallagher, Mrs. Alexander, Mrs. Buckingham, Mrs. Chapeau, Mrs.
Cowper Cox, Mrs. Pennock, Mrs. Fox, Miss Philps, Mrs. and Miss
Russel, Mrs. McPherson, Mrs. Tallal and friend, Mrs. Osbome,
Mrs. Poetter and Miss Poetter, Mrs. Blain and niece, Mrs. Guan,
Mrs. and the Misses Foran, Mrs. Hall, and Mrs. Walker.

The gentlemen on the floor of the House, other than the Senators,
were Mayor Featherstone, Judge Armstrong, Judge Lyon, Col.
Shar, Hon. J. O’Connor, Hon. Mr. Cameron, Mr. W.H. Walker, Mr.
Bouchette, Mr. Smith, Mr. JH. McTavish, M.P.P., Hon. Mr.
Howard and the Rev. Mason Gallagher.

Shortly after three o’clock His Excellency LORD DUFFERIN
entered the Chamber, attended by his staff and Hon. Messrs.
Letellier and Huntington. Having taken his seat upon the Throne,
Hon. Mr. Speaker Christie commanded the Gentleman Usher of the
Black Rod to proceed to the House of Commons and acquaint that
House that it was His Excellency’s pleasure they should attend in
the Senate Chamber immediately. The Usher of the Black Rod
shortly after returned, followed by the Speaker and the Sergeant-at-
Arms, bearing the Mace.

The SPEAKER, having taken up his position at the bar, said:
The House of Commons have elected me as their Speaker, though I
am but little able to fulfil the important duties thus assigned to me.
May it please Your Excellency, if in performance of those duties I
should at any time fall into error, I pray that the fault may be
imputed to me and not to the Commons, whose servant [ am, and
who, through me, the better to enable them to discharge their duty
to their Queen and country, humbly claim all their undoubted rights
and privileges, especially that they may have freedom of speech in
their debates, access to Your Excellency’s person at all seasonable
times, and that their proceedings may receive from Your
Excellency most favourable consideration.

Hon. Mr. CHRISTIE: Mr. Speaker, I am commanded by His
Excellency the Governor General to declare to you that he freely
confides in the duty and attachment of the House of Commons to



COMMONS DEBATES

Her Majesty’s person and Government and, not doubting that their
proceedings will be conducted with wisdom, temper and prudence,
he grants and upon all occasions will recognize and allow their
constitutional privileges. I am commanded also to assure you that
the Commons shall have ready access to His Excellency upon all
seasonable occasions, and that their proceedings, as well as your
words and actions, will constantly receive from him the most
favourable construction.

His Excellency, LORD DUFFERIN, then read the following
Speech from the Throne:

Honourable Gentlemen of the Senate:
Gentlemen of the House of Commons:

I have convoked Parliament at the earliest moment consistent
with the delay entailed by the recent dissolution.

Your attention will be invited during the present session to
measures having reference to the representation of the people in
Parliament, embracing the system now prevailing in Great Britain
and in most other countries enjoying Constitutional Government, of
taking votes by ballot, and to the establishment of a General Court
of Appeal. Measures will also be submitted to you for the
amendment of the laws relating to controverted elections, the
militia, and insolvency.

The enactment of 1872, respecting the Canadian Pacific Railway,
having failed to secure the prosecution of that great enterprise, you
will be called upon to consider what plan will best and most
speedily provide the means of transcontinental communication with
British Columbia. A report of the Chief Engineer will be laid before
you, showing what progress was made during the past year in the
surveys connected with the proposed line. The destruction of the
railway offices by fire involved a serious loss of maps, plans and
papers, the possession of which would have made the report more
complete.

The canal and harbour improvements are being vigorously
prosecuted, with a view to ensure adequate accommodation for the
rapidly growing trade of the country. The Report of the Chief
Engineer of the Department of Public Works, on the proposed canal
between the Gulf of St. Lawrence and the Bay of Fundy will be
submitted for your consideration.

With the progress already made in the construction of the
Intercolonial Railway, another year will be required to complete it.
A report indicating its actual condition will be laid before
Parliament, and a measure will be introduced to vest in the
Department of Public Works the powers now exercised by the
Board of Railway Commissioners.

The question of compensation due to the Dominion for the
fishery privileges conceded to the United States by the Treaty of
Washington, has given rise to a renewal of negotiations tending to
widen reciprocal trade relations with that country. At the instance of
my Government, the Imperial authorities have given directions to
the British Minister to discuss the whole subject with the
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Administration at Washington, and have associated with him for
this purpose a Canadian Commissioner.

Gentlemen of the House of Commons:

The accounts of the last financial year will be laid before you, as
well as a statement of the receipts and expenditures of the present
year, at the earliest practicable period. [ regret to state that the
receipts of the current year will not be sufficient to meet the
expenditures. It will therefore be necessary for you to consider the
best means to be adopted for making good the anticipated
deficiency. The estimates for the ensuing year will be laid before
you. They have been prepared with as much regard to economy as
is consistent with the efficiency of the public service.

Honourable Gentlemen of the Senate:
Gentlemen of the House of Commons:

The combined efforts of the Dominion and Provincial
Governments to promote immigration have met with a reasonable
measure of success, thus adding a considerable number of desirable
persons from other countries to our industrial population.

Notwithstanding the commercial depression which, through
exceptional causes, prevailed to some extent during the past year, it
is satisfactory to know that the general prosperity was not thereby
seriously affected. I do not doubt but that, as the great natural
resources of the Dominion become more widely appreciated, the
results will be a healthy stimulus to the enterprise and energy of our
people, and a still larger accession to our numbers.

I trust that your deliberations may be directed by wisdom and
aided by Divine Providence.

After the Speech had been read in French, His Excellency retired,
and the Commons returned to their Chamber. In the galleries of the
Commons there were but few spectators.

#* ok ok

THE HOUSE OF COMMONS

The SPEAKER took the chair at 3 p.m. In a few minutes the
three knocks from Black Rod were heard at the outer door of the
Commons. On that functionary being admitted, he stated that the
Governor General desired the immediate attendance of that
honourable House in the Senate Chamber. The Speaker, attended by
the Sergeant-at-Arms, carrying the Mace, and the members, then
left the Chamber.

The members return to the Chamber.

Prayers

On returning,

The SPEAKER reported that in the Senate he had, in their
names and on their behalf, made the usual claim of privileges,
which His Excellency had been pleased to accord them.
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Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE then introduced the usual bill
respecting the administration of oaths of office.

The SPEAKER informed the House that when the Commons
attended His Excellency in the Senate Chamber, His Excellency
was pleased to make a Speech to both Houses, of which, to prevent
mistakes, he had procured a copy.

The reading of the Speech was dispensed with.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE moved that the speech of His
Excellency be taken into consideration on Monday next.—Carried.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE next moved the following resolutions:

That the votes and proceedings of the House be printed, being
first perused by The Speaker, and that he do appoint the printing,
thereof, and that no person but such as he shall appoint do presume
to print the same.—Carried.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE also moved that select Standing
Committees of this House for the present session be appointed for
the following purposes, viz., (1) on privileges and elections; (2) on
expiring laws; (3) on railways, canals and telegraph lines; (4) on
miscellaneous private bills; (5) on standing orders; (6) on printing;
(7) on public accounts; (8) on banking and commerce; (9) on
immigration and colonization—which said Committees shall
severally be empowered to examine and enquire into all such
matters and things as may be referred to them by the House, and to
report from time to time their observations and opinions thereon
with power to send for persons, papers, and records.—Carried.

The remaining formal resolutions were carried.

The SPEAKER laid before the House the report of the Librarian
of the House of Commons on the state of the Library of Parliament,
and next called the attention of members to the reception to be

given by Lady Dufferin in the Senate Chamber this evening.
Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE moved the adjournment of the House.
The House adjourned at 3.50 p.m.

His Excellency the Earl and the Countess of Dufferin held a
drawing room in the Senate Chamber this evening when a very
large number of ladies and gentlemen were presented. Lord and
Lady Dufferin entered the building shortly after 9 o’clock, being
received by a guard of honour from the Governor General’s Foot
Guards. The band of the Guards, stationed in the vestibule, played
“God Save the Queen™ as the Governor General entered.

Lord and Lady Dufferin took up a position on the throne,
supported by the Ministers, aides-de-camp, and staff officers.
Presentations then commenced, according to precedence. Senators
were presented first, the members of the House of Commons next,
then high officials, civilians and officers of the militia. The
presentations occupied over half an hour, the band of the Guards
performing selections in the meantime. Shortly before ten o’clock
Lord and Lady Dufferin left the building, and soon afterwards the
assemblage dispersed.

The scene was a most brilliant one: the magnificent chamber,
illuminated by innumerable jets of gas, formed the setting of a
picture in which the gay dresses of the ladies and the bright hues of
military costumes, contrasted with the sober civilian black, mingled
in pleasing variety.

An adjourned meeting of the Press Gallery was held this
afternoon and was largely attended. Several rules were adopted for
the governance of the Gallery, including one prohibiting the
admission of Civil Service employees to the gallery after this
session, and another declaring that the President should be elected
for the whole term of a Parliament.
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[Note: The opening of the 1874 session of Parliament was
dominated by the uncertainty over the intentions of Louis Riel,
elected in the Manitoba riding of Provencher in January. The
Globe, in its issue of March 31, describes the excitement in
Parliament the previous day as the Commons began the debate on
the Address in answer to the Speech from the Throne.]

That Riel was lurking somewhere in the neighbourhood of
Ottawa was generally understood during yesterday, and all sorts of
rumours were in circulation as to his intention. However, at half-
past twelve o’clock he presented himself at the Clerk’s office, took
the oath of allegiance, and signed the roll. The news soon spread
and speculation was rife as to what would happen next. When the
House met, many eyes were directed to the vacant seat in the
northwest comer of the Chamber, where, on the back row of
benches, to the seat occupied last session by Mr. Church was
attached a label marked with the ominous name of Riel. But Riel
did not appear, and it is confidently stated he has left Ottawa, or
possibly is hiding away awaiting the changes of fortune somewhere
not far off. His late opponent, Mr. Hamelin, as the Speaker
informed the House, had written a letter claiming the seat, on the
ground that Riel was disqualified, but the document had, of course,
no effect under the new system of remitting all such questions to a
judicial tribunal, and Riel, therefore, had in that respect nothing to
gain by coming to Ottawa. He can pocket his mileage, however,
even although he never enters the Chamber, and this on the round
trip between Fort Garry and Ottawa is no trifle. That he can be
allowed to sit in the House, with an indictment hanging over him
for murder, is quite out of the question.

The opening speeches in the debate on the Address are the theme
of general congratulatory remark. An old Parliamentarian, and one
of the most notable members of the House, remarked that Mr.
Moss” speech was the first of its kind that he had ever known to be
a complete success. The speaker’s tone was manly and independent,
and he showed, moreover, that whilst a loyal supporter of the
Administration, he was capable of bringing to bear upon the policy
of the Government a thoroughly impartial and critical judgment.
Mr. Moss’ political friends cheered him heartily on rising, but he
was applauded by both sides of the House when he concluded.

Mr. LAURIER, the seconder, spoke in French, a circumstance
that deprived many members of the pleasure of fully understanding
a speech that those who could enjoy it declared to be of the highest
order. Mr. Laurier’s appearance is youthful, but he is already well
known as an eloquent public speaker, and he addressed the House
with the quiet but earnest manner of a practised debater. He, like
the mover of the Address, was warmly cheered by both
Ministerialists and Opposition members when he sat down.

Before the rising of the House Mr. BOWELL moved a
resolution which would bring up the whole question of Riel’s
position tomorrow.

The SPEAKER took the chair at 3 p.m.
Prayers

THE ELECTION FOR PROVENCHER

The SPEAKER stated that on Friday last he received a
document relating to the Provencher election, which he felt at the
time was not his duty to submit to the House. However, as the
matter was one of importance, affecting the privileges of the House,
more or less remotely, and as he had so recently been called to the
chair he thought it right to state what was the nature of the
document, and what were his reasons for not submitting it to the
House.

A gentleman named Hamelin had stated that he was a candidate
for the representation of Provencher at the last election, and he
claimed that Mr. Riel, who had been returned as elected for that
county, was disqualified. On account of that disqualification this
gentleman claimed that he himself should be declared by this House
the sitting member for Provencher. No petition regarding this
matter had been presented, and perhaps on that account a technical
objection might be raised against the document. It did not raise any
question of privilege directly, or vindicate any privilege in any way.
It simply made a claim to the seat which the Returning Officer
declared to be the seat of Louis Riel.

As the law passed in the session of 1873 had taken the settlement
of these matters out of the hands of the House and transferred it to
the Judges of the different Provinces, and as this document was
merely a personal claim, and, as he had said, this House had no
right to interfere between these individuals, whatever the rights of
the case might be, in vindication of its own privilege, he had
thought it his duty to submit the document to the House, and to
inform the House of his decision and the reason upon which it was
based.

#* % ok

PETITIONS
The following petitions were presented:—

Mr. CHISHOLM—From Messrs. W.H. Storey and others,
praying for further protection for Canadian manufacturers.

Mr. MacKENZIE (Montreal West)—From the citizens of
Montreal, for an Act to incorporate a company to establish a line for



COMMONS DEBATES

10

the conveyance of freight between the Western States and the
interior of this continent and Europe, via Montreal, to be called the
International Transportation Company.

Mr. HALL—From Mr. Boyd and others, for an Act to
incorporate a company to open up a line of water communication
by means of canals and water courses between the Georgian Bay
and the Bay of Quinte.

Mr. IRVING—For an Act respecting the financial affairs of the
Grand Trunk Railway Company, praying that an Act may pass
relating to their financial affairs and empowering them to manage a
system of superannuation and insurance beneficial to their
employees.

Mr. ROSS (Durham East)—From Geo. Dartnell and others, for
an Act to incorporate the London and Canada Bank.

Mr. PATERSON—From Messrs. Meyn, Woodgate and others
for an Act to prohibit the manufacture and sale of intoxicating
liquors in this Dominion.

#* ok

RESIGNATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS

Right Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD asked if the leader of
the Government had any statement to make with regard to any
resignation or appointment that had been received or given. He had
no doubt the House and the country would receive with great
interest any explanations or communications the hon. gentleman
might think it right to make.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said he had no objection to making the
statement the right hon. gentleman desired, but he thought the hon.
gentleman himself always desired that this statement should be
made after the important stage of the business, the Address, had
been disposed of.

Right Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD: Very well, but my
hon. friend from Chéateauguay (Hon. Mr. Holton) always insisted
most pertinaciously that I was wrong. [ am glad to find 1 was
correct at the time.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said the right hon. gentleman during his
term of office established a long line of precedents, some of which
he thought were vicious, but which were now binding upon the
House.

Right Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD: Vice cannot be
binding. (Hear, hear, and laughter.)

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said he was surprised that the right hon.
gentleman should be one of the first to call in question one of his
own precedents—(Hear, hear, and laughtery—which, as he had
said, he had maintained very pertinaciously against his (Hon.
Mr. Holton’s) pertinacious objections. (Hear, hear.)

#* kK

THE ADDRESS

On the motion for the consideration of His Excellency’s Speech
at the opening of the session,
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Mr. MOSS rose to move the Address in reply thereto, and was
received with loud cheers. In opening, he said he was aware that
special indulgence was always extended to the man who was
charged with the duty of moving the resolutions before the House
upon this occasion. He claimed that indulgence, not alone on
account of his Parliamentary inexperience. He would endeavour
also to establish another and a special claim upon the forbearance of
the House, and that was that he would be as brief as possible.

Before referring to the subjects naturally suggested by the Speech
from the Throne, he might be permitted to make an observation or
two upon the circumstances under which the third Parliament of the
Dominion of Canada was assembled. Its predecessor was unusually
short lived. That was scarcely a fate which would have been
predicted for it, even by those political soothsayers who pretended
to discern the cloud when no bigger than a man’s hand.

Elected at a time when, the question of Confederation having
been settled and placed on a firm basis, parties might have been
supposed to be well defined; elected, too, after a severe struggle at
the polls, it might have been expected that it would continue to
perform its functions to the end of its natural term of existence. The
influences which gave its particular political complexion to that
House had been already pretty well discussed upon the floor of
Parliament, but whatever these influences might have been, certain
it was, at any rate, that a large majority of the members were
returned as supporters of the right hon. gentleman then at the head
of the Government.

A strong government always enjoyed a great advantage in
legislation, as well as in administration, because they were not
subject to the temptation to consult selfish and individual interests
which was apt to beset a Government dependent upon a small
majority, and could fearlessly introduce measures from which a
weak Government would shrink.

Accordingly, it was supposed by those who took an interest in
public matters that it would fall to the lot of the late Government to
deal with many subjects of the highest importance. Such subjects
were urgently demanding that solution which wise legislation
offered. They were questions closely connected with the material
advancement and prosperity of this country. Some of them might
tend to the consolidation of our great Confederation. The want of
attention to some others might tend to interfere very seriously with
the consummation of its integrity. The Parliament and the
Government which could have met those questions and settled them
would have eamned the gratitude of the people of this country and a
high place in its future history.

It was not the fortune, however, of the late Parliament to
accomplish that task. It was, indeed, called upon to consider some
questions, and, notably, one of great importance to our national
well-being, and it might be that it would yet be remembered in
history in connection with that question; but most of its work it was
obliged to leave undone, and upon this House had descended the
high responsibility and the great privilege of dealing with those
matters. He thought he could say that great incentives were not
wanting to the members of this House to exertions in the direction
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indicated, and that there were strong personal and political reasons
for their being earnest in their attention to legislative duties they
would be called upon to discharge.

He believed this House to be the result of the free choice of the
people. (Hear, hear.) A great national crisis had occurred; popular
feeling and sentiment were keenly alive to the importance of the
present and the coming time, and he believed they had made their
choice wisely and well. (Hear, hear.) But there were other motives
which were not wanting to induce the members of this House to
earnest exertion. The questions which would come before them for
consideration were such as might well be expected to tax to the
utmost the energies of any deliberative assembly.

He had heard a remark—and he would not have referred to it but
for the fact that it had already obtained considerable publicity—that
this Parliament was not to have the advantages which were
generally afforded to similar legislative bodies. He had heard it said
that the Government were not to be favoured with any active or
vigorous opposition. (Hear, hear.) He for one would extremely
regret were this the case. He would be very sorry indeed if it should
so happen that the country would not enjoy the benefit of the
ability, experience, and energy, out of office, as well as it had in
office, of his right hon. friend the member for Kingston (Right Hon.
Sir John A. Macdonald), and his hon. friends from Cumberland
(Hon. Mr. Tupper), Cardwell (Hon. Mr. Cameron), and
Northumberland, New Brunswick (Hon. Mr. Mitchell).

It would indeed be a misfortune if the Government did not enjoy
the advantage of criticism from such fair and candid critics. He
trusted the rumour was not correct, but if it were, it only the more
behoved the supporters of the Government to exercise an
independent, although friendly criticism towards the measure and
acts of the Administration. He trusted he might be at liberty to
indulge the hope that when the members of this House were called
upon to give an account of their stewardship they might be able to
claim that they had achieved what was expected of their
predecessors, but what they had not been able to do, and that they
had contributed their part to the building up and consolidating of
our young Dominion. (Cheers.)

There was another phase of this Parliament which presented itself
to his mind. A new Government was meeting a new House. It was
not necessary for the Administration to ask from Parliament a fair
and generous trial. Upon that question they had appealed to the
highest and most potent tribunal, the constituencies; and upon that
question the constituencies had pronounced. Far be it for him to
assume for himself to speak the sentiments or intentions of the
members of this House; yet he ventured to assure the Ministry that
if they did, as they would do, their very best to administer the
affairs of the country with a single eye to the public welfare, with a
view to promoting the best interests of the people and not alone to
the retention of their places; if they exhibited that statesmanship
and sagacity which Canada had a right to expect from her foremost
men, they would receive the eamest support, sympathy, and co-
operation of the House of Commons. (Loud cheers.) Nay, he would
even promise them more; if their course was to be regulated by the
principles to which he had just referred, they would also be

11

supported by the good sense, public spirit, intelligence, and
patriotism of their fellow countrymen. (Loud cheers.)

Referring to the resolutions which were before the House, he said
he thought they approached the consideration of them with a certain
advantage. The Premier (Hon. Mr. Mackenzie) had taken the
country into his confidence already with regard to his public
measures in a manner which, so far as he knew, was unprecedented.
It was true that sometimes when a great national question was
stirring the public mind party leaders had been obliged to inform
the country of the special views they entertained upon that
particular question; but he knew of no other instance in the history
of our country when the Premier, on the eve of a general election,
had explained the details of the policy he intended to carry out.

Upon first looking at the Speech he perceived that there was in it
abundant matter for congratulation, but closer scrutiny disclosed
what he took to be a sharp sting in its tail. The Ministry had been
under the necessity of informing the House that there was a deficit
in the finances of the country but he was glad to say the
responsibility did not lie at their doors. (Cheers.) Much as they
might regret having to convey such information to the House, there
was no reason for shirking the task, because the fault, if fault there
was, lay upon others, whose duty it was to explain to the House and
the country the origin of that fault. He had some idea—imperfect it
might be—of how the mischief arose. It did not require much
financial skill to tell what the result of enormous expenditure which
this country had witnessed since Confederation must at last result
in. It would have required a very great increase indeed in the
revenue to prevent the deficit which many had for years predicted.
Unhappily deficits could only be met in one way—that was by
increased taxation and he supposed that increase of taxation meant
a re-adjustment of the tariff. He thought he had the authority of his
right hon. friend from Kingston (Right Hon. Sir John A.
Macdonald) saying that such adjustment was necessary. What the
nature of the re-adjustment ought to be it would be premature to
discuss till the policy of the Ministry was disclosed; but he hoped
and believed that the measure they would introduce on the subject
would be of such nature as to cause no uneasiness in commercial
circles. (Hear, hear.)

It was gratitying to learn, however, from this same paragraph of
the Speech, that the estimates were to be framed with as much
regard to economy as was consistent with the efficiency of the
public service. He believed the phrase was a little stereotyped, but
he relied upon this Administration to make it not a mere matter of
form, but a real matter of substance. (Hear, hear.) He ventured to
tell them that the people of this country were deeply interested in
the question of economy, and no Government could better win a
place in the esteem and respect of the people of this country than by
introducing and carrying out a system of rigid economy in the
administration of public affairs. Parsimony was not needed; the
people were perfectly willing to give a full share of their means
when they were assured that the money would be expended for
proper purposes.

He could well conceive the difficulty which the Government
must have in curbing an expenditure, the foundation for which had
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already been so deeply laid; but he trusted the present Ministers
would not only be equal to the task, but willing to apply themselves
with vigour to economising where economy might be possible.
Economy meant reduction of taxation, and the people of this
country were so heavily taxed now that they were prepared to
receive with thankfulness any reduction whatever.

Referring to the question of the election law, he said that
Ministers had promised at an early date to consider the state of the
law, with a view to its improvement and perfection as far as
possible. That measure, it appeared, they were to submit during the
present session. This also was a matter in which the people were
deeply interested. It was the duty of the Legislature not only to give
the franchise to all who were worthy of it, but also to secure its free
exercise by some well-considered system of secret voting. (Cheers.)
He had never himself been greatly enamoured with the ballot, in the
abstract considering that every public function was best performed
in the light of publicity. (Hear, hear, and cheers from the
Opposition benches.) Upon that subject he had no doubt; yet if
gentlemen thought that this expression of opinion upon his part
involved any doubt of the efficiency of the ballot they were never
more mistaken in their lives. (Loud cheers from the Government
benches.) It might be that the ballot was a choice between two evils,
but he preferred that alternative which secured the free, unbiased,
unpurchased expression of the popular will. (Cheers.)

A certain American writer declared that freedom depended upon
representative institutions, and that they, in turn, depended upon the
ballot. To the latter portion of that opinion he did not subscribe to
the literal extent, but he did not know of any mode that could be
devised which would more effectually secure the free exercise of
the franchise, upon which our representative institutions really
depend, than the system of vote by ballot. To a great extent the
principle had already received a recognition at the hands of the
people of this country, inasmuch as it was already in operation in
the Province of New Brunswick. A ballot law had been enacted in
Ontario during the recent session and the matter had been discussed
and carried by a large majority during the first session of the last
Parliament.

He could conceive of no argument which could be supplied in
favour of the ballot with respect to an individual Province which
did not apply with equal force to the whole Dominion. The
sentimental argument that the system was sneaking, unmanly, and
un-British might be dismissed without lengthened notice, and he
would simply say in reply to it that he knew of nothing which could
be more unmanly or un-British than that which tended to keep from
voters the free exercise of the franchise. (Cheers.) The argument
that the franchise was a trust to be exercised by a limited portion of
the community for the benefit of the rest, no longer held good as a
reason for open voting, for the non-voting class was so small, and
necessarily so weak in political matters that they could not exercise
the slightest influence upon the voting class. The principle might be
treated as settled and the question before the House would be
mainly one of detail.

How they could best secure perfect secrecy he took to be the
great desideratum, and he also understood that the system in force
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in the United States did not provide for this. While he did not
pretend to suggest any plan which would ensure perfect secrecy, he
ventured to hope that Government would be successful in doing so,
as well as in providing a means of scrutiny, in case such were
afterwards required.

To prove that such a desirable end should be attained, he pointed
to the British Ballot Act, which was founded upon systems and
experience in Australia, Italy, Greece, France, and the United
States, the best portions of which were retained and the
objectionable features discarded. With the example thus set before
them, he hoped the Ministry would be able to frame a good
workable measure.

Too much, however, must not be expected of the ballot as a
preventative of bribery and corruption. He did not, himself, look
upon it as a panacea for all political wrongs. He did not suppose it
would entirely put an end to bribery, but it would go a considerable
length in that direction, inasmuch as it would place great difficulty
in the way of the trafficker in votes, and leave him no assurance
that he had bribed with effect. It would be still more potent with
regard to intimidation, and would almost, if not entirely, free the
voter from the influence exercised over him by his employer, his
landlord, his creditors, or any of those powers and combinations
formed for other purposes, but used for political ends also. It might
even weaken the influence of party organizations, and relieve the
voter from an allegiance against which his conscience rebelled, but
which he feared to renounce on account of the claim to which it
would subject him amongst old political associates. All classes
would be freed from temptation, and the poorer portion of the
electors from coercion and intimidation.

With regard to Controverted Elections, he reverted in severe
terms to the way in which the measure framed by the late
Government was drawn, and point to the fact that grave doubts
were expressed by the highest authorities before the Courts as to
whether, according to the terms of the Act, such and such classes of
acts were really to be deemed corruption sufficient to make the
election void. He trusted this state of things would not be permitted
to remain and that a measure would be introduced which would
render it criminal either to accept or give a bribe. (Cheers.)

With regard to the establishment of a Supreme Court, he said it
was a matter of very great difficulty, and one which must be
approached very delicately; and he had never thought there was
much reason for assailing the late Minister of Justice (Right Hon.
Sir John A. Macdonald) for the deliberation with which he
proceeded in that direction. He referred to the Act recently passed
by the Ontario Legislature for the creation of an independent
Provincial Court of Appeal, which would no longer make it
possible for a judge who had already engaged upon a case to act
with regard to it at a subsequent stage. Although the Bench of
Ontario had hitherto laboured under that disadvantage in respect to
appeals, he was proud that, notwithstanding the imperfections of the
system, so well satistied had the people of the Province been that
the number of appeals to the Privy Council were wonderfully few,
and the number of judgments there reversed a unit. (Cheers.)
Whatever legislation was to be made in this House would in all
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probability be framed without reference to the Provincial Act to
which he had just referred. Some portion of that scheme might,
therefore, be rendered unnecessary, and he reminded the Ministry
of the facts just recapitulated, in order that they might consider any
amendment which the changed circumstances necessitated. He
hoped, at all events, the proposition of the Government with
reference to this matter would be worthy of the Dominion of
Canada.

He next referred to the promised reform in the militia system,
paying a high tribute to the gallantry, patriotism and unselfishness
of the volunteer forces of the country, and said he held it was the
duty of the Government to encourage and assist them as fully as
possible. He hoped they would in their measure propose an increase
of pay to the militia, which had up to this time been wretchedly
paid for the amount of work performed. He felt quite confident that
Canada never expected her sons to fit themselves for her service
without proper compensation. (Cheers.) He combated the idea that
because our neighbours across the line were not inclined to be
troublesome, therefore, there was no necessity for a trained militia.
He thought there was no security like being well prepared, and he
advocated the maintenance of an effective force, if for no other
reason than to create amongst our people a spirit of nationality and
self-reliance. He confessed that he had a very strong sympathy with
the party which had recently been formed with the avowed purpose
of fostering this national spirit, denied that it had anything in its
constitution or purposes akin to “nativism” or “know-nothingism”,
and asserted they were equally willing to embrace in their ranks the
newly arrived immigrant and the native-born Canadian.

He was strongly opposed to any disturbance of our relations with
the mother country. Our people were very far from desiring
separation; and whether as a Colony or as a part of the Consolidated
Empire, it was their wish to form a portion of the group which
clustered round the august mother of nations. (Loud cheers.)

Reverting to the promised amendment of the Insolvency Law, he
recited the ineffectual attempt of Lord Westbury to make a
satisfactory law, and declared it to be his own conviction that no
law upon the subject would be so which did not give a hundred
cents in the dollar to all creditors, and a free discharge to all
debtors. The present law had been declared to be a perfect system
of terrorism by creditors, and as creditors were always inclined to
be reasonable where failure had been the result of misfortune, he
advocated the enactment of a law of which the debtor would not be
permitted to take advantage unless he was able to convince two or
three of his creditors that his was a proper case for such protection
as the statute afforded.

With regard to the Pacific Railway, he said the policy of the
Government had already been fully explained to the country, and
would, no doubt, be more minutely entered into at the proper time
in the House. It would be the desire of the House, as he knew it was
the desire of the people of the Dominion, to extend to those who
were interested in this project the greatest measure of justice. The
House would, he had no doubt, be prepared to deal very liberally
with the question. (Hear, hear.)
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He referred to the prospect of canal and harbour improvement,
making particular reference to the harbour of Montreal, which he
looked upon as being a benefit to the West as well as to the East,
and expenditure upon which, he assured the House, would not
excite the slightest jealousy in the West.

He was sure the House would hear of the negotiations for
widening our commercial relations with the United States with
much pleasure. The Government deserved the greatest credit for the
action they had taken, be the results what they might. He did not
pretend to know what were the prevailing views of American
statesmen upon this subject but he had been informed that the great
man whose loss the American people are now deploring was
strongly in its favour. He hoped there were many others actuated by
the same sentiment and that some arrangement which would be for
the advantage of both countries would be arrived at. The mere
renewal of the former treaty, he contended, would not satisty the
people of this country, as there were certain raw products now
raised in Canada and exported, which were not included in its
provisions as not subject to the high tariff. Of course the negotiators
would take such additions to the products of Canada into
consideration.

He referred to the right which the former treaty gave to
Americans to make use of the St. Lawrence and the canals leading
from the inland seas to the Atlantic for transportation purposes, and
to the necessity of deepening some of the canals in question. He
asserted that while the people had a strong desire to widen and
strengthen our commercial relations with the United States, there
was no wish to change our political connection with them. (Hear,
hear.) If reciprocity were the avenue to annexation, what Canadian
was there who would not at once reply “We do not want it.” (Loud
cheers.)

He had great faith in the future of the American Republic, but he
had greater faith in that of his own native land, Canada. (Loud
cheers.) He had no sympathy with those who would limit its history
to a short period of colonial dependence upon Great Britain and
then unite it with the Americans. (Loud cheers.) He believed that
this would yet be the home of a great people, attached to the mother
country in some way by the bonds of sympathy and affection and
while continuing in close commercial relations with the United
States, still preserving our identity, and advancing in prosperity
towards the perfect consolidation of our great Confederation.

He concluded by moving the Address in reply.
The hon. gentleman resumed his seat amidst loud cheers.

Mr. LAURIER who on rising was received with cheers,
seconded the resolution in French. The resolutions had been
proposed by the member for West Toronto (Mr. Moss) in an
eloquent speech, which had really expressed the feeling of the
country at large, and of the majority of the members of this House.
The position of Canada, both socially and politically, had vastly
improved. Under our Constitution we had the freedom, the
privilege, and the power of a great nation, while at the same time
we enjoyed all the advantages contingent on forming part of the
British Empire.
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He did not believe our Constitution could be replaced by another
as good. Some of them had been opposed to Confederation years
ago because they doubted if it could be properly worked, but the
moment they were defeated, in 1867, they set to work to make
Confederation a success. The French Canadian Liberal party were
not like the Liberals of France or the other nations of the continent
of Europe—(Hear, hear)y—who were at any time ready by violence
to overturn existing Governments. They rather resembled the
Liberals of England, who for so many years worked and voted for
Reform, and by Constitutional means achieved the grand results
which they have today. From the moment the opponents of
Confederation in Canada were defeated they bowed before the
majesty of the law, and frankly and readily endeavoured to advance
the interests of the New Dominion to the best of their ability. This
was their programme; following out the principle of respect for
authority, and for the general good of the country.

He was happy to see that the first act of the Government which
had lately attained office was to give a portfolio to a representative
of the youngest member of the Confederation, and so carry out the
principle upon which it was established.

Our Constitution was founded upon the British Constitution—the
finest under which men ever lived. It assured to every man his
liberty, and enabled him to exercise his constitutional rights without
fear. There was nothing on this Continent to equal this great
Constitution; particularly was it fitted to unite citizens of different
races, nationalities and religions—a quality in which the United
States Constitution had signally failed. Today there was not a man
in Canada who did not support this great union, and so successful
had been the welding in one of the different Provinces that every
man of them was proud to be a Canadian—(Cheers)—while equally
proud to be a subject of the great British Empire. (Renewed cheers.)
If today there was a man among them who would seek or desire to
sever this union, he would be worthy of no place in a civilized
community.

He aftirmed, without fear of contradiction, that we presented a
spectacle of civil and religious liberty not surpassed in the whole
world. We had none of those questions to trouble us which excited
the passions of the people and disorganized society in European
nations. By a singular coincidence, England had just passed through
a general election and witnessed the opening of a new Parliament
such as they were participating in today. There, however, a Liberal
Government had been overthrown, while here a Conservative
Administration had been defeated. In both cases the party in power
had been attempting to govern the people too much.

With these few general remarks he would set himself to discuss
the programs before the House. He was happy to see that it was
proposed to improve our commercial facilities and increase our
industrial resources, and that amongst the measures promised, those
relating to commercial development occupied so prominent a place.
Political reform and the amendment of the Election Law, were also
promised. For a long time the Liberal party had demanded a
measure of reform, which was often refused; but the Liberal party
now in power was exerting itself to put in force those principles
which they had so long advocated in Opposition.
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One of the principal reform in this direction was the
simultaneous holding of elections. According to the old system the
elections were arranged to suit political exigencies. The result was
corruption and violence. The law as it existed was very little better,
but fortunately the present Ministry had endeavoured to extract the
sting from it in this respect, and consequently he was happy to
believe that the present members were really the chosen of the
people. (Cheers.)

The Conservatives, both here and in England, had always
opposed the ballot, probably because they believed that the voice of
the people legitimately expressed would be adverse to them, and
also on the ground that it would result in the return of demagogues
to Parliament. The experience of the ballot in England, however,
had shown that demagogues had been rejected, and Conservatives
had met with greater success than they had anticipated. The present
contested election law was so defective that it would have to be
thoroughly overhauled. The constitution of the Court was so little
understood that today he believed a majority of the Judges were
uncertain whether they were acting constitutionally or not. It was
intended to define this part with greater clearness, and to enable the
provisions of the law to be carried out with greater clearness.

He preceded to allude to the establishment of a Supreme Court,
which, he contended, was necessary in order to pronounce on the
constitutionality of the laws which at present had to be submitted to
the law officers of the Crown in England for consideration. Another
important reform promised was in relation to the militia.

With regard to the Pacific Railway, it had been asserted the
present Liberal Government was far more liberal than the
Conservatives, but it would be found the desire to see a railway
constructed to the Pacific was quite as strong as that of their
predecessors. Our best railways had been constructed too much for
political reasons, and without due regard to the public interest or to
the necessary economy either in general expenditure or in relation
to the alignment. The Government, he contended, were pursuing the
proper course in relation to this matter. He referred to the American
Pacific Railways, in illustration of his point, and expressed the hope
that care and deliberation would be exercised in the construction of
our road.

Government also promised the enlargement of our harbours and
canals. The question had been before the country for some years,
but the work never has been vigorously prosecuted. Under the able
management of the present Minister of Public Works he had no
doubt this great work would be efficiently carried out. After paying
a tribute to the energy displayed by the Hon. Mr. Young in
connection with this matter and pointing out that in all such great
questions they must look not simply to the next few years but to the
great future, he came to the question of reciprocity, which he
strongly advocated, and which the people strongly approved of. He
hoped that the efforts of the Commissioner now at Washington
would meet with success.

He concluded by congratulating the House and the country on the
character for energy, integrity and ability possessed by the present
Ministry, and by expressing his belief that the laws which they
would place upon the Statute Book would be beneficial to the
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country and satisfactory to every friend of progress. He concluded
with a brilliant peroration and resumed his seat amid applause.

On the motion to adopt the first paragraph of the Address,

Right Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD who was received
with cheers, offered his congratulations to the mover and seconder
on their first appearance in the House. With respect to the mover it
was only what he had expected from him. His great professional
ability and eloquence had given everyone reason to believe that, as
he widened his sphere of usefulness by entering the Legislative
Halls of the Dominion, he would exhibit the ability which he had
evinced in the Courts of Ontario. Those expectations had been
fulfilled. He could also congratulate the hon. seconder of the
Address, who, likewise, had brought with him a reputation for
eloquence, which he had fully justified.

At the same time he must compliment both gentlemen on their
performing the responsible duties, delegated to them in the able
manner they had. With most of the remarks that had fallen from the
hon. mover of the Address he conceded, and where he happened to
have the misfortune of differing with him by and by he would find
that they were in more strict accord than they were at the present
moment.

He (Right Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald) cordially agreed with the
hon. gentleman’s utterances in favour of the continuance of, and a
perpetual connection between Canada and England. He had said he
did not believe in any severance of the ties existing, and took the
earliest opportunity of pronouncing against that veiled
Annexation—that—that Annexation in disguise—"“Independence”
as it was commonly known.

He was glad to hear the hon. seconder of the Address say that
both our social and political bases were satisfactory, and to listen to
him compare the Liberal Party here with the Liberal Party in
England rather than the so-named Party in France, and say that
under our present institutions we may look forward to the further
development and future prosperity of the country. He (Right Hon.
Sir John A. Macdonald) therefore most sincerely congratulated the
House, as well as the two hon. gentlemen, in the sentiments they
had enunciated so early in their political career in Canada. It looked
well for the future of Canada when they saw her young statesmen
on their first entrance into political life take a course so satisfactory
to the majority of the people of this country, satisfactory to the
majority of the representatives of the people, and certainly most
satisfactory to himself (Right Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald). His
hon. friend, the mover, had alluded to a rumour which he said had
reached him that there was to be no strong and vigorous Opposition
to be offered to the present Government during the present session.
That rumour, of course, had reached the hon. gentleman, but as yet
it had not reached here. (Laughter.)

Mr. MOSS: The right hon. gentleman does not read The Mail.

Right Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said well he might
perhaps sometimes read 7The Mail but that rumour had not yet
reached him. He had no doubt the Opposition would perform their
legitimate duty, but if the Opposition failed in their duty, if they
should be unaware of the responsibility thrown upon them, they had
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great consolation in knowing that the hon. gentleman, the mover of
the Address, had thus early offered to supply their place. (Hear,
hear.) He was glad his hon. friend had given fair notice to his
friends on the Treasury benches that he would hold them to strict
account. Fault finding was the term that had been applied to the
duty of the Opposition, and, if they were unequal to that duty, the
onus of it would fall on the hon. member for West Toronto. He had
no doubt he (Mr. Moss) was sincere in his statement, and that he
would carry out with strict liberality that candid criticism which he
had told the Government would be exercised by him towards them.

The hon. gentleman made one remark to which he thought he
must take exception, and that was with regard to the approbation he
bestowed upon the leader of the Government, in having taken the
whole country into his confidence before the recent elections. He
(Right Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald) thought that was a great
political mistake, and that it was not unprecedented. It was not,
because Mr. Gladstone took the same course; and, if there was one
thing more than another for which he had received the censure of
constitutional men in England, it was for adopting that course, in
not appealing to the representatives of the people in Parliament, but
rather pleading to a plebiscite. It had been announced in England by
those who had followed Mr. Gladstone faithfully, and by
constitutional men who knew what the Constitution of England is,
that such a course is opposed to the very basis of parliamentary
legislation.

What was the consequence of such a course? The consequence
was this: a Minister, before he had an opportunity of consulting
Parliament—before he had an opportunity of exchanging opinion
with Parliament—before he had an opportunity of knowing what
the opinion of Parliament would be—announced his policy in
advance, and thereby tied his hands by pledging to the country that
policy without receiving any assistance, any information, or any aid
in maturing or forming the great measures which were for the
benefit of the country. This course was generally censured in
England, and he would tell his hon. friend that if he would carefully
scan the English press he would find that the Liberal press—and as
a matter of fact, the advanced Liberal press—were strongly
opposed to the course of the hon. gentleman, in having appealed to
the people directly, sowing broadcast to the people that which ought
to have been reserved for the decision of Parliament.

He (Right Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald) considered it was a very
grave breach of constitutional practice, and he hoped it would not
be considered a precedent to be followed in the future, but rather as
an error to be avoided. It was Caesarism; it was Imperialism! They
all knew how anxious they were in France to divert discussion from
its legitimate channel by appealing to the people. The policy he had
been referring to was an attempt to overthrow the established
channel of legislation. The people were not prepared to discuss such
serious measures, not having the advantages for discussing them
freely as had Parliament, which was the only legitimate place where
such matters could be considered.

His hon. friend said, with regard to the paragraph respecting the
deficit, that the Government would deal with that with every
candour, inasmuch as they were not responsible for it. He (Right
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Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald) supposed they could not be
responsible for any deficit in the revenue. The expenditure that took
place during his Administration was such as could be justified, and
he thought, when the discussion came up, it would be justified. The
hon. gentleman said the only way of getting out of the difficulty
was by a re-adjustment of the tariff and increased taxation. There
were two ways which he afterwards indicated, one, was by
increased taxation, and the other by means of economy. Whether
the hon. gentleman opposite would change the deficiency into a
surplus by adopting an exclusive system of economy or a system of
increased taxation, or by an admixture of both the House would
have to wait with patience to ascertain until they saw the financial
measure of the Minister of Finance.

He was inclined to agree with the hon. gentleman about the
Election Law. However, he made one remark respecting the Ballot
Bill. He (Right Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald) was opposed to the
ballot on all the grounds the hon. gentleman had mentioned; but he
was opposed to it chiefly on the ground that whatever act a man
performed connected with the government of the country he should
be responsible for, and he could not be responsible if he kept his
voting secret from those whose opinions he valued—from the eyes
of his neighbours and the world.

He, however, thought with the hon. gentleman that the ballot was
almost certain to be adopted in this country. He felt, when he was
on the other side of the House, and when this matter was up before
the last Parliament that, as it had been adopted by so Conservative a
country as England, they in Canada could not successfully resist
it—(Hear, hear)—and he had then stated that while he himself
reserved the right of voting against it, if the sense of the House was
in favour of it, the Government would see that a clause for the
carrying out of a system of voting by ballot should be introduced in
the Election bill then before the House.

He did not think the Ballot Bill would be successtul in preventing
bribery or coercion, or violence. In England, where they had passed
a law, at the first general elections in cities, since passing there,
there had been more violence than for years and years. This law
would not be thought to put down or do away with violence. When
the blood of the people was up they will show it with the Ballot, so
long as human nature was human nature. The Ballot might,
however, do away with intimidation and undue influence.
Therefore, he thought, with the hon. mover of the address, that the
measure might be of great service. When voting was silent there
would not be that influence used by Provincial Governments and
Provincial officials over Dominion electors as had been shown to
have already taken place.

His hon. friend had also spoken of the Militia law, and his
sentiments agreed with his (Right Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald’s).
He believed they owed a debt of gratitude to the Militia as
constituted, and he was satistied it was almost impossible, in
England or in Canada, to keep up a voluntary force at any fixed
rate. He believed that a number of the men who during the past few
years had been drilled, who had been members of our Militia force,
our embodied Militia force, and our volunteers had fallen out of the
ranks and were not actual members serving at this time; but they
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had successfully acquired discipline, and at the call of the country
would be readily available for service. They would soon fall in to
their old companies or form new ones. He believed the Militia force
an effectual force, and he believed it might be improved. He had no
doubt, under the able administration of the present Minister of
Militia (Hon. Mr. Ross), it would readily assume new vitality and
efficiency, and become the admiration of the whole world.

The hon. gentleman had alluded to the Pacific Railway, and had
stated that the policy of the Government had been announced by the
Premier, and he presumed the same policy would be carried out.
With respect to that great undertaking, he (Right Hon. Sir John A.
Macdonald) would not anticipate what the calm deliberate policy of
the Government might be, as laid before the House. He would not
be one to hold the hon. gentleman to the speech he had made, or to
any premature announcement of his policy on that subject. It was
one too grave to allow of a perfunctory discussion. Until they had
the advised policy of the Government laid before the House, he
would deprecate any discussion in advance of the policy being laid
before them. The matter was one of the greatest moment. It
involved the future of Canada. It might involve the good faith of
Canada, and it might involve the disintegration of Canada; therefore
he hoped there would be no discussion upon this subject until the
hon. gentleman brought down and laid before the House the
minutes and the principle of their general policy, and the manner in
which they intended that policy should be carried out. He would say
for one that he would not hold the hon. gentleman to any utterances
he made at election time. He should hold the Government free to
lay before the House their policy up to the last moment before they
would bring it down. (Hear, hear.) It was too grave a question for
them to hold the hon. gentleman to his statement to any extent. It
ought to be taken out of the run of party politics. (Hear, hear.)

With respect to the negotiations that had been opened at
Washington, he sincerely hoped they would be successful, and if
the Government succeeded in them they would deserve the
approbation of the country, and he for one would accord his
approbation and gratitude for that success. They did not yet know
exactly, and they could not yet know till the papers were sent down,
how these negotiations actually commenced. The general opinion
last Parliament was that Canada could not go so far as to ask for a
renewal of the Reciprocity Treaty without some humiliation, and it
was thought in Parliament and in the country at that time that any
renewal of the negotiations must come from the American people
themselves, a sense at the time existing that it would be for the
benefit of the United States.

He hoped, when the papers were brought down, they would not
show any undue eagemess or submissiveness on the part of the
Canadian Government to re-open their negotiations. The hon.
gentleman who had been sent down, they were informed and as
they knew, went there with very great advantages, and he had no
doubt he would use those advantages for the good of Canada—at
least he hoped so. He believed he would be earnestly anxious to
carry the negotiations to a successful issue. He hoped the
Government would reserve to themselves the full right of ratifying
any arrangement made by the hon. gentleman sent there. That hon.
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gentleman was a man of great power, and possessed a great deal of
earnestness, and beyond all he had a great desire for success. The
only danger he (Right Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald) anticipated
from that gentleman being deputed to negotiate with the United
States Government for a new Reciprocity Treaty was that, rather
than he should return with his mission imperfect—rather than return
with any want of success—he would yield too much of the interests
of Canada for the sake of gaining in some degree. His hon. friend
from West Toronto (Mr. Moss) had, however, thrown out a remark
which should discourage the negotiator at Washington because he
had stated that the late Reciprocity Treaty, even if they succeeded
in obtaining it, would not give satisfaction to the country, which
wanted something more—to be consulted in making any such
treaty. They could put in it whatever they thought proper, but there
were two sides to the question, and the negotiator of the
Government had not to think whether they could get all they wanted
but they were to get as much as possible.

He for one would be only too glad to see the old Reciprocity
Treaty restored. He had no hope that they would succeed in getting
the Reciprocity Treaty in its entirety. All would be agreeably
surprised if they did, and if the hon. gentleman made an
approximation to it he would be satisfied. If they could protect
certain interests and open up the market to others in any degree, it
would be so much to our benefit. They would not, however, scan
too closely the concessions that might be made, provided undue
concessions were not made on our side. To these remarks he would
simply add the hope that the negotiations might be successtul, and
that the hon. gentleman might come back and mark his retum to
political life by the great success of this treaty with the United
States.

He did not propose to discuss the various points in the Speech.
Most of the measures that were there had appeared in Speeches
from the Throne under his (Right Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald’s)
advice—the Election Bill, the Insolvency Bill, and other bills. If
any one who had been here a year ago and had just returned had
had this speech put in their hands, not knowing that the parties had
changed sides of the House, he would have said, “This is the old
programme of the Government. (Hear, hear, and cheers.) This is
just the same speech I heard last year; there is nothing new in it.”
There certainly was little new in the speech, but what there was new
would have the additional novelty and charm of having the support
of both sides of the House. (Cheers.)

His hon. friend the seconder of the reply to the Address said with
respect to the Supreme Court, that it was to be regretted that it had
not been established from the beginning of the constitution. If they
could have got such a satistactory Court it would have been well.
That might be true if they could get a good Court, but he doubted if
it would treat constitutional questions in the sense he had indicated,
which was that the Supreme Court here should have the same
constitutional powers as the Supreme Court in the United States. He
believed the Supreme Court was a necessity, and that every day
showed the increasing necessity for it. It might be that late
legislation in Ontario might cause a remodelling of all that might be
prepared on that subject. They would wait with every patience for
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the measure. It was a question surrounded with difficulties, and he
had never concealed that fact from the House. He would give his
best consideration to any measure brought down and hoped that
they would have not only a good programme such as this was, but a
successful session. He did not intend to move any amendment.
(Hear, hear. Loud and continuous cheers.)

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said he was gratified to hear the
remarks of the leader of the Opposition, conceived as they had been
to a great extent in good taste and moderation; but some of them he
really thought were actuated by a less friendly feeling than
appeared. The right hon. gentleman referred at some length to the
plan of the Government for procuring enlarged commercial
relations with the United States, and he had seemed in this
connection to object to this mission, but especially to the
missionary.

Right Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD: No, No.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said the right hon. gentlemen had
warned them that they must not expect too much, and that the
gentleman who had been commissioned by Her Majesty’s
Government at their request was one who was likely to show an
undue submissiveness in the quarter to which he had been sent.

Right Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD: What I did say was
that the only danger might be that he would be too anxious for
success.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said the right hon. gentleman would
not feel angry with him, he supposed, if he said the former
negotiations at Washington were of such a nature as to lead up to
that supposition on his part. The course which he (Hon.
Mr. Mackenzie) had always taken in regard to our relations with
that Power were such as to justify him in believing that the country
would at least accept his statement when he said that nothing should
be done under this Administration which could in any way produce
any humiliation on the part of Canada or Great Britain. (Cheers.)
When this Government failed to obtain the establishment of such
relations as should be conducive at once to the honour and
prosperity of the country, they would leave the initiation and
completion of such negotiations to some other persons. He regretted
the remarks that had been made for this reason: he did not think it
wise to discuss that question at all here today.

Referring to the right hon. gentleman’s mission to Washington
some years ago, he said that he (Hon. Mr. Mackenzie) had not
ventured to discuss anything in this House in relation to it. He had
forborne even to assist an hon. gentleman who was then upon this
side of the House in making some resolutions which would have
operated as an obstruction to the right hon. gentleman in his
mission, and he asked the hon. member for Sherbrooke (Hon. Sir
A.T. Galt) to withdraw his resolution so that the right hon.
gentleman might proceed to Washington entirely unencumbered by
even a suggestion from Parliament.

That course he expected would have been followed with regard
to the action of the Government upon this occasion. They might be
successful and they might not, but whether successful or
unsuccessful when the circumstances became known to the country



COMMONS DEBATES

18

it would be seen that they had followed a course at once friendly to
their neighbours and dignified to themselves. The right hon.
gentleman had told them that there was nothing particularly new in
the programme, which he admitted to be a very good one on the
whole, and which he had promised to support.

Although he (Hon. Mr. Mackenzie) was obliged to him for the
support thus promised, and while he would accept with great
pleasure any suggestion for the improvement of any measure which
the Government might submit to the House, he must say that the
right hon. gentleman was mistaken when he claimed the paternity
of the Election Bill. He (Hon. Mr. Mackenzie) had a very vivid
recollection of the opposition the right hon. gentleman gave this
Bill fourteen years ago in Parliament. He had a very strong
recollection of the opposition offered to most of the provisions of
this Bill in the Parliament before last, and although the right hon.
gentleman had introduced Election Bills, they were introduced, as
was the ballot resolution last year, in opposition to the right hon.
gentleman’s own views. In fact, he had only yielded to them
ultimately as an expression of the public opinion of the country.
That expression was chiefly promoted by hon. gentlemen now
sitting upon the Government side of the House.

When the Government introduced a measure of this kind, they
did so, not as the offspring of the right hon. gentleman, but as the
fruit of their own labours, and chiefly in opposition to the right hon.
gentleman and the Government of which he was the head. (Cheers.)
Still, he accepted the statement of the right hon. gentleman as to his
ultimate conversion to the views of gentlemen upon this side of the
House, and although that conversion was rather tardy, and only
came when the measure was sure of acceptance, he was glad the
gentlemen led by the right hon. gentleman were prepared to accede
to the proposal of this side of the House.

In reference to the question of representation in Parliament, he
(Hon. Mr. Mackenzie) ought first to have congratulated his hon.
friend from West Toronto (Mr. Moss) and his hon. friend from
Arthabaska (Mr. Laurier) but he would now say that during the time
he had sat in Parliament and listened to similar speeches, he did not
recollect an occasion when he had heard the gentlemen acquit
themselves so well as they had upon this occasion. (Cheers.)
Although both gentlemen sit, as a matter of course, on the
Ministerial side of the House—at least, so far as the Ministerial
benches of the House could hold them—everyone, he was sure,
would be pleased to welcome such an addition to the debating
power of the House. (Hear, hear.) He was glad the remarks of both
gentlemen were of such a character as to elicit the approval of the
leader of the Opposition.

The right hon. gentleman had, however, been pleased to take
exception to the remarks of the hon. member for West Toronto on
the question of the ballot. One statement of the right hon. gentleman
was, he believed, incorrect: the rioting in England during the recent
election was not in connection with, or in consequences of, the
ballot; not at all indeed, in connection with the polling, except in
one trifling instance; but mere rioting promoted by the excitement
attending upon the election in some excitable districts. There could
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be no doubt but the ballot would protect the freedom of electors,
and that was what was desired.

He (Hon. Mr. Mackenzie) had not hesitated to state formerly that
taking the two systems and comparing them, he would prefer open
voting, but, as he has stated last session, he believed that in a
populous country, containing large manufacturing establishments,
where there was a population which might be subjected to undue
pressure from employers, from large landed proprietors, or from
any other quarter, it was necessary that the ballot should be put into
operation in order to afford the voter the necessary protection. For
our large agricultural districts it did not matter as a general rule, he
thought, whether they had the ballot or not, and it would probably
produce in those districts no material difference. It was now an
established fact, however, and it only remained for this House to
adopt such wise provisions as to make it efficacious for producing
the results which were expected of it.

He was glad the right hon. gentleman had not adopted any course
of opposition on the present occasion. In doing so he had followed
the course which was adopted by this side of the House when in
Opposition, that was that unless there was something requiring
immediate and marked attention the Address should pass as a
matter of course. He thanked the right hon. gentleman for his
moderation and forbearance in taking that course, and of the
promise he had made to give all the measures of the Government a
fair dispassionate consideration when they come before the House.
(Cheers.) He wished to say one word with regard to the first
statement of the right hon. gentleman. He would not say much
about the fault-finding, but the right hon. gentleman had rather put
words into his (Hon. Mr. Mackenzie’s) mouth. It was true the right
hon. gentleman had accused him of fault-finding, and he had
replied that it was his business to find fault with the measures of the
Government, but he did not say that it was his only business, and
the House knew that it was not the only business which occupied
him when leader of the Opposition.

The right hon. gentleman objected to his announcing the policy
of the Government before going to the people. He thought that in a
speech made by the right hon. gentleman he had seen objection
taken to their want of enunciation of policy. (Hear, hear.) At any
rate he was sure that the whole Opposition press was greatly
exercised over the want of that announcement till his (Hon. Mr.
Mackenzie’s) address to the electors of Lambton was published,
and if the right hon. gentleman was really opposed to the
declaration of policy by Ministers on the eve of an election he was
opposed equally to all his supporters in this country. It had been
objected that they did not declare their policy with sufficient
distinctness or in sufficient detail. He might be satisfied with citing
the opinion of Mr. Gladstone upon this subject, but whether Mr.
Gladstone had done it or not, he took a difterent view of the policy
of such a course. He thought it was absolutely necessary that a new
Government going to the country without having had any
opportunity of meeting Parliament and announcing their policy, the
country would have reason to complain if they did not do so.

To be sure the right hon. gentleman wanted them to announce
their policy in this House at a time when they could not appear in
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this House, but they took the earliest opportunity that they could to
appear before the country and announce their policy. If they had
erred in a constitutional point of view, he thought they had done
right in a common sense point of view. All constitutional practices
in such matters must, to a great extent, be governed by what was
right in common sense. The right hon. gentleman and his friends
did not take any serious objection at the elections to the
announcement by Government of their policy to the country, and he
(Hon. Mr. Mackenzie) remained of the opinion that they did an
eminently proper thing in acting as they did. (Cheers.)

Mr. MASSON after some preliminary remarks said the Speech
from the Throne was remarkable, not for what it contained but for
what it did not contain. He had always expected that in these
speeches reference would be made to the most important subjects
which had been brought up during the recess. Among these subjects
with reference to Manitoba, he knew that lately there had come
down from Manitoba those who wished to extend their boundaries
so as to have a seaport on Hudson Bay and an inland portion on
Lake Superior. The House would, he was sure, be glad to know
something about those negotiations. Then there was nothing—not a
word—about the excitement, the discontent in British Columbia, of
which we were told there was quite an evolution, but were told
nothing about what had been done to quell the alarm.

Another question which had exercised the public opinion of
Lower Canada, and about which there was not a word, was the
administration of justice. He knew the Minister of Justice had taken
a great interest in this subject, and had been almost the champion of
it; but yet we were told nothing as to what had been done. He did
not desire to embarrass the Government, but there was another
question on which we ought to expect something. It was the
question of our industries. Yet there was not a word about it. As to
the Pacific Railway, he did not wish to say much about it, but he
believed it would end in no railway at all.

One question which had agitated the country to an extent almost
unprecedented was the School question. He thought hon. gentlemen
on the other side would do him the justice, in view of his past
career, to say that he had a good right to expect some reference to
have been made to it in the Speech from the Throne. The Hon.
Minister of Justice (Hon. Mr. Dorion) knew that he and his friends
had not been afraid to embarrass their own friends on this question,
and he, therefore, should not be surprised at his asking those who
had worked with them last year why they had not disallowed the
Bill. The Minister of Justice had told us nothing about it; the only
thing we knew was through the papers; the only thing that had thus
come to light was a despatch from England telling us what were the
relations between the Home authorities and Canada in regard to the
disallowance of the Bills. When he drew attention to these things it
was not to find fault, but to urge those gentlemen who had
supported himself and his friends on a former occasion to complete
the work they had assisted to commence. The despatch to which he
alluded said that the House of Commons was powerless to interfere.
The intimation of this powerlessness he considered was an attack
on the Constitution. It was said the only power rested in the
Governor General in Council; and if this was to stand in the way the
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sooner the clause was struck out of the Constitution the better. Now
was the time, then, to establish the Supreme Court which was so
much talked of.

There was another question of far greater importance, and one
which had agitated the country for some two or three years, which
had been forgotten in the Address. This was the question of our
relations with Manitoba. The question of an amnesty for the people
of Manitoba was one which should be approached with the greatest
prudence, and with a desire of saying nothing which should
embarrass the Government, or create ill feeling among any class in
the Dominion. It was a question of the greatest importance to the
people of Manitoba. They might rest assured that peace and
tranquillity would not reign in that province unless this question
were settled. It was a question which interested not only the people
of Manitoba, but the people of the whole Dominion. Our
Confederation could not extend nor take the position on this
Continent which it ought to take unless we could send the surplus
of our population to those vast regions which we have purchased in
the Northwest. Our Northwest Territories were to us what the Great
West is to the United States. They could not expect, however, to
send a numerous population there to create a Province and to
contribute to our wealth and prosperity, unless tranquillity and
peace were established in those territories. There was not a word
upon that subject in the Address.

The only thing they could fall back on, the only expression of
opinion they had received as to the policy of the Government upon
that most important subject was the programme given by the Hon.
Minister of Justice to the electors of Napierville when he came
forward to re-election. It was not stated by any of the hon.
gentleman’s colleagues, but as the leader in Lower Canada, he
believed he would not have expressed that opinion, or given it as
his programme, if it had not been the policy of the Government.
The Minister of Justice (Hon. Mr. Dorion), if he was not mistaken,
said that if it were proven that the amnesty was promised it should
be granted. The plain meaning of that was that the amnesty had
been granted by the Administration of the hon. member for
Kingston (Right Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald). (Hear, hear.)

Hon. Mr. DORION: I merely said these words, and I was very
guarded. It is asserted that an amnesty had been promised. If it is
proved it will be a great point in favour of Mr. Riel. (Cheers.)

Mr. MASSON said that was a great deal worse. He had expected
that if an amnesty had been promised the pledge would have been
carried out. (Cries of “Six o’clock™.)

It being six o’clock, The Speaker left the chair, and the House
took recess.

#* Ok 3k

NOTICE OF MOTION

Mr. CHARLTON will, on an early day, give notice of the
following motion:— That in the opinion of this House a
geographical and geological examination of the Northwest Territory
should be undertaken at the earliest practicable moment, with a

view to obtaining reliable information as to the extent, varieties of
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the soil, general character, and most northerly and easterly limits of
the portion of that region adapted to the successful cultivation of the
cereals; as to the mineral deposits, and the geological formation of
the same; and as to the extent, character, and commercial value of
its forests, both within and outside of the portion of the country
adapted to cultivation. That the examination include observations
for latitude and longitude, and measurement of altitude, and that the
information thus obtained be placed before the people of Canada
and Great Britain by reports printed and circulated at the public
expense, fully setting forth the information obtained; and that the
emigration to that region should be further promoted through the
translation of such reports into the French and German and
Scandinavian languages, and the free circulation of the same in
France in the German States, and in Denmark, Sweden and
Norway.”

Mr. CHARLTON will ask leave to introduce a Bill on Thursday
next entitled “An Act to prevent cruelty to animals while in transit
by railway or other means of conveyance within the Dominion of
Canada.”

AFTER RECESS

Mr. MASSON resumed his speech. He said he had gathered
from the organs of the Government that it was their intention to
appoint a Commission or a Committee of Enquiry. He did not see
what the use of that would be. It could not surely be to delay this
matter, but must be to obtain information. If hon. gentlemen had the
necessary information they ought to act upon it. If they had
neglected to use the time at their disposal, he would ask the leader
of the Government if he had ever enquired of those who only could
have promised either to grant or to ask for the amnesty. He hoped
that if it was promised, or if something equivalent to a promise had
been given, the Government would say, “The honour of the country
is engaged, the pledge of the country is engaged, and we are bound
in honour to redeem the pledge that was made.”

He considered that Canada was, to a large extent, to blame for
the excitement which had taken place in the Northwest Territory.
Those territories were happy and contented. They did not ask for
union, but, without asking them or their Government, they were
transferred to Canada. The acts of the Government were the acts of
the country, and the present Minister of Justice (Hon. Mr. Dorion)
had agreed with him (Mr. Masson) at that time, though the present
Minister of Public Works did not. Canada had sown the wind, and
they must not be surprised if they reaped the crop. The Minister of
Public Works (Hon. Mr. Mackenzie) had contended that the
member for Kingston did wrong in receiving the delegates from the
Northwest, because they represented the Provisional Government of
the Assiniboine rebels.

He (Mr. Masson) had agreed with the hon. gentleman that the
reception of these delegates was equivalent to a recognition of the
Provisional Govermnment. When once a Government received
delegates from rebels they were bound to forget the acts done by
them before their reception—of which the Government was aware
when they received them. The Minister of Public Works (Hon. Mr.
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Mackenzie) having maintained that the reception of these delegates
was wrong was bound to carry out his views, or else admit that he
was wrong and apologise to the member for Kingston (Right Hon.
Sir John A. Macdonald). (Hear, hear, and laughter.)

He proceeded to quote from the Conservative newspapers of
Toronto of a few months since, recommending an amnesty in
distinct terms. He said that Riel, though an outlaw, had acted with
generosity towards Canada, though he had not received that justice
from Canada to which he was entitled. Whether an amnesty was
actually promised or not, the honour of the country was engaged to
the issue of an amnesty. They remembered the anxiety caused by
the Fenian raids in Canada. Manitoba was also threatened with
invasion. Manitoba was also threatened with invasion by men who
were said to have the support of the American Government. At that
time the authorities of Manitoba wanted the assistance of Mr. Riel
and the French half-breeds; but by coming forward he placed his
liberty and even his life in danger. He had authority from Father
Ritchot to read the papers he was about to read.

Mr. SMITH (Selkirk): Are these original papers?

Mr. MASSON said they were papers which he copied years ago
from the original papers, and when, a short time ago, he showed
them to Riel, he said they were correct. The negotiations between
Governor Archibald and Mr. Ritchot were verbal, but they agreed
that it would be better to have them in writing. He then proceeded
to read a letter to the following eftect, dated 4th October, 1871:—

“To His Excellency the Lieutenant-Governor—Your Excellency,
—In the interview I had the honour of having with you today we
became in accord that it was proper that the influence of Mr. Riel to
lead the people, his compatriots, in the circumstance and to stop
them from taking a false direction should be secured. I take the
liberty of observing to Your Excellency that, Mr. Riel being in the
difficult position that he could not act publicly as a citizen, I do not
think that he could place himself at their head unless some
guarantee is given that his action will be well considered by Your
Excellency-in-Council. In consequence I ask of you some assurance
that will protect him against any legal attaint, at least for the
circumstance.”

This letter was from Father Ritchot, and to it a reply was given
by Governor Archibald, on paper bearing the Government arms,
and quite an official document. It was dated “Government House,
Oct. 5th, 1871, and was to this effect:—

“Rev. Sir,—Your note has just reached me. You speak of the
difficulties which impede any action by Mr. Riel in coming forward
to use his influence with his follow citizens to rally to the support of
the Crown in this emergency. Should Mr. Riel come forward, as
suggested, he need have no apprehension that his liberty will be
interfered with in any way, to use your own words, for the actual
circumstances. (Hear, hear.) It is hardly necessary for me to say
that the co-operation of the French Half-breeds and their leader in
support of the Crown under present circumstances will be very
gratifying, and cannot be looked upon otherwise than as entitling
them to the most favourable consideration.”
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This was signed “A.G. Archibald, Lieutenant Governor.”
(Cheers.) Mr. Riel, as soon as he saw that disposition, came to the
front, saying. “I shall accept the honour, and then the Government
cannot treat me otherwise than as a loyal and faithful subject.” Mr.
Riel answered that he would with pleasure go at the head of the
movement, and he (Mr. Masson) had a letter written by Mr.
Archibald’s private secretary, on the 8th October, 1871, to him. It
was as follows:—

“Gentlemen—I have it in command from His Excellency the
Lieutenant-Governor to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of
this moming, assuring His Excellency of the ready response of the
Métis to the appeal made to them in His Excellency’s propositions.
You may say to the people in whose behalf you write, that His
Excellency is very much gratified to receive the assurances, which
are confirmatory of his expectation, and that he will take the earliest
opportunity of presenting to His Excellency the Governor General
this evidence of the loyalty and good faith of the Métis of
Manitoba.”

The letter concluded with a request to be furnished with the
nominal roll of the people in each parish, and the declaration that
the Governor General relied upon them to come forward
immediately they received notice. It was addressed to Messrs. Louis
Riel, Lépine and Perrault. He appealed to the House to say whether
the honour of the country was not pledged in this matter. If they did
not think Riel was entitled to be considered as one of Her Majesty’s
loyal subjects, they had no business in the time of need to appeal to
his patriotism for the defence of their common country. He
contended that the action of Canada in regard to the Northwest in
recognizing the delegates from the Provisional Government, and in
recognizing this act of generosity on the part of Mr. Riel, was
sufficient to show that the faith of the country was pledged to an
amnesty, whether it was actually promised or not. He appealed to
the Minister of Justice to say whether he did not think he had made
the case good, and concluded by declaring that he had no intention
to embarrass the Government.

Hon. Mr. DORION who was received with loud cheers, said the
hon. member for Terrebonne had gone over a great many subjects,
and upon several points found fault with the Government. He had
found fault not so much with acts of commission, but with those of
omission. He found fault in the Address the Government had taken
no notice of the important troubles that took place in the Province
of British Columbia, and which seemed to exercise him very much.

The first information Government received of these troubles
caused them a good deal of anxiety. A revolution appeared to be
imminent, and the anxiety was increased by the fact that the wires
for two or three days were down, he did not know by what accident,
and they naturally expected that the rebels, that is the
Conservatives, who seemed to be at the head of the rebellion—
(Laughter)—had cut them. The first news communicated was that
the Premier of British Columbia had fled from the country for fear
of the excitement in Victoria, and that the Speaker of the Assembly
had been driven from the House. But the moment the wires were up
again they found that the Premier had been elected by a handsome
majority in that very city of Victoria. (Cheers.) They found it was a
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little ruse of the Conservative party in British Columbia, and there
was no great anxiety about the safety or peace of the country. He
could now satisfy the hon. gentleman, and he thought his hon.
friend the Minister of Militia (Hon. Mr. Ross) would hear him out
in the statement, that the Government was at peace with every
nation on the earth. (Laughter.)

The hon. gentleman had asked why they did not speak on what
had taken place in regard to the administration of justice in Lower
Canada. He had no doubt his hon. friend, who had disclaimed any
idea of embarrassing the Government, would be gratified to hear
that at the last term of the Court of Appeal the new judges sat from
10 o’clock to 5 hearing cases, and that no less than 45 cases were
heard, whereas the number of cases formerly heard when the Court
did sit, which was not always, was from 18 to 20, or at most 22.

Then he complained that in the Speech it was announced that
there was a deficit, and that to cover it properly new taxation would
have to be resorted to. At the same time the hon. gentleman
professed to be a protectionist, and complained that while they were
going to put an additional tax upon the country, there was not one
man in the Ministry likely to protest the interest which Mr. Masson
himself protected. If the Government were putting additional taxes,
that was in the sense of protection, as generally understood by
protectionists.

Mr. MASSON said it did not follow that because the
Government imposed an additional tax that they would place it
upon articles of consumption.

Hon. Mr. DORION said he supposed the hon. gentleman did not
expect the Speech from the Throne to state that the Government
were going to tax whisky or any other article. (Laughter.) His
Parliamentary experience ought to be sufficient to lead him to
believe that the Government would not announce what they would
tax, a month beforehand.

He then complained about the New Brunswick School Law. He
had heard that the hon. gentleman had been chosen a co-leader of
the Opposition with the member for Kingston (Right Hon. Sir John
A. Macdonald). (Laughter.) He must surely know who it was in
1872 who did not want to disallow the New Brunswick School
Law. Last session there was one gentleman going from one side of
the House to the other with a telegram in his hands stating that the
Bishops of the Province of Quebec, united in Council, had decided
that no further proceedings should be had in that matter. (Hear,
hear.) Whether that was the member for Terrebonne or not he could
not say. (Laughter.) It might have been a neighbour of his.
(Laughter.) Perhaps the hon. gentleman would tell them whether he
sat before the Privy Council was at an end or not.

He could not understand how it was that an hon. gentleman who
was a Programmist, who was bound by the authority of his bishop,
of his church, and of his clergy, came here, and in order to attack
the Government went back on his constitution of last year. That
authority of the bishops was binding. (Cheers.) Perhaps the hon.
gentleman had some privileges which others had not; perhaps he
had a dispensation (Laughter) or something which made him see
things in a different light from different sides of the House. It might
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have injured his friends last year, but now he thought that instead of
injuring his friends it might injure the Government.

Mr. MASSON said all he contended was that the House had a
right to know from the Government why the law was not
disallowed.

Hon. Mr. DORION said he was not sure if the time for
disallowance was not up in the winter of 1873; but it was at the
request of the hon. gentleman himself. It was not done by showing
telegrams from bishops saying it had been decided not to act.

After that the hon. gentleman came to a question which he felt, in
common with many members of this House, was of great
importance to the country. It was the question of amnesty to those
who took part in the troubles in the Northwest. Again, who was in
power when those troubles took place? It was not this Government
who knew what took place with the delegates, or how it came out
that a telegram was sent to Archbishop Taché, who was in Rome, to
come at once and settle these difficulties. If it were clear to the hon.
gentleman, it ought to be equally clear to the minds of the leader of
the Opposition and the member for Hastings North (Mr. Bowell)
who, he saw, were passing papers about, and seemed in perfect
accord with the hon. gentleman.

Let the leader of the Opposition who was in constant and daily
communication with Archbishop Taché, Mr. Ritchot, Mr. Alfred
Scott, and Judge Black rise and say they promised an amnesty after
the death of Thomas Scott. When the Opposition were agreed upon
this point, it would be time enough for them to call upon the House
to declare what they would do. Let the leader of the Opposition say,
“We were in communication with the actors in that drama. The
state of the country was such that we did promise an amnesty. We
did tell the Archbishop to go there at any price and pacify the
country.”

Let the hon. gentleman get his co-leader to say that, and the
majority of the House and the country would say that if the leaders
of the Government at that time had agreed, with the sanction of
those who no doubt represented the Imperial authority, to promise
an amnesty, there was something higher and more lasting than to
have the blood of one individual, and that was to keep the faith of
the country intact; and those who guided the destinies of the
country were bound to keep its honour unsullied. When he got that,
then he might call upon this side of the House to say what they
would do.

He admitted that there was a great deal in the documents the hon.
gentleman had read. It half of those occurrences really took place, if
the Lieutenant-Governor of Manitoba asked this man, who had the
blood of another man upon his hands, to undertake the defence of
the country, there was a great deal to cause reflection, not only to
the members of this House, but to the whole country, as to whether
the representative of the Crown could put a citizen in that position
as long as his help was needed, and then put a halter round his neck
as soon as he had repelled the enemy, and hang him at the next tree.
Very few, he supposed, would be willing to put the representative
of the Crown in that ridiculous position.
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The hon. gentleman said he had evidence in his hands, and if it
were produced he had no doubt it would cause many to pause as to
the steps to be taken in this unfortunate matter. He (Hon.
Mr. Dorion) was quite certain that the speech just delivered by the
hon. gentleman, in which the Hon. Minister of Justice came so
often, was not intended for him, but for the late occupant of that
seat. (Hear, hear, and laughter.) It might, however, have been
damaging if delivered during the last three years, and so the hon.
gentleman had kept it in his desk and brought it out to-night for the
first time. They had never heard of these documents before, nor of
the promise of an amnesty, because it might have been damaging.

He asked the House to apply this speech to the late Minister of
Justice (Right Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald). The hon. gentleman
had quoted extracts from The Mail and The Leader declaring that
an amnesty should be granted—for the sake of the peace of the
country. The Mail and The Leader were not very great authorities in
this House, at all events upon that side, but a far greater authority
would have been the late Minister of Justice. If he would only get
the views of his co-leader and tell the House what he thought of an
amnesty! What were the facts of the case? What was the state of the
country when these alleged promises were made—when Governor
Archibald wrote that letter to Mr. Riel, complimenting him upon his
loyalty and faithfulness to Her Majesty! Knowing this, perhaps they
might more intelligently be able to form an opinion as to these
matters.

On one occasion it was stated by the present leader of the
Opposition (Right Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald) that when
Govemor Archibald shook hands with Riel, he did not know who
he was. (Hear, hear.) If he was not mistaken, that statement was
made on the floor of this House; but it seemed from these letters
that Gov. Archibald knew perfectly well who Riel was; that, in fact,
he had been in communication with Mr. Ritchot, who told him
about Mr. Riel—that he alone could organize the French half-
breeds, and that from the very peculiar circumstances under which
he stood towards the Government, it was impossible to repel the
invasion with which Manitoba was menaced unless he had a
conditional pardon offered him. It appeared from the letter that
Gov. Archibald, whether with the consent of the Government here
or not he did not know, guaranteed his safety for the time. The
member for Terrebonne (Mr. Masson) had not told them whether
that was done with the consent of the Dominion Government or not,
but surely the leader of the Opposition could say whether it was not
with the consent of the Government and Lord Lisgar that these
occurrences took place.

At the same time, the mere reading of these letters was no proof
at all. The hon. gentleman appeared to say that he (Hon.
Mr. Dorion) had agreed in a great many things with him, though
when the vote came they always parted. Perhaps he was a humble
follower of the hon. gentleman, but the hon. gentleman was
certainly not a follower of his. He supposed these things were
approved of by the Government, seeing that the then Governor of
Manitoba had since been promoted to a Lieut.-governorship of a
much higher rank. Let him remember that there were parties more
intimately connected with the troubles and negotiations that took



COMMONS DEBATES

March 30, 1874

place, and if he had read all the letters, he might have thrown more
light on the subject—the one, for instance, which said, “The
promise which you (Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier and Right Hon. Sir
John A. Macdonald) have often made to me of an amnesty, I hope
you will give me the proof of before I leave the country.”

Mr. MASSON: Do you know of that letter?
Hon. Mr. DORION: I ask if you know of that letter?

Mr. MASSON: You think you know the amnesty had been
promised, and you won’t give it.

Hon. Mr. DORION: I know nothing of the kind, but I was
shown a copy of a letter, which I was told was a genuine letter,
from the Rev. Father Ritchot to Hon. Sir George-Ftienne Cartier of
the 8th of May, 1870, in these terms: “Sir, I hope before I leave for
Manitoba you shall put me in possession of the proof of the promise
you and Sir John have so often made to me of an amnesty,” and 1
know it was declared that in the answer Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier
did not deny it. He did not know whether these letters were genuine
or not, but the hon. gentleman knew that he had these letters in his
possession, viz..—The letter of Mr. Ritchot to Hon. Sir George-E.
Cartier on the 18th of May, and the answer of Hon. Sir George-E.
Cartier’s on the 23rd of May, in which he did not deny the facts.

The hon. gentleman, in his zeal, came here as if the Government
were the only guilty parties. Why did he not ask the right hon.
gentleman to admit if these letters were genuine or not? Let them
agree first on the other side of the House, and they might join and
ask the Government what they were about to do in this matter.
(Cheers.)

Mr. COSTIGAN maintained that the late Government had
shown greater consistency in dealing with the New Brunswick
School Act than the present Administration. The old Government
held that they could not advise His Excellency to disallow the Act
of the Local Legislature. The present Government held a different
view when in Opposition, and passed a resolution embodying their
opinion; but they had not acted upon it since their advent to power.
(Hear, hear.) He declared his intention to bring up this question
again this session, and ask the House to pass a resolution calling
upon the Imperial Parliament to amend the constitution in such a
way as to enable the Dominion Government to remedy the injustice
under which the Catholic minority suffered.

Mr. De COSMOS said he rose to make some explanations with
regard to the recent disturbances in British Columbia. It was well
known that when the Province of British Columbia entered the
Dominion it was agreed that a railway should be built within a
certain time, and two years were allowed for the commencement of
the work. At the end of two years a commencement had not been
made. The Government of Canada sent an Order in Council out to
British Columbia stating that the terminus of the Pacific Railway
had been located at Esquimalt, and asking for the Government of
the Province to reserve for the purpose a piece of land along the
shore of the Island of Vancouver. The Govemment of British
Columbia made that reservation, but it turned out that no survey
had at that time been made. The construction of the railway should
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have commenced twenty days after the reservation was made, but it
did not.

The people of British Columbia were consequently very much
dissatisfied, and a few days subsequent to the time when the road
had been expected to commence, they sent a protest to the
Government of Canada. They felt that the Government of the
Dominion had broken faith with them, and he (Mr. De Cosmos)
was prepared to say that, in not commencing the railway within the
time agreed upon, the Government of Canada did break faith with
them.

It might be said that the late Government did all they could by
chartering the Allan Company; but it must be understood that
British Columbia made no bargain with the Allan Company. It
made a bargain with respect to that railway only with the Dominion
of Canada. He used his influence with the Government, not only as
a member of the Government of British Columbia, but also as a
private member of the House of Commons, to get them to make a
bona fide commencement of the road; but the reply he received on
more occasions than one was that the Government had done all it
could.

So great at length became the feeling of disappointment in
British Columbia, that he and the rest of the Local Government
concluded that something must be done. He was sent as a special
agent to the Dominion Government to obtain the money voted to
construct a first-class graving dock at Esquimalt, and also to borrow
a certain sum to open up the Province so that immigrants might be
induced to settle in it. When he came to communicate with the
Government of the Dominion, it was agreed that in lieu of five per
cent per year for twenty years on $100,000, they should give the
Province of British Columbia a total sum of 50,000 pounds sterling
for the construction of the graving dock; but there was no bargain
made with reference to any relaxation of the clause in the Terms of
Union relative to the Railway.

The Ministry led by the right hon. gentleman opposite resigned,
and the Ministry now led by the Hon. Mr. Mackenzie, the Minister
of Public Works, came into power. He (Mr. De Cosmos) saw the
leader of the Government, and that gentleman confirmed the
arrangement he had referred to, but there was no relaxation of the
Railway clause in the Terms of Union. Certain people of British
Columbia started the report that it was not true that the Local
Government had received from the Dominion Govemment a
promise of money for the construction of the graving dock, but by
and by the papers were sent down, and it had to be believed that
such a promise was made.

Then a report was started that the promise had been made in
consideration of the representatives of the Province, bartering away
what British Columbia was entitled to under the Railway clause.

Meetings were held with regard to the matter, and he (Mr. De
Cosmos) was informed that the parties who got them up were
leading members of the Opposition to the Local Government, and
that the people in every case asked them to support the policy of the
Government—to accept the 50,000 pounds, and a meeting was
called to protest against it, because it was stated that money was to
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be received in consideration of the relaxation of the Terms of
Union.

At the end of the meeting it was moved by a certain party, a
newspaper editor, that they should proceed in force over to the
Legislature and present certain resolutions. The crowd did pass over
to where the Assembly were sitting. There were probably a
thousand, but the large body of them were not rowdies, and did not
use violence of any kind. There were a certain number, however,
who did, and when they entered the galleries of the Legislature they
made a noise, and the Speaker thrice asked them to desist, but they
would not, and he left the chair. After a short time the crowd
dispersed, but it was deemed advisable by Government to swear in
a few special constables, and fifty, he believed, were sworn in
accordingly.

On Monday following, a deputation came to the bar of the House
and presented a petition, and while the deputation was in the lobby
a day was appointed on which to take the petition into
consideration. This petition was with reference to the 50,000
pounds. He (Mr. De Cosmos) believed that a telegram was sent
across here as well as to England and to the United States, to the
effect that the British Government had been asked for a man-of-war
to be sent round to Victoria to protect the Legislature—and that the
British Government had refused to send her.

It was also stated that he (Mr. De Cosmos) was forced to resign.
He denied that he had been obliged to do this, either by the
proceedings of the mob or by the voice of the country. He was
supported by his colleagues in the Ministry as a unit, and when the
Bill finally passed there were, he thought, eighteen or twenty
members out of twenty-five in favour of the policy of the
Government to four or five against it.

The reason why he retired was simply this—that during the
session of 1873 the British Columbia Legislature passed a law
abolishing dual representation, and subsequently, but in the same
year, a similar law was passed by the Dominion Parliament. He
was, therefore, compelled to make his choice whether he would
remain in the British Columbia Government as leader, or retire and
become a candidate for the House of Commons. He chose the latter,
and hence it was necessary for him to retire from the Local House.

The gentlemen who were in the Government with him were in
power still, and were supported by as large a majority as ever.
(Hear, hear.) Last session the British Columbia Legislature passed
a Ballot Bill. Last election was the first occasion on which voting
by ballot took place in that Province, and he was happy to say that
his fellow citizens returned him at the head of the poll, and that
when he came away they escorted him to the steamship. (Hear,
hear.) This was the whole story of the great revolution in British
Columbia, which the newspapers had been talking about in Eastern
Canada as well as in Great Britain and the United States.

Mr. BUNSTER said those who went to the British Columbia
Legislature with the petitions went there in a business-like way, but
the people of that Province felt very much disappointed that the
Government of Canada had not carried out their part of the bargain
on which they had come into the Union. They hoped, however, that
this would yet be done, though not as soon as had been promised.
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Mr. DEWDNEY said there was no doubt much dissatisfaction
existed in British Columbia at the non-commencement of the
Pacific Railway in that Province. The hon. member opposite (Mr.
De Cosmos) on one occasion met him in Victoria last summer, and
told him that the railroad was to be commenced at once, and he was
the very man who drove the first stake of the survey. Mr. Dewdney
believed the late Government did all in their power to commence
the construction of the railway and carry out the Terms of Union.

With reference to the railway and the disturbances in the galleries
of the Local Legislature, he contended that the people of Victoria
conducted themselves in a most orderly manner. It was true there
was a good deal of excitement at what was believed to be an
attempt to relax the Terms of Union. This was natural enough from
the address of the Premier to the electors of Lambton.

With reference to the application for a gunboat to protect the
Local Legislature, he could say nothing on his own positive
knowledge; but he was informed by the senior officer of the navy
that such an application had been made to him and refused.
(Cheers.) In Vancouver Mr. De Cosmos could not find a seconder
to his nomination, and he had to go to another district to be elected.
So strong was the feeling of the Province against him, that of the
four members present from the Pacific Coast, not one member
agreed with him. (Cheers.)

Mr. De COSMOS again denied that he sent a letter or any
communication asking for a gunboat to protect the Government. He
could assure the House that the hon. gentleman who had just sat
down did not represent the opinions of any large section of the
people of British Columbia.

The first three paragraphs of the Address were then successively
put and adopted. On the fourth paragraph,

Mr. MASSON acknowledged that he received a letter from the
bishops, but denied that it contained anything referring to an appeal
to the English Privy Council, or that he was aware they were
willing to wait until after that appeal had been made. He had been
asked to become a member of the late Government, but had not
consented to do so, as he was not a man to sacrifice his principles
with regard to this matter.

Right Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said that he did ask
the hon. member for Terrebonne (Mr. Masson) to become a
member of his Government, and that gentleman replied, thanking
him for the honour, but stating that there were two questions to
which he attached the greatest importance, and that until these were
settled in accordance with his opinions he could not entertain the
idea of accepting the proffered position. These two questions were a
general amnesty, including all crimes, political or otherwise, which
had been committed during the troubles in the Northwest or in
consequence of them, and justice in the New Brunswick school
matter. He (Right Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald), on the part of the
Government, declined to give any assurance with regard to these
matters, and the hon. gentleman declined to enter the Government.

The remaining clauses of the Address then passed, and were read
a second time.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE then moved that the resolutions be
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referred to a Committee with mstructions to draft an address
founded thereon.—Carried.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE reported the address from the
Committee, which was adopted, and ordered to be presented to His
Excellency by such members of the House as were members of His
Excellency’s Privy Council. The Address was ordered to be
engrossed.

#* kK

STANDING COMMITTEES

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE moved, seconded by Hon.
Mr. DORION, “That a Special Committee of seven members be
appointed to prepare and report lists of members to compose the
Select Standing Committees.”—Carried.

Hon. Messrs. Dorion, Burpee (St. John — City & County),
Holton, Right Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald, Hon. Messr. Robitaille
and Messr. Mackenzie were appointed a select committee to name
the regular standing committees.

#* ok

MOTION TO ADJOURN
Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE moved that the House do now adjourn.

#* kK

MEMBER ELECT FOR PROVENCHER

Mr. BOWELL said that before they adjourned there was a
question that he wanted to bring before them. It was a question of
privilege. It was pretty well known to everyone there that a man
who had been retumed for the electoral district of Provencher had
taken the oath and signed the roll. It was also very well known that
this man was charged with murder, and was a fugitive from justice.
He thought therefore that this House would conserve its dignity by
taking action in the matter at the earliest possible moment. He
would have thought from the course pursued in the past with regard
to this question by the hon. gentleman who led the Government that
he would early have taken some steps to purge this House of a
person whose presence must be obnoxious to a considerable portion
of the members. He (Mr. Bowell) thought that before this matter
was done with, the Minister of Justice (Hon. Mr. Dorion) would
find that he (Mr. Bowell) and the hon. member for Terrebonne
(Mr. Masson) were not acting in concert with regard to it, and the
simple handing by him of papers to the hon. gentleman did not
indicate any such concert.

He moved, seconded by Mr. SCHULTZ, “That the Clerk of the
Crown in Chancery do attend at the opening of this House
tomorrow, with a return of the last election for the electoral district
of Provencher, together with poll-books and all other letters, papers,
and documents which may have any reference to that election.”
This was the course pursued with reference to the election in the
District of Muskoka, and in the County of Peterborough by the
Hon. Mr. Blake during the last Parliament. If the House passed this
resolution, he would be prepared with another to examine a
gentleman before the bar of this House who, he (Mr. Bowell)
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thought, could put the House in possession of such information as
would justify further action in the premises.

The motion passed.

Mr. BOWELL then moved, seconded by Mr. SCHULTZ,
“That the Hon. H.J. Clarke, Attorney General of the Province of
Manitoba, be summoned tomorrow to the bar of the House to
answer such questions as may be put to him relating to the
indictment before the Grand Jury against Louis Riel, member-elect
for Provencher, in the Province of Manitoba, for the murder of one
Thomas Scott.”

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON thought that there should not be so much
hurry in the matter, but that they should wait until they saw the
result of the proceedings on the first motion. They would then know
what further action to take.

Hon. Mr. ROBITAILLE thought they should have the opinion
of the Minister of Justice on the point.

Hon. Mr. DORION said he had no objection to bringing the
documents before the House. He had nothing to say in the matter
until a substantive motion was made. Then, however, he might have
something to say.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON thought with his friend from Quebec
Centre (Hon. Mr. Cauchon) that the House should be afforded an
opportunity for considering the precedent for the action proposed, if
there were such precedent. The Motion assumed that an indictment
had been made, but this House had not been seized of it. It appeared
to him that the mover of the resolution ought to lay the foundations
of his proceedings with greater care than he proposed to do. The
hon. gentleman may have read in the newspapers that an indictment
was laid, but that was not such information as the House should act
on.

Mr. BOWELL said the Government had assented to his first
proposal, and he did not see any reason why he should postpone
action on the matter. It was true he assumed there was an
indictment laid, and a true bill found; and it was true he was not
seized of documentary evidence, but he presumed it was well
known to everyone that there were facts. It was for the purpose of
getting at the facts, however, that the Attorney of Manitoba was to
be brought before this House.

Hon. Mr. DORION said the objection of the hon. member for
Chateauguay (Hon. Mr. Holton) was that in the resolution the
mover assumed that Riel was the very man without any proof. He
(Hon. Mr. Dorion) did not think, however, it made much difference
whether the motion passed or not, for if it appeared tomorrow that
he was not the right man, of course no action would be taken.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON explained that his object was to have a
little time for reflection.

Mr. BLAIN submitted that the motion was not at present correct
in form. The only object of a motion of this kind was to obtain
evidence with regard to a matter which had been brought before the
House by another motion. He held, therefore, that before the motion
was put the hon. gentleman who proposed it should move that the
hon. member to whom it referred be expelled from the House. He
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could then move that witnesses be brought before the bar of the
House to give evidence. (Laughter.)

The motion then passed.
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MESSAGE FROM HIS EXCELLENCY
Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE brought in a message from His
Excellency, signed by His Excellency’s own hand, and handed it to
the Speaker. The message named Hon. Messrs. Mackenzie, Dorion,
Burpee (St. John — City & County), and Coffin, with the Speaker,
as Commissioners with respect to the internal economy of the
House of Commons and for other purposes.

The House adjourned at 10.45 p.m.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS

Tuesday, March 31, 1874

The SPEAKER took the chair at 3 p.m.

Prayers

PROVENCHER ELECTION

The SPEAKER informed the House that, pursuant to order, the
Clerk of the Crown in Chancery was present with all the poll-books
and the papers in connection with the election for the electoral
district of Provencher.

The Deputy Clerk of the House then read the commission to the
Returning Officer, the proclamation, and the return, certifying the
due return of Louis Riel as representative of the county.

In reply to the Speaker,

Mr. BOWELL expressed himself satisfied. His purpose in
calling for the papers was simply to ascertain the effect and legality
of the return.

#* ok

PETITIONS

Mr. WALKER presented a petition from the Board of Trade of
the City of London, for the removal of taxes upon petroleum.

A large number of petitions for the prohibition of the
manufacture and sale of intoxicating liquors were also presented.
Most of them were from Ontario.

#* %k

CAUGHNAWAGA SHIP CANAL COMPANY

Hon. Mr. HOLTON presented a petition for the incorporation of
the Caughnawaga Ship Canal Company.

#* %k

COMMITTEES OF SUPPLY AND WAYS AND MEANS

Hon. Mr. CARTWRIGHT moved, “That it be resolved that this
House will in future appoint the Committees of Supply and Ways
and Means at the commencement of each session, so soon as an
Address has been agreed in answer to His Excellency’s Speech and
that the said resolution be a standing Order of the House.”

In making this motion he reminded the House that a similar one
was proposed by the hon. member for Kingston (Right Hon. Sir
John A. Macdonald) last year. The purpose of the motion was to
assimilate the practice in this House with the practice in the English
House of Commons, where for some years the various formal

motions which preceded the motions to go into Committees of
Supply and Ways and Means were abolished. As the powers of the
Crown were no longer so strong in this community as to make their
exercise formidable to the liberty of the people, and as the reasons
for those motions had now disappeared, which was pointed out by
Mr. Gladstone at the time they were abolished in England, neither
the privileges nor prerogatives of the House would suffer from their
being expunged. It would be for the convenience of the House that
the sessions should not be unnecessarily protracted, and he thought
the effect of the resolution he had just submitted would be to
shorten it by some ten days.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON: No, no.

Right Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said before this
motion passed he would like to hear the views of his hon. friend
from Chéteauguay (Hon. Mr. Holton) upon the subject. He thought
his hon. friend had been very strongly opposed to it last year,
holding that although it had really worked well in England it did not
apply here; that it gave the Government the power of unduly
pressing the supply, thus throwing over the rights of Her Majesty’s
liege subjects who represented the people of Canada. In fact, the
hon. member seemed to consider that the complicated system of
motions formerly prevailing in England, and still prevailing in
Canada, was not a substantial obstruction to the business of the
House, but on the other hand was a substantial benefit, which
should not be allowed to lapse. These were the views of his hon.
friend when a Government was in power in which he had no
confidence.

No one descended to the depths of wickedness at once, and
perhaps it would be well for his hon. friend with his usual
prescience to take time by the forelock, and before this Ministry fell
in his estimation, as they most undoubtedly would, maintain the
position he took up a year ago. (Hear, hear.)

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said his right hon. friend seemed to forget
that he (Hon. Mr. Holton) had now resigned the office he had last
year, when these objections were taken, and that the right hon.
gentleman had himself succeeded not only to the office but to its
duties and emoluments. (Laughter.) He only hoped his right hon.
friend would hold the office as many years as he
(Hon. Mr. Holton) had done, and fulfil its duties as well. (Great
laughter.)

With respect to the motion of his hon. friend the Minister of
Finance, he would call the recollection of the right hon. member for
Kingston to the terms of objection he took last year to a similar
motion. The same objection could be taken to this motion, but not
to the same extent. He did not last year object so much to the
change itself as to the mode in which it was proposed to be brought
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about, without any notice being given and without any time for
consideration.

The change in England, as the right hon. gentleman knew, was
the result of an enquiry by a Committee into the possibility of
accelerating the business of the House, and of reforming the mode
of procedure. With the enormous amount of business which yearly
came before the Imperial Parliament the question was a very
serious one how they could best improve the mode of procedure,
seeing that for want of time to consider them an innumerable
number of measures were sacrificed at the close of the session. This
was the motive which led to any changes being proposed or carried
out in England. The Committee referred to had not met for some
time and their labours were not very fruitful; but one of the results
was a change of the whole form of proceeding before going into
Committee of Supply and Ways and Means.

He did not know that there was any particular objection to the
same course being pursued here, and certainly the motive which
incited the motion of the Minister of Finance was a good one. His
objection to this change, like those he had taken to a great many
propositions of hon. gentlemen upon the other side of the House
which seemed objectionable, was in the interests of the minority,
whose rights it was his duty for so many years to protect. The right
hon. gentleman had now succeeded to those duties, and if he felt as
he (Hon. Mr. Holton) did last year, that the rights of the minority
were to be imperilled by the change, he should certainly support
him in postponing it till, as had been done in England, a Committee
had been appointed and had reported on the subject.

It would be futile in him (Hon. Mr. Holton) to object to it if the
gentlemen on the other side of the House did not. The time which it
was claimed would be saved by it would be very small indeed; he
did not believe it would make one day or one hour of difference.

Right Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD thought little time
would be saved by the change, but it would relieve the Minister of
Finance of a number of small motions, the omission of any one of
which would throw him over for a considerable time in proceeding
with Supply and Ways and Means. He had a lively recollection of
the way in which his hon. friend from Chateauguay threw over a
late Minister of Finance, Sir John Rose, when he outlined any of
those motions. He thought the proposal embodied was a substantial
improvement which relieved the jourmal from a series of
unnecessary motions. He had proposed it himself last year and he
could not, therefore, very well oppose it this year. He did not think
the rights of the minority would be in any way affected by the
carrying out of the proposition.

The motion was then carried.

#* Ok %

SUPPLY

Hon. Mr. CARTWRIGHT moved, “That the House will
tomorrow go into Committee of the Whole to consider the
resolution that a supply be granted to Her Majesty, and also that the
House go into Committee of Ways and Means.”—Carried.
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ADDRESSES FOR RETURNS

Mr. DELORME moved for a return showing the number of
votes polled for each candidate in the different electoral districts
during the late general election.—Carried. Also, a return of mill and
factory machinery imported into Canada, with the duty paid
thereon, since 1867.—Carried. Also, a return of reports, pamphlets,
etc., printed since the British North American Act, 1867.

Mr. YOUNG pointed out that the motion would entail a large
amount of labour to the Department. He thought the object of the
motion would be gained by letting it stand.

Mr. DELORME said he would have no objection to making his
motion simply include last year.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said the motion was practically
useless. Many of the documents were out of print, and it was
impossible to ascertain how many had been printed and even to a
great extent the number of forms made use of. Perhaps the hon.
gentleman had better let the motion stand and if there was any
particular pamphlet he required the Government would procure it
for him if possible.

The motion was allowed to stand.

#* kK

RAILWAY ACCIDENTS

Mr. DELORME moved for a return of the number of persons
killed or injured on the different railroads for Canada since the
opening of each of those railroads. He also desired to know the
causes of such accidents.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said he was afraid that in many
instances the returns requited by the General Act of 1867 had not
been as complete as the statute contemplated. The Government had
taken steps to make them as complete as possible for the future, and
all they could promise at present was that the returns in the
Department would be presented although they would not contain
the complete returns hon. gentlemen expected.

The motion was carried.

#* kK

LOUIS RIEL

The order for the attendance of the Clerk of the Crown in
Chancery and the Attorney General of Manitoba was then read.

Mr. POPE, Clerk of the Crown in Chancery, occupied a seat
at the Clerk’s table. The Sergeant-at-Arms admitted Attorney
General H.J. Clarke of Manitoba to the bar of the House.

The SPEAKER: In obedience to the order of the House, I issued
a summons commanding the Hon. Mr. Clarke to appear today at the
bar of the House to answer questions relative to the true bill against
Louis Riel for the murder of Thomas Scott. Mr. Clarke is now
present and as his health is exceedingly delicate, [ ask permission of
the House that he may take a seat.
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Mr. CLARKE was accordingly accommodated with a seat at the
bar. The following questions were then put in writing by Mr.
Bowell, and the replies were taken down by the Clerk:

Q.: What is your name, where do you reside, and what is your
profession?

A.: My name is Henry Joseph Clarke. I reside at Winnipeg, in the
Province of Manitoba. My profession is that of a barrister.

Q.: Are you now Attorney General of that Province, and how
long have you held such office?

A.: T am Attorney General of that Province, and have held the
office of Attorney General of the Province since the 10th of
January, 1871.

Q.: Do you know Louis Riel, the member for the electoral district
of Provencher, in the Province of Manitoba, and are you acquainted
with his handwriting?

Mr. CUNNINGHAM (Marquette) rose to a point of order. This
motion took it for a fact that an indictment had been issued.

The SPEAKER did not think that question should be discussed
when the motion was made, but now there was an order of the
House that Mr. Clarke should be examined.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said the object of putting the questions into
the hands of the Speaker before they were put to the witness was
that they might be objected to by any member who thought them
irregular. He supposed the member for Marquette rose to debate the
fitness of this question, and therefore, thought he was in order.

Mr. BOWELL said the member for Marquette objected to the
original motion, not to the form of this question.

After some discussion,

Mr. CUNNINGHAM (Marquette) said he was alluding to the
original motion.

The SPEAKER explained that he had ruled out of order the
objection to the motion passed yesterday, and not the question. The
examination was continued and the question was repeated.

Witness: [ know Louis Riel and I am acquainted with his
handwriting.

Q.: Is the name “Louis Riel” which appears upon the roll now
shown to you in the handwriting of Louis Riel, the member elected
at the last election for the electoral district of Provencher in the
Province of Manitoba?

A.: The signature now shown me is that of Louis Riel, although it
is rather more heavily written than he usually writes it; and Louis
Riel is the member elected for the electoral district of Provencher at
the last election.

Q.: Did you, as Attorney General of the Province of Manitoba,
prefer an indictment against Louis Riel before the Grand Jury of the
Court of Queen’s Bench of the said Province, for the murder of one
Thomas Scott? If so, state what was done in the case.
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Mr. MOUSSEAU contended that the question was irregular,
because the evidence could only be given by public documents, and
not by oral testimony.

Hon. Mr. SMITH (Westmorland) understood the objection to
be that no secondary evidence of the indictment could be given. Ina
Court of Law there was no question but that would obtain.

Hon. Mr. DORION gave it as his opinion that an indictment
could not be proved by oral evidence.

After some discussion,

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Cardwell) referred to English
precedents. In the case of O’Donovan Rossa, a motion for
expulsion was not necessary, as a person convicted of treason or
felony was ipso facto disqualified from sitting in the House. In that
case the motion was simply to declare the seat vacant. In the Sadlier
case, however, a motion for expulsion was made on the ground that
a warrant had been issued against him, and he was a fugitive from
justice.

Mr. BOWELL cited the Sadlier case, where a fugitive from
justice was expelled from the British Parliament, to show that strict
legal rules were not altogether applicable to a case of this kind. He
thought that Attorney General Clarke, being the prosecutor, was the
best witness as to the indictment.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Cardwell) suggested that a question,
merely asking if an indictment had been found against Riel, would
be in order; but the moment the question referred to the contents of
the indictment it was out of order.

The SPEAKER stated that the contents of the indictment could
only be proved by producing the document itself.

Mr. BOWELL then put the following question: Was an
indictment laid against Louis Riel in the Court of Queen’s Bench of
Manitoba?

A.: At the extra term of the Court of Queen’s Bench in Manitoba,
in November last, an indictment was laid against Louis Riel.

Q.: Was a warrant issued upon this indictment for the arrest of
Louis Riel?

A.: A Bench warrant was issued by the Court of Queen’s Bench
in Manitoba against Louis Riel on the indictment.

Q.: Have you got that warrant? If so, produce it.

Mr. MOSS objected to the question on the same ground as the
former one had been declared out of order.

Mr. BOWELL withdrew his question, and submitted the
following in lieu of it: Was a warrant issued upon said indictment?

Mr. MOUSSEAU objected to the question still as being
irregular.

After a brief discussion the question was declared in order.

A.: T have the warrant referred to, and I now produce it.
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Witness produced the warrant, which was read by the Clerk. In
the usual legal terms it commanded the Sheriff to bring before the
Justice of the Court of Queen’s Bench the body of Louis Riel, to
answer for an indictment found against the said Louis Riel, for the
murder of one Thomas Scott. It was signed “J.J. McKeagney, Judge
of the Court of Queen’s Bench”, and dated Winnipeg, 15
November, 1873.

Q.: Have any steps been taken to secure the arrest of the said
Louis Riel, member for Provencher? If so, state what was done.

A.: The Sheriff, police officers, and detectives of the Province
have been in search of Louis Riel from the time of the issuing of the
warrant to the present time, but he has evaded their pursuit.

The SPEAKER took exception to the reply as containing
statements which Mr. Clarke could hardly be expected to know as
facts within his own knowledge.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Cardwell) said the reply was quite
regular.

Q.: Do you know whether a warrant for the arrest of Louis Riel
has been put into the hands of the police officers in the City of
Ottawa?

A.: T have no personal knowledge of the fact.

Q.: Do you know any facts as Attorney General of Manitoba
relative to Riel’s participation in the murder of Thomas Scott? If so
state them.

Hon. Mr. SMITH (Westmorland) thought the question
objectionable, as it was putting this man on his trial for murder; but
this was not a Court to try him, and the question was entirely out of
order.

The SPEAKER thought the question objectionable, as it implied
that Riel’s participation in this matter had been to some extent
established.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Cardwell) said it was established that
the party named in the warrant was a fugitive from justice, and he
thought that was all it was necessary to get from this witness.

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON denied that it was established that
Mr. Riel was a fugitive from justice. He had been in this building
and placed his name upon the roll of members; therefore, he was
clearly not a fugitive from justice. In the case of Mr. Sadlier, the
order was that he should appear in his place and answer for himself,
and he had every reason to believe, if such an order were made in
this case, Mr. Riel would appear and justify himself.

After further discussion,
The SPEAKER ruled the question out of order.

Mr. BOWELL put the following question: Do you remember
the threatened Fenian invasion of the Province of Manitoba in the
year 18717

Mr. McDONNELL submitted that all the questions which had
been put except those relating to the indictment were irregular, as
the notice on the paper was confined to the subject of the
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indictment. Mr. Riel was a member of this House, and if he had
been properly notified of the examination which was to take place
here today, he might have been in attendance. In the absence of an
hon. member of this House, hon. gentlemen present were bound to
protect his rights.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Cardwell) said that when the witness
was at the bar they had a right to ask any question though the House
might determine whether it should or should not be put.

Mr. McDONNELL asked if it was fair to Mr. Riel.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Cardwell) asked why Louis Riel was
not in his place to defend himself. He was in this building
yesterday, signed the roll, and was sworn in. If he were absent it
was his own fault.

Mr. CUNNINGHAM (Marquette) said if matters were to be
entered into so fully, it would be well to ascertain whether there
were not political or personal reasons for it.

Mr. PALMER thought that such an insinuation was needless, to
say the least. What was to be proved was whether Louis Riel was a
fugitive from justice or not. If he were, it was for the House then to
say whether he should be expelled from Parliament. If Louis Riel
was not present to defend himself he had no one to blame for his
absence. Under the rules of the House he should be in his seat.

Mr. BOWELL explained that his object in asking the question
was to prove that Louis Riel was not only a fugitive from justice,
but also that he was concerned in the Scott murder. If he were not
allowed to put the question, it would only necessitate the putting of
another motion on the paper. He expected that every technical
objection would be taken to frustrate a full investigation. (Cries of
“Order”.) He regretted that a disposition had been shown to
observe all the legal technicalities of a law court instead of
prosecuting the investigation with a view to eliciting all the facts.

Hon. Mr. SMITH (Westmorland) did not regard the question
as one of order as to the question of fact; but it should not go so far
as to show that Riel had any complicity in that invasion. That, he
considered, would be unjust.

Hon. Mr. DORION had no objection to the question, though
precedent showed that the proceedings should commence by a
notice to the member concerned to appear in his place.

After some further discussion,

The SPEAKER ruled the question out of order, on the ground
that under the present order of the House they had nothing to do
with the Fenian invasion.

Mr. BOWELL then proceeded with his examination of the
witness.

Q.: Have any steps been taken by you to procure the outlawry of
Louis Riel in consequence of his non-appearance at the Court of
Queen’s Bench to answer the indictment found against him?

Hon. Mr. SMITH (Westmorland) said that it seemed to him
that was not a proper question. The answer to it must imply
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evidence with reference to the contents of papers and not before the
House, and he thought they could not take proceedings in outlawry
unless on evidence in writing.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Cardwell) said that the question was
simply, “have any steps been taken!” and the answer, word “yes” or
“no”. What were the steps was another thing.

The SPEAKER: 1 think the question is in order.
The question was then put.

A.. Steps have been taken by me, as Crown Prosecutor of the
Court of Queen’s Bench for the Province of Manitoba, to proceed
with the outlawry of Louis Riel, on account of his having evaded
the pursuit of justice and refused to come and take his trial.

Mr. BOWELL: Is the Louis Riel to whom you have referred in
your evidence as having been indicted before the Grand Jury of the
Court of Queen’s Bench in Manitoba, and against whom a true bill
was returned, and who has since been a fugitive from justice, the
same Louis Riel who was elected at the last general election for the
electoral district of Provencher a member of the House of
Commons of Canada, and whose name appears upon the roll of
names of members of this House shown to you by the Clerk of this
House?

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Cardwell) said that he thought the
question ought to be amended. It contained in it a statement of what
this House would have to find out, which was whether this
gentleman was a fugitive from justice. (Hear, hear.)

Mr. MOSS said the question might be put in this form—Is the
Louis Riel to whom you have been referring in your evidence the
same Louis Riel who was elected member of this House for
Provencher?

Mr. BOWELL said he thought his question covered the object
taken to it. What he (Mr. Bowell) asked was—Is this the Louis Riel
to whom you have referred in your answers as having been indicted
before the Court of Queen’s Bench, and against whom a true bill
has been returned? These facts had been established, and,
consequently, Riel was a fugitive from justice.

Mr. MOSS said that the witness did not say that. He said that
Riel had evaded the pursuit of justice.

Mr. BOWELL then put his question in the following form: Is
the Louis Riel to whom you have referred in your evidence the
same Louis Riel who was elected a member of this House for the
electoral district of Provencher, and whose signature appears on the
roll shown to you?

A.: He is the same individual.
Mr. BOWELL: That is all, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. OUIMET: State the source of your knowledge of the steps
taken by the sheriff and police officers referred to in your answers.
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A.: T derived my information from the sworn testimony of the
sheriff and officers referred to, and, in some instances, by being
myself in command of officers seeking to make the arrest.

Mr. MOUSSEAU: At whose request did you procure the
warrant referred to in one of your answers?

A.: If the hon. gentleman will state what warrant he refers to, I
can answer. | have referred to several warrants.

Mr. MOUSSEAU: The Bench warrant produced by you here.

A.: T was not asked by anybody to procure that warrant. I brought
it here for the purpose, if Louis Riel presented himself, of having
him arrested by due course of law. [ may add that I had the same
warrant with me last December when I came down.

The SPEAKER: I think it would be better if the witness
confined himself to the simple questions put to him, and did not
volunteer any statements.

Mr. OUIMET: State when and in what capacity you put
yourself at the head of the police officers of Manitoba to arrest the
said Louis Riel.

A.: In the month of February last, and as a Justice of the Peace
for the Province of Manitoba.

Mr. MOUSSEAU: Was the indictment referred to in your
answer laid before the Grand Jury long before or after the election
of Louis Riel in October last or thereabouts to represent the
electoral district of Provencher in the House of Commons of
Canada?

A.: The indictment referred to was laid in the month of
November, 1873 at an extra term of Court. I do not know when the
election took place in Provencher.

Mr. OUIMET: Were there other persons arrested for the same
offense at the time the warrant against Riel was issued?

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Cardwell) said he did not think the
question was a proper one. It was a matter of no importance as far
as this enquiry was concerned whether any other person was
arrested or not. The next question might be, what are their names?

Hon. Mr. DORION said he thought the question bore as much
on the case as any other which had been put. There had been no
charge nor any motion on which a question could be put. They did
not know why the witness was brought here.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Cardwell) said the several questions
which had been put were with reference to a person who was a
member of this House. The present question had reference to
persons who were not members of this House, and they had nothing
to do with the arrest of such persons.

The SPEAKER ruled the question out of order.

Mr. MOUSSEAU: Do you know if any election proceedings
took place in Provencher last fall?

A.: T am aware that an election took place in Provencher last fall.
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Mr. OUIMET said that they had a few more questions to put to
the witness, and as some time would be necessary to prepare them,
and the House were anxious to deal fairly with the question, they
would, he supposed, be willing to adjourn the examination. He
would therefore move, seconded by Mr. MASSON, that the
examination of witnesses be adjourned until tomorrow at three
o’clock, and that the witness be required to then attend in the
House.—Carried.

Mr. BOWELL moved, seconded by Mr. SCHULTZ, that the
policeman McVeity, of the city of Ottawa, be summoned to appear
tomorrow at three o’clock at the bar of the House, to be examined
in the matter of the warrant for the arrest of Louis Riel, and to bring
such warrant with him.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said that they had no evidence that such a
policeman or such a warrant existed. They had it in evidence this
afternoon that a warrant was issued in Manitoba. This document
was not on the table. It was therefore impossible that it could be in
the hands of this policeman, and they had no evidence whatever
that any warrant had been issued or that such existed.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Cardwell) said there could be no
objection to the policeman being examined. He might have a
warrant, and a member of the House stated he required the evidence
of a witness whom he named. He was not required to do anything
else.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said no charge had been made. Someone
ought to take the responsibility of formulating one, so that they
should not be calling witnesses in this loose way from all parts of
the country, or else of basing an enquiry upon papers placed upon
the table.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Cardwell) said that he had had no
communication with the hon. member for Hastings North (Mr.
Bowell) as to what he intended to do, but as far as he had gone he
had pursued exactly the same course that had been followed in
other cases in England—among others, the Sadlier case. Upon
reaching a certain stage of the case a certain course would have to
be pursued. That stage had not yet been reached.

The motion was then carried.

Mr. BOWELL moved, seconded by Mr. SCHULTZ, that Louis
Riel, member for Provencher, do attend in his place in this House
tomorrow at 3 o’clock.—Carried.

* % %
RETURNS

Hon. Mr. BURPEE (St. John - City & County) laid on the
table the Trade and Navigation Returns for last year.

Hon. Mr. LAIRD laid on the table the Inland Revenue returns
for last year.
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MOTION FOR ADJOURNMENT

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE moved the Easter adjournment of the
House.

#* kK

THE RECESS

Mr. DYMOND said that before the motion was put perhaps Mr.
Speaker would allow him to ask his hon. friend at the head of the
Government whether he could give members some idea of the
length of the Easter recess. He would take the liberty of saying,
without desiring to inconvenience the hon. gentlemen who came
from a greater distance than himself, that it would be agreeable to
many with whom Good Friday was a day of religious observance to
arrive at home on Thursday evening, and therefore not to meet on
Thursday. Many hon. gentlemen felt it their duty, if possible, to
attend the vestry meetings of one denomination held on Easter,
Monday evening and they would accordingly desire not to leave
home again till Tuesday. (Hear, hear.)

It was not for him, as a very young member, to urge his own
wishes upon the House, and he only threw out the suggestion in
order to elicit the opinions of members, believing that his hon.
friend would gladly listen to wishes that might be generally
expressed on the subject. (Hear, hear.)

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said no suggestion had been made to
him, and he was not aware that any had been made to his colleagues
on the subject. It was the desire of the Government to consult the
convenience of the House, and they would respect any opinion the
House might express with regard to it.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Cardwell) said perhaps the hon.
gentleman would inform the House tomorrow what the Government
would do.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON suggested an adjournment until Tuesday
evening at 7.30.

Right Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD pointed out that
Thursday was a holiday of the Catholic members of the Ministry.
The next day was Good Friday, and the next day following upon
which the House could sit was Easter Monday, a statutory holiday.
He thought it would be better to adjourn until Wednesday. A
meeting at half-past seven o’clock on Tuesday evening would not
answer any purpose. Those members who arrived on Wednesday
morming would be placed at a disadvantage.

Mr. YOUNG thought the matter should be looked at partly from
the point of view of those members who came from distant parts of
the Dominion, who could not go home during the adjournment. He
thought the recess should be made as short as possible, particularly
as warm weather was coming on.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said the Government would endeavour to
ascertain the wishes of hon. gentlemen generally before 3 o’clock
tomorrow.
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The House adjourned at 6.10 p.m.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS

Wednesday, April 1, 1874

The SPEAKER took the chair at 3.10 p.m.

Prayers

PETITIONS

Several petitions were presented against the manufacture and sale
of intoxicating liquors.
L

CANADA INSURANCE COMPANY

Mr. DOMVILLE presented a petition from the Canada
Insurance Company, praying for an amendment to their charter.
LI

THE RIEL CASE

Mr. BOWELL said he had yesterday made a motion to have the
policeman McVeity brought to the bar of the House, with the
warrant for the arrest of Riel. He had found since then that the
policeman mentioned was not the one who held the warrant, and
therefore he moved that Philip Hamilton, of the Ottawa police
force, be summoned forthwith to the bar of the House, to be
examined in the matter of the warrant for the arrest of Louis Riel,
and to bring such warrant with him, if in his possession.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said it would be desirable to go
through the routine proceedings before commencing with these
motions.

Mr. BOWELL said the Premier did not seem to have understood
the purpose of the motion, which was to rectify the mistake made
last night inviting the policeman McVeity, and thus continue the
business of the House.

The motion carried.

Before today’s proceedings were begun,

E
EASTER RECESS
Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said, with reference to the

adjournment of the House over the Easter period, he had consulted
the views of as many of the members as he could and there was a
very general desire to adjourn until Wednesday, April 8. He thought
all the objects would be met by adjourning until half-past seven on
Tuesday evening. He had, therefore, to move: That when this House
is adjourned today it does stand adjourned until half-past seven on
Tuesday night.

He further stated that it was understood that on Tuesday night the

business would be of such a character as would not be likely to
create discussion. The Session would be useful for taking initiatory
steps with regard to a number of measures. (Hear, hear.)

L

BRITISH COLUMBIA PROVINCIAL PENITENTIARY
APPROPRIATION

Mr. CUNNINGHAM (New Westminster) enquired why the
sum of $25,000, passed in the estimates of 1873 for the construction
of a part of the Provincial Penitentiary in British Columbia, has not
been expended, and whether it is the intention of the Government to
proceed with its construction, and if so, when?

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE: 1 am informed that the reason why it
was not expended was that plans were not prepared until very late
in the autumn. The plans have only been completed within the last
month or two, and the construction will be proceeded with
immediately.

#* k%

BRITISH COLUMBIA MEMBERS

Mr. DEWDNEY enquired whether the Hon. the Premier or any
member of the Cabinet received a telegram from Mr. De Cosmos
stating that six members from British Columbia would support the
present Government, such an assertion having been made by the
Hon. the Secretary of State (Hon. Mr. Scott) at the last general
election, and contradicted by Mr. De Cosmos in British Columbia.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE: I have no knowledge of what private
telegrams were received by members of the Government, and if |
had I would not feel disposed to mention it in public. (Cheers and
laughter.)

#* % ok

MAIL SERVICE IN BRITISH COLUMBIA

Mr. BUNSTER asked whether it is the intention of the
Government to establish a daily mail communications between
Victoria, British Columbia, and Puget Sound in place of the bi-
weekly service at present performed, and thus connect it with the
mail system of the United States.

Hon. Mr. MACDONALD (Glengarry): 1 have to inform the
hon. gentleman that it is not the intention of the Government to
establish a daily mail there at the present time.

LI

MR. EDGAR’S MISSION TO BRITISH COLUMBIA

Mr. DEWDNEY enquired whether Mr. Edgar is the accredited
agent of the Dominion Government to British Columbia, and if so,
what are his instructions?
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Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE: Mr. J.D. Edgar has been sent on a
confidential mission to British Columbia, and the instructions he
has received are not such as [ am prepared to present to the House
at present. (Hear, hear.)

L

MOTION FOR PAPERS

Mr. DELORME said he had decided to change the motion for a
return of pamphlets, reports, et cetera, printed since Confederation,
which yesterday was allowed to stand so that it should read from
the Ist January, 1873.

The motion was carried in this form.

#* kK

MANUFACTURES

Mr. CHISHOLM, on the motion for a Select Committee on the
extent and condition of the manufacturing interests of the
Dominion, said he had agreed to leave this matter in the hands of
the senior member for Hamilton (Mr. Wood). He, therefore, moved
for leave to withdraw the motion.

The order was then discharged.
% ok %

SALE OF LIQUORS IN PARLIAMENTARY BUILDINGS

Mr. CHISHOLM moved that Mr. Speaker be requested to issue
an order prohibiting the sale of intoxicating liquors within the
precincts of this House. In doing so, he promised not to occupy the
House in discussing the question, as he believed every member in
the House had already made up his mind upon the matter. He
referred to the rumour that the gentleman who had for many years
kept the saloon had been dismissed, and the place given to another,
but disclaimed any intention of doing injury to the lessees in
moving this motion. The matter had been brought up against him
during the recent campaign and he was then accused of not raising
the matter in the last Parliament. Of course he had to get out of it as
soon as he could.

He found on examining the Journals of the House for 1864 that a
similar motion had been carried by 111 to four members. Among
these four there was only one member present now. This was his
hon. friend the Minister of Finance (Hon. Mr. Cartwright) who was
then a high-toned Conservative. Now that he was a Reformer like
himself (Mr. Chisholm), he did not expect that he would be found
voting against it. (Cheers and laughter.)

It was a duty they owed to themselves and to the country to do
away with drinking, in the House at all events, and some attention
should be paid to the feeling of the people in the matter. He looked
for the support of every member, whether he was in favour of a
prohibitory law or not.

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON thought he was as good a temperance
man as the hon. mover of this resolution. In 1848 he had been
appointed a member of a Committee to assist the Speaker in the
internal management of the House, and to prevent people from
drinking. (Laughter.) It was found as a result of a prohibition
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similar to that now proposed that bottles of liquor of greater or
lesser dimensions were found in every cupboard of the various
Committee rooms. (Laughter.) If members could not get drink
inside the House they would have it outside the House. (Laughter.)
It was better to leave it as a matter of discipline. Moral suasion, he
was satisfied, would be more successful as to its results than the
vigorous mode of procedure proposed by the hon. mover of the
motion. If drink was to be consumed it was right that the liquor
furnished should be of the very best quality. (Cheers and laughter.)

He advised that this matter be left to the decision of the Speaker,
and that the motion be not pressed. If it were he would vote against
it, and he predicted that the result would be worse than the evil of
which the hon. gentleman complained were the motion carried.

Mr. ROCHESTER supported the resolution, as he thought the
House should set the example of doing away with intemperance.
Although he had never been a teetotaller, but on the other hand, a
manufacturer of beer, he hoped this resolution would pass.

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON said that when temperance houses were
established in Quebec he had seen people coming out of them on
the shoulders of four men.

Mr. CURRIER said he had a great deal of pleasure in
supporting this motion. He thought, in order to make it of any avail
at all, it should be put stronger. It merely prohibited the sale of
intoxicating drinks. He would suggest an amendment to prevent the
use of liquors in the building.

Mr. CAMERON (Ontario South) said he had been a teetotaller
for forty years, and hon. gentlemen who had been in Parliament
with him before would remember the course he had always taken
on this question. He was surprised at the remarks made by his hon.
friend the member for Quebec Centre (Hon. Mr. Cauchon) and he
had hoped that no voice would be raised today against the
discontinuance of the sale of liquor in this House by authority of
Parliament. On two former occasions a similar motion had been
carried, but the Speaker had not acted in accordance with the
resolution. He has been glad to see the present Speaker take the
chair, because he believed he would carry out the will of
Parliament. He was certain the House would not suffer the disgrace
to exist another day.

Mr. RYAN cordially supported the motion. He hoped that
Mr. Speaker would see that the order was rigidly enforced.

Mr. ROSS (Middlesex West) hoped the House would
unanimously pass the motion, and that it would be followed by the
prohibition of the sale throughout the country.

Mr. BUNSTER was sorry to see this matter brought up as a
Temperance question. It was well known that members sitting in
the House to a late hour required refreshments. He for one believed
that hon. gentlemen were able to govern themselves, and he did not
approve of copying the movement of the women of Ohio. What was
to become of the revenue, if this movement was to spread?
(Laughter.) He for one entered his solemn protest against this
motion.
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Hon. Mr. CAUCHON rose to move an amendment.

Mr. CAMERON (Ontario South) rose to a point of order. His
hon. friend had already spoken, and could not therefore move an
amendment.

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON looked bewildered and took his seat amid
roars of laughter.

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON: Never mind. I have a friend who will
move it. (Laughter.)

Mr. LAFLAMME moved, seconded by Mr. JETTE, that this
question be referred to a Committee of five members, notably, Mr.
Chisholm, Mr. Cameron (Ontario South), the mover, and the
seconder.

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON said he had now a right to speak, he
supposed. (Laughter.) He spoke in favour of moderate drinking. He
was opposed to all extremes, and did not approve of preventing a
man who wanted a glass of liquor from getting it. People who
wished to drink would find liquor, even if they had to go outside of
the building for it, and the result would be that members would be
missing when they should be present to vote on divisions.

Mr. JETTE said that although he had seconded the amendment,
he claimed the right of voting against it.

Mr. KERR supported the original motion. The sentiment of the
country was in favour of it and he should be glad if not only the sale
but the use of intoxicating liquors were prohibited within the
precincts of the House.

Mr. CURRIER, in amendment to the amendment, moved that
Mr. Speaker be requested to issue an order prohibiting either the
sale or use of intoxicating liquors within the precincts of the House.

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON: Then if you give a dinner, Mr. Speaker,
we cannot take a glass of wine with you?

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE hoped the amendment would be
withdrawn. The vote could be taken as well on the first amendment,
and besides, the motion of the member for Ottawa was hardly in
order, as the Speaker could not prohibit the use of liquor.

After some discussion Mr. McDOUGALL (Renfrew South),
who had seconded the amendment, said he would consent to its
withdrawal. It had been offered merely for the purpose of showing
that the original motion was no buncombe resolution, but was
intended to be enforced for the purpose of wholly excluding
intoxicating liquors from the buildings.

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON said he insisted that the amendment of
the member for Ottawa (Mr. Currier) should be put, and promised
to support it.

Mr. CURRIER was willing to withdraw the amendment.
Hon. Mr. CAUCHON protested.

The SPEAKER ruled the amendment of the member for Quebec
Centre (Hon. Mr. Cauchon) out of order. In putting the original
resolution, he said that if it were passed he should endeavour, as far
as possible, with the means at his disposal, to enforce it most

37

rigidly.

The motion was then carried amid cheers, no division being
called for.

The SPEAKER stated that he would do all he could, with the
limited means at his commend, to enforce the order of the House.

#* Ok %

APPOINTMENT OF MR. EDWARD JENKINS

Right Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD, in the absence of
Hon. Mr. Tupper, moved for all Orders in Council relating to the
appointment of Edward Jenkins as Emigrant Agent in London and
Agent General for Canada for the United Kingdom and any other
office or offices he may hold from Canada.—Carried.

#* k%

APPOINTMENT TO PUBLIC OFFICES

Mr. GEOFFRION moved for a return of appointments made to
public office between the Ist and the 7th of November last.

At the suggestion of Mr. Cameron (Huron South),

Mr. GEOFFRION amended the motion so as to read between
the Ist October and 7th November.—Carried.

]

MANUFACTURING INTERESTS

Mr. WOOD (Hamilton) moved for a Select Committee to
consider the answers which have been made to a series of questions
addressed by the Clerk of the House, since the last session of the
last Parliament, to the manufacturers of the Dominion touching
their interest, in accordance with the recommendation of a Select
Committee of the House of Commons; said Committee to consist of
the following members:—Messrs. Chisholm, Irving, Walker, Jette,
Cameron (Huron South), Charlton, Colby, Masson, Ryan, De
Cosmos, McDougall (Trois-Rivieres), Norris, Blain, Brouse, Buell,
and Wood.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON suggested the addition of the name of
Mr. Alexander F. Macdonald (Cornwall).

Hon. Mr. MITCHELL said no one from the Maritime
Provinces was proposed. He suggested the addition of the names of
Messrs. Carmichael, from Nova Scotia; Domville, from New
Brunswick; and Sinclair, from Prince Edward Island.

Mr. DOMVILLE declined to act.

Mr. MILLS thought free traders ought to be represented on the
Committee. He suggested the addition of the member for York
North (Mr. Dymond).

Mr. WALKER said he held the opinion that we had abundance
of protection by the present tariff, and was opposed to raising the
taxes except for purposes of revenue. He believed, however, that he
was alone on the proposed Committee, and thought both sides
ought to be fairly represented.
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After some conversational remarks by Messrs. Wood, Young,
Blain, Cauchon and Davies, the rule limiting the number of a Select
Committee to fifteen was suspended, and the following names were
added:—Messrs. Pickard, Carmichael, Sinclair, Dymond, and
Macdonald (Cornwall).

#* kK

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY

Mr. ROSS (Middlesex West) moved for a statement regarding
Section 13 of the Intercolonial Railway.

#* kK

MOTION FOR PAPERS

Mr. SMITH (Selkirk) moved for copies of the proclamation of
6th December, 1869, having reference to difficulties which existed
in the Northwest in 1869-1870.

Hon. Mr. DORION said all the documents in the possession of
the Government would be brought down.

The motion was amended to include correspondence between the
Imperial Government and Manitoba direct, and carried.

#* kK

THE NORTHWEST TROUBLES

Mr. SMITH (Selkirk) moved for a Committee of Nine to
enquire into the causes of the difficulties which existed in the
Northwest in 1869 and 1870, and into those which have retarded
the granting of the amnesty announced in the proclamation issued
by the late Governor General of Canada, Sir John Young; and,
further to enquire whether, and to what extent, other promises of
amnesty have been since made with power to send for persons,
papers and records.

In doing so, he said it was well known that the country had been
greatly agitated for three of four years on the subject of the troubles
in Manitoba and the Northwest in 1869-1870. He believed there
was a general desire that a better knowledge should be had of these
matters, and he also believed that this could only be done by a
thorough investigation into the whole subject. With a view to this
end he now desired to ask for a Committee of the House for the
purposes specified in the motion.

It was unnecessary to go into particulars with regard to this
matter, for there was not one member of the House that did not
know there were troubles, and very great and serious troubles,
existing there at the time he mentioned. Unfortunately, at this
moment, the state of that portion of the country was not such as it
ought to be; and in that Province as well as throughout the whole
country there was a spirit of dissatisfaction that something definite
had not been done in the matter before this time. He believed, as he
had already said, that the truth should be elicited by a thorough
investigation, and that it was the desire of every member of this
House to be fully informed on the subject.

He would say nothing upon the matter except that he looked
upon it as a duty to his constituents in Selkirk, as well as to the
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whole Province of Manitoba, that this motion should be brought
before the House, but he could not but regret that it was not oftered
by someone more competent to deal with it than he was. He would
have been glad to see the matter brought up by some member of
either the late or present Government. He was sure, seeing that he
did not bring it up in any party spirit, that it would be received by
the House in the same spirit as it was offered and that all would
give their assistance to obtain a thorough knowledge of the whole
subject. He drew attention to the fact that the number of the
Committee had been altered from seven, as in the original notice, to
nine.

Mr. SCHULTZ stated that he would be very happy to support
the motion of the hon. gentleman from Selkirk did he feel that the
motion would obtain the results claimed for it by the hon. member.
He felt, with the mover of the motion, that it was very desirable that
those vexed questions should be set at rest, but he did not believe
that result would be obtained through the Committee for which the
hon. gentleman moved.

In the first place, such a Committee was likely to have a strong
political complexion, when thorough impartiality in the matter was
to be desired. Again a Committee of the House could only sit
during the session of Parliament, and the time was too short to
obtain the evidence, which must come from Manitoba, and again,
no power was proposed in the motion to enable the Committee to
summon persons and procure papers.

He had, with a view of obtaining a thorough and impartial
investigation into the disturbances of 1869-1870, placed a motion
on the paper for a Royal Commission, which, as its sittings could be
at the scene of the disturbances, would be able to obtain facts and
elicit information which he firmly believed could not possibly be
got by the proposed Committee.

In regard to the amnesty spoken of, he found, on reference to the
copy of that document to be found in the blue books of Parliament,
that it was dated the 6th December, 1869, and was promulgated at
Red River before any really overt act had been committed, at least
before blood had been shed. Hon. gentlemen would find that the
condition of this amnesty was the laying down of arms; but this had
not been done, and the promise, he held, thereupon ceased. In
reference to subsequent promises of amnesty, he doubted if such
had been made, and thought that if they had, such a Committee
were very unlikely to elicit the facts. He would, therefore, on these
grounds, and in the hope of procuring a Royal Commission of
Enquiry, oppose the motion.

The motion was carried.

Mr. SMITH (Selkirk) then moved that the following gentlemen
be appointed the Committee to which the foregoing resolution
refers:—Messrs. Cameron (Cardwell), Bowell, Mitchell, Blake,
Moss, Geoffrion, Masson, Jones (Halifax) and the mover.

Hon. Mr. MITCHELL said that as a member of the late
Government it might not be conducive to the conduct of the
proceedings of the Committee that he should serve upon it
personally. He would have no hesitation in doing so, but it might
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place both himself and the Committee in a false position.

Mr. SMITH (Selkirk) said he had perfect confidence in the hon.
gentleman that he would perform his duties on the Committee
faithfully, notwithstanding the objection he had taken; but in
deference to his wish he would substitute the name of the Hon.
Mr. Abbott (Argenteuil).

The motion, with this alteration, was then carried.

EIE A

APPOINTMENTS AND DISMISSALS

Right Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD moved for a return of
all appointments made, or offices conferred, by the Government
from the Ist day of August last until the 26th day of March instant;
also, of all Orders in Council recommending any such appointments,
with copies of the same; also, of all increases of salary made, or
recommended to be made, between above dates; also, of all
dismissals or removals from office, between above dates; also, of
all dismissals or removals from office, between the above dates.

He said he made this motion because the most exaggerated
accounts had gone to the country as to the number of appointments
made immediately anterior to the retirement of the Ilate
Government. It had been said something like 300 appointments
were then made, and he desired the return to show exactly the state
of the facts.

The motion was carried.

#* ok K

BRITISH COLUMBIA TERMS OF UNION

Mr. DEWDNEY moved for copies of all correspondence with
the British Columbia Govermnment relative to the alteration of
clauses 10 and 12 of the Terms of Union with Canada, or generally
with reference to any relaxation of the Terms of Union. He said that
the representatives of British Columbia were sent to this House for
the purpose of supporting any Government that would carry out the
original terms upon which that Province came into the Union, and
he desired to know the intention of the Government with regard to
this matter.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE: There is no such correspondence as
the hon. gentleman moves for between this Government and the
Government of British Columbia.

Mr. DEWDNEY then withdrew his motion.

#* kK

STANDING COMMITTEES

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE presented the report of the Committee
appointed to strike the Standing Committees of the House.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE proposed that the following gentlemen
be on a Select Committee to assist the Speaker in the management
of the Library:—Messrs. Abbott, Baby, Brouse, Cartwright,
Cameron (Cardwell), Cauchon, Dorion, Fréchette, Holton,
Laflamme, Mills, Macdonald (Right Hon. Sir John A.), Smith
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(Westmorland), Tupper, Young, and the mover.—Carried.

#* % ok

FINANCIAL STATEMENT BUDGET

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said that before the orders of the day were
called he would like to enquire of his hon. friend the Minister of
Finance (Hon. Mr. Cartwright) whether he was in a position to
state, before the House adjourned for recess, about what time he
would be prepared to make his financial statement.

He made this enquiry because he knew that considerable interest
was felt throughout the country on the subject. Numerous enquiries
had been addressed to members of this House regarding it, and
perhaps his hon. friend would enable them to reply to those
enquiries in the most comprehensive way—that was to say if he
were in a position to make any statement whatever. He disclaimed
any desire to press for any statement if the hon. gentleman was
unable to give it; but if merely an approximate estimate of the time
were given, it would be gratitying to the House and to the country
to receive the information.

Hon. Mr. CARTWRIGHT said he hoped the estimates would
be in the hands of hon. members of this House immediately upon
their return on Wednesday next. (Hear, hear.) Of course the hon.
member was aware that a little depended upon the printer, but if he
succeeded as well as he expected, he thought it probable he should
be able to make his financial statement upon the succeeding Friday.
He wished his hon. friend to understand that he did not pledge
himself absolutely to this; but he thought it probable matters would
be so far advanced that he might make his financial statement on
Friday week. (Hear, hear.)

#* Ok 3k

AN ANOMALOUS POSITION

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON rose to a question of privilege. The Hon.
Mr. Stanislaus F. Perry, Speaker of the Legislature of Prince
Edward Island, has been elected to represent one of the Counties of
that Province (Prince) in this House. The Statute said any member
of the Local House before becoming a candidate for the Dominion
House must first place his resignation in the hands of the Speaker,
or if the Speaker was absent, in the hands of the Lieutenant-
Governor; but Mr. Perry was the Speaker himself, and therefore
could not place his resignation in the hands of the Speaker, and not
being absent, he could not place his resignation in the hands of the
Lieutenant-Govermor.

He referred to the case of the Hon. Mr. Currie, in the Ontario
Legislature, where the resignation had been placed in the hands of
the Clerk of the House, but the legality of the course had been
doubted by some of the hon. gentleman’s own friends. In the case,
the member had not yet taken his seat, and it was possible that he
might have trouble when the case came before the Court.

He brought the matter under the notice of the Government so that
proceedings should be immediately taken so that the hon. member
might have his seat and the country its representative. A Committee
should be appointed to enquire into the matter, and if necessary a
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special Act should be passed to install him in his seat.

Hon. Mr. DORION said the case had been correctly
represented, and some doubt seemed to exist as to whether the
member should take his seat under the circumstances. He thought
the case should be referred to the Committee on Privileges and
Elections, or to a special Committee of five or six. At any rate,
steps would require to be taken to have the constituency represented
in the House as soon as possible.

He referred to the case in 1868 when Ministers of the several
Provinces found that they were unable to be elected to this House,
and in order to meet the case an Act of Indemnity was passed. The
case of Mr. McDonald, of Lunenburg, was included in the same
Act. He thought it would be well to have the report of the
Committee on Privileges and FElections in this matter, and a
recommendation from them either to enable Mr. Perry to take his
seat, or to enable Mr. Speaker to issue a writ for a new election. He
was not sure but the proper way would be for Mr. Perry to present a
petition, stating the facts, and the petition could afterwards be
submitted to the Committee. He could well understand why Mr.
Perry was unwilling to take his seat, because, according to the
Statutes he would be liable to a fine of 500 pounds if at the time of
his election he had not properly resigned his seat in the Local
House.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Cardwell) did not so read the Act.

Right Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said it would be
better to refer the matter to the Committee on Privileges and
Elections, and Mr. Perry should then petition the House, setting
forth the circumstances, and this petition should then be referred to
the Committee in question. He assumed there was real doubt about
the matter, or else the hon. gentleman would have taken his seat.

Hon. Mr. DORION said the reason why he preferred the
petition was that it would state the facts.
L

THE RIEL ENQUIRY

On the Order of the Day that Hon. Mr. H.J. Clarke, Attorney
General of the Province of Manitoba, do appear at the bar to answer
questions relative to the indictment laid before the Grand Jury of
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the Court of Queen’s Bench of Manitoba, and the true bill returned
against Louis Riel, member for the electoral district of Provencher,
for the murder of Thomas Scott.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON enquired of the hon. member for Hastings
North (Mr. Bowell) whether he proposed to go on with the
examination of witnesses in the evening, or if not, whether it would
not be better to defer the matter entirely until the House met after
the holidays.

Mr. BOWELL said that so far as the evidence of Attorney
General Clarke was concerned he had completed his examination,
and the adjournment was made at the suggestion of the hon.
member for Bagot (Mr. Mousseau). He did not know at what length
his hon. friend might desire to cross-examine the witness, but so far
as the policemen were concerned, he (Mr. Bowell) would go
through with them in about half an hour.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON reminded the hon. gentleman that many of
the members desired to go away in the evening, and it would not be
desirable to proceed in their absence.

Mr. BOURASSA suggested that the Orders of the Day should be
postponed till Wednesday next.

After some further discussion, it was decided to bring Mr. Clarke
and the two policemen to the bar of the House, and as soon as they
were in attendance.

Mr. MOUSSEAU moved that the first order of the day be
postponed until Wednesday next, that the witnesses at the bar be
summoned to appear again at that time, and an order for their
examination be the first order for that day.—Carried.

Mr. BOWELL moved that the third order of the day, for the
appearance of Louis Riel in his place in the House, be read, which
was agreed to and acted upon.

Mr. OUIMET then moved that the order of the day for the
appearance of Louis Riel be discharged, and that he be ordered to
appear in his place on Wednesday next at the opening of the
House.—Carried.

The House then adjourned at 5.45 p.m.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS

Tuesday, April 7, 1874

The SPEAKER took the chair at eight o’clock.

Prayers

ATTORNEY GENERAL CLARKE

The SPEAKER informed the House that this aftemoon he had
received a telegram from the Hon. Henry J. Clarke, Attorney
General of Manitoba, a witness ordered to appear at the Bar of the
House on Wednesday to the following effect:—*T am badly laid up;
it will not be possible for me to get to Ottawa before Thursday
evening session of the House.” This was sent from Oswego.

#* k%

MONTREAL ELECTION COURT

The SPEAKER also laid before the House the general rules of
the Montreal Election Court under the provisions of the
Controverted Elections Act.

#* kK

BANKS

The SPEAKER also laid before the House lists of the
stockholders of the Metropolitan Bank to the 6th April, 1874; and
of the Bank of Nova Scotia to 28th March, 1874.

#* kK

NEW MEMBER

The SPEAKER laid before the House that the Clerk of the
House had received from the Clerk of the Crown in Chancery a
certificate of the election and return of Edward Borron, Esq., as a
member to represent the electoral district of the provisional judicial
District of Algoma.

#* kK

PETITIONS

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON presented the petition of Mr. Stanislaus
F. Perry, member-elect for one of the counties of Prince Edward
Island, which he read.

The petition contained statements which were made to the House
the other day in reference to this matter. Hon. Mr. Cauchon moved
the reception of the petition, which was agreed to. He also gave
notice of a motion to refer it to the Committee on Privileges and
Elections.

A large number of petitions were presented asking for the
passage of a prohibitory liquor law.

PROTECTION

Mr. BAIN presented the petition of the Dundas Cotton Factory
Company and thirteen other Companies praying for increased
protection to Canadian manufactures.

#* k%

THE ELECTION LAW

Hon. Mr. DORION moved for leave to introduce a Bill to elect
members of the House of Commons by ballot. He explained that the
Bill provided that the Returning Officers at elections shall be the
sheriffs or registrars of the counties in which the elections take
place. If there are no sheriffs or registrars available the Governor
General shall appoint the Returning Officer, and the same shall
apply where the registrar or sheriff is unable from any cause to
undertake the duties. This, however, was only meant to hold good
in the Provinces of Ontario and Quebec, as on account of their
distance from the seat of Government, it was thought better in the
other Provinces to give this power to Lieutenant-Governors.

The elections would take place simultaneously over the whole
Dominion on some day to be fixed, except in the Provinces of
British Columbia and Manitoba, and in the electoral district of
Algoma and Muskoka, in the Province of Ontario, and the electoral
districts of Bonaventure, Gaspé and Chicoutimi—Saguenay in the
Province of Quebec.

Exceptions for these places were made on account of their
immense distance from the seat of Govemment, and almost
impossibility of fixing the elections in those parts at the same time
they were fixed in other Provinces. It was proposed to do away with
the public nomination of candidates—(Hear, hear)—and to
substitute therefore nomination by paper signed by a certain number
of electors. The number of electors so required to sign was a matter
of comparative indifterence, but that fixed upon as a matter of fact
was ten. In England the number was twelve. A day and place would
be fixed for the nomination, and during a certain hour of that day
the Returning Ofticer would be present for the purpose of receiving
the papers above described.

The property qualification was also abolished. (Hear, hear.) It
has been found heretofore that this provision was scarcely any
protection against persons who had not the necessary property
qualification; therefore it was thought better to allow electors to
choose those whom they think most fit and qualitied.

The next provision—a most important one—was with regard to
the ballot. In almost every country having representative institutions
the system of voting by ballots had been adopted. If they looked at
the reports that were made in the British House of Commons before
the adoption of the ballot system there two or three years ago, and
by the adoption of the system in several countries, that, where it had
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been adopted, it had not been done away with.

This House, in the first session of 1873, by a very significant
vote, adopted the principle, so much so that the late Government
amended the bill they had introduced by including the ballot
system. Of course there were many different modes of voting by
ballot. One of them was that which secured the absolute secrecy of
the votes of the electors. Such was the principle, he believed, in
New Brunswick, in Nova Scotia, and in the Australian provinces.
The system of voting by ballot adopted in England, however, was a
little different. In the event of a contestation they could ascertain,
by the machinery adopted, how certain of the electors had voted.
This was done with the view of preventing personation. The
Government, however, on comparing the two systems, had given
preference to the one by which absolute secrecy was secured.

He had given the two systems a good deal of consideration, and
he might say that in Upper Canada the English system had just been
adopted. It might therefore be well that they in the Dominion should
adopt the other system so that experience might show in a few years
which system was the best, and that system might then be adopted.

Another point of importance was that respecting the franchise of
electors. The question which arose in the settlement of this matter
was whether they should adopt a uniform franchise for every
Province; that was, fix a franchise that should prevail in all the
Provinces in the election of members to the Dominion Parliament,
or whether the Provinces should be allowed to fix the franchise
which would be most convenient for them, and which would secure
them a proper representation in the House of Commons. The
adoption of a uniform franchise would entail considerable expense
and difficulty in providing for the making out of the necessary lists.

The Government had come to the conclusion that it would be
better to allow each Province to select their own franchise. (Hear,
hear.)

It might be said against the first system that a uniform franchise
might not be equally convenient in all the Provinces. What might be
a good franchise in one Province might not be a good franchise in
another, on account of the difference of wealth, assessments, et
cetera. In the different Provinces they had a franchise for the cities,
and another for the counties. It was considered, on the whole, that
the franchise in cities and counties ought not to be exactly the same,
as the means, wealth and education of the electors of some localities
were greater than in others. In one or two Provinces almost the only
qualifications necessary to the exercise of the franchise was
manhood, and if this were made the uniform system it would create
a franchise to which the people of the other Provinces had not been
accustomed and which would be distasteful to a large proportion of
them. Therefore, it was thought better to adopt the machinery and
the lists provided by the Local Legislature. This, it was considered,
was more likely to satisty the people of the several Provinces, as a
uniform suffrage would, no doubt, deprive a good many electors of
the franchise they now exercised.

The franchise adopted by the Local Legislatures had been
adopted in this bill with one exception, namely the Province of
Prince Edward Island, for in that Province they had no electoral lists
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for the elections to the Local Legislature. As, however, the
necessary lists were employed in elections to the Legislative
Council, that system as applying to the Upper House had been
adopted.

He concluded by moving for leave to introduce the bill.

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON thought that the ballot would be a great
boon to the people.

With respect to property, the case was different here from what it
was in England, where as a rule, candidates were men of wealth. He
was not going, however, to oppose a trial of the non-property
qualification. He was in favour of the abolition of nominations,
which would save in many places a great deal of useless
expenditure, as under that system candidates were induced to make
a show in order to tell upon the minds of the people, while their
antagonists, who might not be so well able to compete with them in
a pecuniary way, were often obliged to resort to dishonest practices.
He did not think the Government would insist on ten as the number
of voters sufficient for a candidate, as the object was not to have an
election when there was no need for it.

There were two causes which brought about an election when
there was no desire on the part of a constituency to have one. One
man might get the required number of votes for a candidate for the
purpose of making the candidate spend some money. A good many
of that mentality, or rather morality—(Laughter)—would put the
whole country in a turmoil because they wanted an election for
certain purposes of their own. If a candidate could not find one
hundred men in his constituency to vote for him that man ought not
to be a candidate at all. The interest of the Returning Officer was
often another cause of elections, and he would suggest, to meet this,
that the salaries of the Returning Officers should be fixed, that he
should receive the same salary whether there was an election or not,
so that he would have no inducement to promote a contest.

He thought, now that communication was so rapid with certain
constituencies in which the election had formerly been held later
than in the other counties, there might be a change made in this
respect. For instance, in the County of Saguenay the election should
have taken place some time before it did, and he thought that the
elections in Bonaventure and Gaspé could have taken place at the
same time as the others. In Manitoba, or in constituencies further
west, there might be some difficulty in having elections as early as
elsewhere, but with these exceptions they could, he thought, be all
held on one day.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON expressed the great gratification which he
felt at the promptitude with which the question of the ballot had
been brought forward. The leading points of the bill, as explained
by the Hon. Minister of Justice, met fully the expectations of that
side of the House, and would be acceptable to both sides and to the
whole country. The principles of that bill had been promoted in that
House for the last ten years, and in advancing these principles for
which they had so long struggled, the Government gave them proof
of the sincerity of their zeal.

Mr. JONES (Halifax) said that it would be extremely gratifying
to his constituency to learn that a measure which had been already
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in force in his Province had been thus properly brought forward by
the Government. He congratulated the Government on adopting the
system of ballot which they had, for it would be found on the whole
to be more adapted to the general standard of the voters in the
Dominion than the English system.

With regard to the abolition of property qualification for
counties, there did seem something anomalous in the fact of
property qualification not being necessary for a candidate, while it
was for his electors. The simultaneous election question had been
happily illustrated by the elections which had just terminated
throughout his Province. In Nova Scotia simultaneous elections had
been attended with perfect satisfaction, and they often pitied the
state of the other Province whose elections were often held from
week to week, and sometimes from month to month.

He (Mr. Jones) congratulated the Government not only on the
bill, which would be considered more in detail in Committee, but
on the promptitude with which it had been brought forward.

Mr. PALMER, who was almost inaudible in the gallery, was
understood to confess that the bill met his views quite as far as he
expected the bill could. It altered the proceedings in New
Brunswick very little but it did away with the nomination, which, so
far as New Brunswick was concerned, he would prefer they had left
out. He understood that it did injury to other Provinces. With regard
to absolute secrecy, however, unless the law was to be different
from that in force in New Brunswick, they could not have that, for
it was entirely at the option of the voter to declare his vote or not if
he pleased. His hon. friend from Chéteauguay (Hon. Mr. Holton)
was mistaken when he said that he (Mr. Palmer) had opposed the
Ballot, for he had always advocated it.

Hon. Mr. DORION, in reply to the suggestions which had been
made, said with regard to simultaneous elections that it was the
desire of the Government to have as many elections on the same
day as possible, and he would be glad if members who represented
constituencies which had been excepted from the general rule, but
who were ready to state how their constituencies were all to have
their elections on the same day, would do so.

The question of the fee to the Returning Officers had attracted a
great deal of attention, and although a fixed remuneration would
certainly take away any inducements for a contest, yet it would
considerably increase the cost of an election.

As to the number of electors for nomination, he thought with the
member for Quebec Centre (Hon. Mr. Cauchon) that it would do
very well to increase it in the cities and large constituencies, but in
some there were so few voters that it would be almost impossible
for one hundred voters to nominate a candidate. A hundred voters in
several constituencies of the Dominion would be an absolute
majority in the constituency. The hon. member for St. John (Mr.
Palmer) had said that the ballot did not secure absolute secrecy, but
he (Hon. Mr. Dorion) had of course only meant it secured absolute
secrecy for those who wanted it.

Mr. DYMOND hoped the election law would contain a clause
against bribery, et cetera, in which respect the New Brunswick law
was admitted to be exceedingly defective.
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Hon. Mr. DORION replied that two-thirds of the bill contained
the most stringent provisions against the danger which the hon.
member for York North (Mr. Dymond) had mentioned. The defect
in the bill might be found perhaps in there being too many
provisions of that nature. He had endeavoured to meet almost every
case that had presented itself. (Laughter.)

The bill was read a first time.

#* kK

STANDING COMMITTEES

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE moved concurrence in the report of the
Special Committee appointed to prepare and report lists of the
Select Standing Committees of the House. He explained, in the
absence of the Leader of the Opposition, that the lists had been
prepared as agreed to by him. He had made one change which was
really the rectification of an error, having substituted the name of
Mr. Wood (Hamilton) for that of Mr. Irving (Hamilton) on the
Committee on Banking and Commerce. He moved the resolution
tonight, as it was desirable that the Committee on Standing Orders
should be organized tomorrow so as to proceed immediately with
the consideration.

The motion carried.

#* kK

ORDER OF PROCEEDING

Hon. Mr. MACKENTZIE suggested that it would be convenient
for Mr. Speaker, in putting a question, to designate the movers and
seconders simply by their names, without prefixes. This would save
some trouble, and would be in accordance with the plan previously
adopted in the House. He presented the official return of the
distribution of the Statutes, as ordered by law.

#* ok K

CANAL DE LA BAIE VERTE

Mr. PALMER enquired whether it was the intention of
Govermnment to construct the Canal de la Baie Verte, and if so, when
the work would probably begin.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said the hon. gentleman would see that
it was stated in the Speech from the Throne that the report of the
Chief Engineer of the Department would be laid before the House.
He would also see when the estimates came down that there was a
sum mentioned, as there was in the estimates last year, for the
purpose of commencing the work upon the canal. The Government
as yet had not been able to determine the route, as the report had
scarcely been printed and that question had to be determined before
the latter part of the question could be answered.

#* ok ok

THE THOUSAND ISLANDS

Mr. BROUSE asked whether the survey of those Islands in the
St. Lawrence known as the Thousand Islands had been completed;
if not completed, what progress had been made; also what policy
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the Government would pursue in their future disposal.

Hon. Mr. LAIRD said the surveys had just been completed. The
policy of the Government would be that the claims of actual settlers
on the Islands would first be considered, and after that the lands
which were not settled would be put up to auction by public
competition.

#* kK

INDIAN COUNCIL IN BRITISH COLUMBIA

Mr. De COSMOS asked if the Government intended to create a
Council in British Columbia for the management of Indian Affairs
in that Province; if so, who and how many persons would form the
Council and at what salaries; and if the Council would have power
to make appointments and also to expend the sums voted by
Parliament without first consulting the Minister of the Interior.

Hon. Mr. LAIRD said the late Government, in June last, passed
an Order in Council to establish a Board of Indian Commissioners
for British Columbia, not an Indian Council, and the present
Government had taken some steps to carry out that arrangement,
but they were not yet completed. The Order in Council
contemplated a Board consisting of the Governor General and two
Commissioners, the first to receive $2,700, and the Assistants
$2.,000, but no money would be expended without the consent of
the Minister of the Interior.

#* ok

GEOLOGICAL SURVEY OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

Mr. De COSMOS asked if the Government intended to continue
this year the geological survey of British Columbia.

Hon. Mr. LAIRD said the arrangements respecting the
geological survey were not quite complete, but it was the intention
of Government to continue the survey.

#* ok

STEAMERS BETWEEN SARNIA AND LAKE SUPERIOR

Mr. WOOD (Hamilton) enquired if it was the intention of
Government to subsidize steamers between Sarnia and Lake
Superior, and whether such steamers would be required to call at
Kincardine and Southampton.

Hon. Mr. MACDONALD (Glengarry) said the subject was
engaging the attention of Government.

#* ok K

THE AMNESTY QUESTION

Mr. PALMER asked whether it was the intention of
Government to apply for an amnesty for all or any, and what,
offenses committed by persons engaged in the insurrection of the
Northwest Territory in 1869.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE: It is not the intention of Government
to apply for an amnesty for any oftenses at present. (Hear, hear and
applause.)
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MR. ARCHIBALD McKELLER

Mr. STEPHENSON had given notice of the following question,
which, on its being called, he said he wished to stand: Whether it is
the intention of govemment to appoint the Hon. Archibald
McKeller to the office of Commissioner or Superintendent of the
Welland Canal, or to any other position on that public work.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE: I am quite prepared to answer
Mr. Stephenson’s question, if he desire to put it.

Mr. STEPHENSON: I do not desire to put it. (Hear, hear, and
cries of “Drop™.)

#* kK

PROVINCIAL LEGISLATION

Mr. MASSON moved for a return of correspondence on the
subject of Provincial legislation.—Carried.

#* Ok K

FREE ADMISSION OF MACHINERY

Mr. YOUNG moved for a return showing in detail the quantity
and character of the machinery admitted into Canada free of duty
under the Order in Council admitting free machinery not
manufactured in the Dominion, the return to embrace the last three
years. He said he desired to ascertain the amount of machinery that
had come into the country under that Order in Council.

There was great reason to believe the Order in Council had been
used in very many cases for the purpose of embracing a large
quantity of machinery which was manufactured in the country at the
present time. He considered it necessary that justice should be done
to our manufacture interests in this respect. It was not a question
that would materially affect Free Trade and Protection, because it
was a well-established rule that machinery not manufactured in this
country should not pay duty.—Carried.

#* ok

ELECTION EXPENSES

Mr. YOUNG moved for a return of all sums paid to defray the
expenses of the late elections to this House in the different electoral
districts throughout the Dominion, showing the returning ofticers
and deputy returning officers to whom the same were paid, and
distinguishing the different services for which the same were
allowed.—Carried.

#* ok ok

RAILWAY CARRYING TRADE

Mr. OLIVER moved that a Select Committee be appointed to
enquire into the railway carrying trade of this Dominion, with
power to report from time to time, and send for persons, papers, and
records. The said Committee should consist of Messrs. Bertram,
Brown, Cameron (Huron South), Church, Gordon, Stirton,
Thomson (Welland), Archibald, Brooks, Kerr and Oliver.—Carried.
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IMPORTATIONS FROM THE UNITED STATES

Mr. YOUNG moved for returns showing the total value of each
class of manufactured articles imported from the United States into
Canada during each month since the commencement of the late
financial crises in that country—say the st of September last—
together with similar returns, for the purpose of comparison, for the
corresponding months of 1870, 1871 and 1872.—Carried.

#* Ok ok

GOVERNMENT MEASURES

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE gave notice that on Thursday he would
move that an additional day be given to the Government after this
week for their business.

#* k%

CONTROVERTED ELECTIONS

Hon. Mr. FOURNIER gave notice that on Friday next he would
ask leave to introduce the Controverted Election Bill.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE moved the adjournment of the House.
The House adjourned at 9.15 p.m.

#* % %

NOTICES OF MOTION

Mr. ROULEAU—Enquiry—Is it the intention of the
Government to locate the terminus of the Intercolonial Railway in
the town of Lévis, County of Lévis and District of Quebec?

Hon. Mr. ROBITAILLE—Thursday—Enquiry—Is it intended
to appoint an Inspector of Hides and Leathers for the city of Quebec
in the stead of Aldéric Fortin, who has provisionally exercised the
functions of Inspector since the Ist of September, 1873; and does
the Government intend to make the appointment at once?

Hon. Mr. BLAKE—RBIll to regulate the construction and
maintenance of Marine Electric Telegraphs.

Hon. Mr. ROBITAILLE—Thursday—Address for correspondence
between the Federal Government and the Government of Quebec in
relation to the re-organization of the Court of Appeal in the
Province of Quebec.

Mr. JONES (Halifax)—Committee of the Whole on a
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resolution, “That it is expedient to amend the Act 30 Vic., Cap. 49,
entitled an Act to amend and consolidate and to extend to the whole
Dominion of Canada the laws respecting the inspection of certain
staple articles of Canadian produce, so far as relates to pickled fish
and fish oils.”

Mr. BODWELL—Committee of the Whole on the following
resolutions: 1st—That the traffic in intoxicating liquors is an evil
for which the laws of this country provide no adequate remedy.
2nd—That it is desirable to prohibit the importation, manufacture,
and sale of intoxicating liquors in this Dominion, except for
medical and manufacturing purposes.

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON—Thursday—To refer the petition of
Stanislaus Francis Perry, member for the electoral district of the
Province of Prince Edward Island, to the Committee on Privileges
and Elections, when the said Committee is appointed by the House.

Mr. IRVING—Monday—Enquiry whether it is intended to
introduce this session a Bill to repeal the Act passed in the 35th
year of Her Majesty’s reign, entitled “An Act to amend the
Criminal Law relating to violence, threats and molestation”, and
generally known as the Criminal Law Amendment Act.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE—Thursday—That after the present
week, and during the remainder of the session, measures in charge

of members of the Government shall take precedence on the orders
of the day.

Mr. ROSS (Middlesex West}—Monday next—Committee of
the Whole on a resolution—That the present mode of constituting
the Senate does not adequately provide for the equitable territorial
representation of the people of this Dominion, nor for a full and
direct expression of the popular will that can make the Senate
directly responsible to the people.

Mr. PALMER—BIlI to repeal the law relating to usury.

Hon. Mr. FOURNIER—RBIIl to make better provisions for the
trial of Controverted Elections of members of the House of
Commons, and respecting the matters connected therewith.

Mr. DYMOND—Thursday—Address for a return of all
commitments for capital offenses in the Dominion since Ist July,
1867, with convictions and acquittals resulting therefrom, and
punishments inflicted, or pardons or commutations of sentence.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS

Wednesday, April 8, 1874

The SPEAKER took the chair at 3.15 p.m.

Prayers

NEW MEMBER

The SPEAKER informed the House that the Clerk of the House
had received from the Clerk of the Crown in Chancery a certificate
of the election and return of Harvey William Burk as member to
represent the electoral district of the West riding of Durham.

#* Ok ok

PETITIONS PRESENTED

A large number of petitions were presented in favour of the
prohibition of the manufacture and sale of intoxicating liquors,
among which were the following:—Mr. Dymond—from the
Township Councils of Whitechurch, North Gwillimbury, East
Gwillimbury, and Aurora and from the inhabitants of East
Gwillimbury, Sharon and Newmarket, all in the North riding of the
County of York, Mr. Cameron (Ontario South)—from 1,592
inhabitants of the county he represents, and a number of others with
a few signatures; Mr. Kerr—from 3,000 inhabitants of the County
of Northumberland, and Mr. Carmichael (Pictou)—from 3,500
people in his own constituency. Petitions were also presented by
Messrs. Macdonald (Glengarry), Kirkpatrick, Cartwright, Blake,
Bodwell, Mackenzie (Lambton), and Norris, and a great many
others from private individuals and municipalities throughout the
country, praying for the same.

Mr. CAMERON (Ontario South) also presented a petition
from a number of manufacturers in favour of a protective tariff.

#* k%

REPLY TO THE ADDRESS

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE brought up a message from His
Excellency, signed by his own hand.

The SPEAKER read the message, as follows:
Gentlemen of the House of Commons:—

1 thank you for your loyal address, and am well assured that all
measures for the well-being of the country will receive your diligent
attention.

(Signed) Dufterin
Government House,
Ottawa
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% ok ok
AMNESTY QUESTION
Hon. Mr. CAUCHON said that there seemed to be a

misunderstanding with reference to the answer given by the Premier
last night to the question of Mr. Palmer, as to whether the
Government intended to apply for an amnesty for persons who were
engaged in the insurrection to the Northwest. He read in the report
of The Times of this morning the following as the answer to the
question:—"“Hon. Mr. Mackenzie—It was not the intention of the
Government to apply for an amnesty.” He (Hon. Mr. Cauchon)
believed this answer was not complete, and he would like to know
from the Premier what his answer was exactly.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE: My reply was: “It is not the intention
of the Government to apply for an amnesty for any offenses at
present.” (Hear, hear.)

#* ok

JOINT COMMITTEE ON PRINTING

Mr. YOUNG moved that a message be sent to the Senate
requesting that their Honours will unite with this House in the
formation of a Joint Committee of both Houses on the subject of
Parliamentary printing, and that Messrs. Bourassa, Bowell, Church,
Delorme, De Veber, Goudge, Lantier, Laird, Ross (Middlesex
West), Ross (Prince Edward), Stephenson, Stirton, Thompson
(Haldimand), Willson and Young be members of the said Joint
Committee on Printing.—Carried.

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON moved that the petition of Mr. Perry of
Prince Edward Island be sent to the Clerk of the Committee on
Privileges and Elections.—Carried.

#* Ok K

REPORTS PRESENTED
Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE presented the Report of the Minister of
Agriculture for the last year.

#* kK

MARINE HOSPITAL

Mr. PALMER enquired whether it is the intention of the
Government to place any sum in the Estimates for the purpose of
building a suitable Marine Hospital, at the port of St. John, New
Brunswick.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE: The Government have the matter and
several other matters in connection with the same subject under
consideration at present.
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MR. ARCHIBALD McKELLER

Upon the order for the question by Mr. Stephenson, whether it is
the intention of Government to appoint the Hon. Archibald
McKeller to the office of Commissioner or Superintendent of the
Welland Canal, or to any other position on that public work.

Mr. STEPHENSON requested that it be dropped. (Hear, hear,
and laughter.)

#* Ok ok

THE GUN BOAT PRINCE ALFRED

Mr. STEPHENSON enquired whether it is the intention of the
Government to place the gun boat Prince Alfred in a condition for
actual service in the way of rendering aid to vessels in distress, and
otherwise performing functions similar to those pertaining to the
revenue cutters belonging to the United States on the western lakes.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE: The Government have had a survey
of the vessel made recently, with a view to deciding what service
she may be fit for. It has not yet been decided what would be done
with her, but I may say to my hon. friend that I am afraid she will
not be fit for the services he refers to.

#* k%

PROHIBITORY LIQUOR LAW

Mr. BODWELL moved for a Special Committee on petitions
for the passage of a prohibitory liquor law, with power to send for
persons and papers and the Committee to be composed of the
following gentlemen:—Messrs. Appleby, Béchard, Bowell, Burpee
(Sunbury), Blake, Cameron (Ontario South), Chisholm,
Cunningham (New Westminster), Davies, Forbes, Killam, Ryan,
Ross (Middlesex West), Smith (Selkirk) and Bodwell.

After a few words from Hon. Mr. Cauchon,

Mr. KILLAM requested that his name be struck off, and that of
Mr. Carmichael substituted.

Mr. BODWELL said the hon. member had been on the
Committee for a similar purpose last year, where he had proved
himself very energetic and useful. Not knowing that he had any
objection to serving in the same capacity upon this occasion, he
(Mr. Bodwell) had put his name down, but as there were no doubt
good reasons for the hon. member declining he had no objection to
the substitution of the name of Mr. Carmichael.

The motion was altered accordingly, and carried.

#* k%

BRITISH COLUMBIA

Mr. BUNSTER moved for a Select Committee of ten members
to enquire into the present tariff in the interest of agriculture and
commerce in British Columbia. In doing so he remarked that the
farmers in that Province were suffering greatly from excessive
competition by Americans; and the want of protection, coupled with
the fact that the Pacific Railway had not yet been commenced, was
acting as a great drawback to settlement, and was sending many
agriculturists out of the country.
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If the committee were granted, he hoped to be able to show that
protection of some kind was necessary, at least until the completion
of the railway, which he hoped would be soon. He contended that
every acre of land cleared in that Province was worth $50 to the
Dominion, and in conclusion moved that the following gentlemen
compose the committee, viz.—Messrs. McQuade, McCallum,
Brouse, Dewdney, Cunningham (New Westminster), De Cosmos,
Roscoe, Schultz, Paterson and Bunster.

The motion was carried.

#* Ok K

DEMANDS AGAINST VESSELS

Mr. KIRKPATRICK moved that the House go into Committee
of the Whole on a resolution making further provision for the
collection of demands against vessels navigating certain lakes and
inland waters of Canada. He did not propose to discuss the principle
involved in this resolution at any length at the present time. He was
certain that those persons who were interested in the maritime trade
of the country looked with great concern to the action that might be
taken by the House in this matter.

It was rather unfortunate that the great maritime trade of the
inland waters of this country was an exception to that of all other
countries having such a trade, in having no law providing speedy,
safe and certain means for the collection of demands against
vessels. In France, in England, in our own Maritime Provinces, and
in the United States they had such a law, but for our inland waters
where the trade was yearly increasing, and millions of dollars were
involved, there was none. He held that we should have an
Admiralty Court for our inland waters.

The object of his motion was to secure the passage of a law,
similar to that now in force on the American side of the lake, for
Canadian inland waters, so that vessels might be held for the
supplies furnished them on credit. Such a measure would be a
benefit to the owners of vessels, as well as to ship chandlers,
mariners, and ship companies. If, for instance, ship chandlers ran
great risk of not being paid for their goods, they must charge an
extra profit to compensate themselves. If the means of collecting
their claims were made speedy and certain, their prices would be
materially reduced, and the honest ship-owner would get his stores
cheaper than he now does. He (Mr. Kirkpatrick) hoped that there
would be no objection to the passage of that resolution through
Committee, and that any discussion on it would be postponed till
another stage of the proceedings.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said that his hon. friend must move the
reference of his resolution to a Committee on another day. Being
opposed, root and branch, to this motion, and having, during the last
twenty years, assisted in preventing its passage at least a dozen
times, he (Hon. Mr. Holton) was not willing to waive this rule of
the House.

The SPEAKER ruled the motion out of order.

Mr. KIRKPATRICK then gave notice that he would move
tomorrow that the House go into Committee on the motion.
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PORT STANLEY HARBOUR

Mr. CASEY moved for a Select Committee to enquire into the
management of the Port Stanley Harbour since 1859, said
committee to consist of Messrs. MacLennan, Norris, Irving,
Cockburn, Stuart, and Casey. He said that in 1859 this harbour,
which up to that time had been managed by Government, was
transferred to the London and Port Stanley Railway Company, on
condition that all the revenue of the harbour was to be expended in
keeping it in repair. Since then the harbour, as well as the Port
Stanley Railway Co., had been transferred to the Great Western
Railway Company, and the harbour had fallen into bad repair.

The object he had in moving this resolution was to find out what
had become of the revenues of the harbour, whether the Railway
Company had carried out the trust reposed in them; whether they
had appropriated these revenues properly, or done something else
with them. The suspicion was pretty strong that the money had not
been expended in the way in which it should have been, or the
harbour would be in better condition that it is at present. He could
give evidence with regard to this point if the Committee were
granted.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said he hoped his hon. friend would
not press his motion today. He thought that he should in the first
place ask for such papers or information as the Government could
give with regard to the matter, and then, if he still thought a
Committee was necessary, he could move for one. It was quite
possible his hon. friend could get all the information he required by
applying to the Department, but if not Government would ofter no
objection to a motion to send for persons and papers.

Mr. CASEY said that he had all the papers last session that
could be got, with reference to the matter up to that time. He would,
however, allow his motion to stand. He moved for the production of
additional papers which the Government might have on the subject.

#* k%

CONDITION OF SIX NATIONS INDIANS

Mr. PATERSON moved for a Committee to enquire into the
affairs of the Six Nations Indians in the counties at Brant and
Halton, said committee to have power to report from time to time,
and to send for persons and papers, and to consist of Messrs.
Scatcherd, Oliver, Snider, Thompson (Haldimand), Ross
(Middlesex West), Fleming, Rymal, Charlton, White (Hastings
East), Gillies and Paterson. He said that these Indians were the
descendants of men whose forefathers had spilled their blood in the
defence of this country, and it would be the last thought he would
have in his mind, in moving such a resolution as this, to do them
any injustice.

Without desiring to reflect in the least on the management of the
Department or on any of the officers, or on the system that had been
pursued with reference to these Indians, he would say that such
progress had not been made in improving their condition as there
should have been, and it was felt, both by the Indians themselves
and by their white neighbours, that the time had come when some
steps should be taken to put them in a position to conduct their own
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affairs instead of having them still managed, as heretofore, by the
Government. What those steps should be it was not for him to say,
but he thought that if the House was kind enough to grant this
Committee there might be such information elicited as would guide
it in devising some scheme by which the condition of these Indians
might be improved.

He held that in the case of these Indians, as in that of children,
the keeping of them under a paternal guidance would not tend to the
development of their intellects; a change somewhat radical was
called for in the management of their affairs, for they did not now
occupy a much different position from what they did years ago. He
might be asked, why not include all the Indians in the Dominion in
this motion? The reason was that all the bodies of Indians in the
country would not be treated alike. Some were in a much more
backward state than others, and therefore he felt that it was best to
confine his motion to those Indians in the County of Haldimand.

Mr. PLUMB enquired if the Indians themselves had asked for
any action to be taken in their behalf.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said not that he was aware of. Some
inconveniences resulted from the Government having the
guardianship of the Indians, but they could only consent to such
changes in the present management of aftairs as would be assented
to by the Indians themselves and would not seriously interfere with
their prosperity and happiness. They were all aware of the
inconvenience occasioned to the whites in certain parts of the
country by the proximity of the Indian reservations, but they must
remember that it was through these reservations being made that the
whites were enabled to settle down quietly in the vicinity. They
should recollect also that the Indians were driven into small corners
here and there over the country.

It was the duty of Government to see that the rights the Indians
have are not interfered with by any hasty action; but the
Government would have no objection to an enquiry as to what
might be done with reference to improving their position, as well as
that of the whites surrounding them. He did not understand that the
motion contemplated enquiry into any abuse.

Mr. FLEMING said it was a question whether or not the
condition of the Indians would be improved by enfranchising them.

Mr. THOMPSON (Haldimand) said the Indians of the County
of Haldimand, as well as those of the adjoining County of Brant,
had serious grievances to complain of, and he had represented them
to Government previously, but without producing much effect. He
had a petition in his possession, signed by 169 chiefs and warriors
of the Six Nations, and another signed by 51 members of another
tribe, both with reference to this matter. The people in the county he
represented had been looking forward to the time when the lands
held by the Indians would be put into the market, and it was with
this view that his friend from Brant South (Mr. Paterson) had
moved for this Committee.

Mr. ROSS (Middlesex West) asked if it might not be well for
the Committee to take into consideration the condition of all the
Indians throughout this Province settled on Indian reserves. He
thought the day was at hand when the Government would have to
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adopt some different system of dealing with the Indians. He did not
think that the system at present pursued was conducive to either the
welfare of the Indians or the civilization of the whites living near
them. In the County of Middlesex there were 12,500 acres of land
in the hands of Indians, and it was lying there an uncultivated
waste. He would strongly advocate the land thus held in his riding
being put into the market. He did not wish, however, to do away
with the rights of the Indians, and eulogized the British authorities
for the fair play they had given to the aborigines.

Hon. Mr. LAIRD, whose remarks were almost inaudible in the
gallery, was understood to object to selling the Indian lands. He saw
no objection to the motion as first proposed by Mr. Paterson, but
thought, if the wide range was to be taken as suggested by other
members, it was only fair that definite complaints should first be
made to the Department.

Mr. GILLIES said that he was very much pleased with the
suggestion of the member for Middlesex West (Mr. Ross) relative
to extending the scope of the motion. In the riding in which he
resided there were large tracts of Indians lands, and for years there
had been but little satisfaction with the way in which the affairs of
those Indians occupying them had been managed. He found that
meetings had recently been held by both the Indians and the whites
residing near them, at which it was agreed that petitions should be
forwarded to this House, asking that the lands which were given to
the Indians some years ago should be disposed of at such prices as
they would fetch. The Indians desired that they should be allowed
to hold their land in their own right, and if this were permitted they
would have an individuality, and feel a disposition to act upon their
own behalf.

He hoped the member for Brant South (Mr. Paterson) would
allow the Select Committee to have power to investigate into the
condition of the affairs of other Indians as well as the Six Nations,
and he (Mr. Gillies) hoped to be able to put into the hands of that
committee information with reference to the Indians in his part of
the country.

Mr. GORDON hoped the motion would be so amended as to
extend to the whole Dominion. He complained that Indian lands
were not being improved, and in consequence no benefit was done
to the Indians. Indeed a wrong was done to the white man. He
admired as much as any other the good faith which had been kept
by the British government in the matter. He thought, however, that
the land which had been set apart for the purpose was an injury to
the settlers.

Mr. SNIDER said he sympathized very strongly with the
Indians, but very much more with the white men. Nevertheless, he
was in a position to act fairly between them in this case. All that he
desired was that the settlers upon the barren Indian lands, which
some time ago were bought up at a great price, should receive
justice at the hands of the Indian Department. They had not been
fairly dealt with by the late Government, but he had more
confidence in the present Administration, who, he trusted, would
see that justice was done in the premises. He considered that many
of the Indians were extremely intelligent and entitled to the
privilege of the franchise.
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Mr. McGREGOR made some remarks, but was utterly
inaudible in the gallery. He was understood to say that he approved
of the franchise being extended to the Indians.

Mr. DAVIES said that so far as his experience in Prince Edward
Island went, though several efforts had been made to civilize the
Indians, they appeared to be incapable of appreciating the blessing
of civilization. They enjoyed their lands, he believed, in common.
The lands had not been divided among individuals, and if the lands
were so divided they would soon pass into the hands of white
people, and the poor Indians would be nowhere. They were bound
to do justice to the Indians. (Hear, hear.)

In enfranchising the Indians in the more favoured settlements of
Ontario, they should take care it was not tantamount to wiping them
out. If it were desirable to get rid of the Indians, they might induce
them to settle on the Thousand Islands. The lands which they had,
they did not cultivate, and he believed they never would. He
thought, however, the division of the lands among them would be
tantamount to driving them out of the country.

Mr. SCHULTZ did not find in the motion any reference to the
franchise, or to the operations of the reserve system. He contended
that to detach the reserves would ultimately lead to the utter
annihilation of the Indians. It was not possible that the size of the
reserves in question conduced to the benefit of the Indians, and he
thought an improvement might be made.

He thought both the Department and the House would be
benefited by such an enquiry as this, and he would like to see the
motion adopted. He was also desirous of seeing as large a
committee as possible appointed, because this was a matter
involving a principle which would sooner or later affect the people
of the West.

Mr. PATERSON said he was willing to enlarge the motion
according to the request of various members if he could do so upon
the notice already given, and provided the Government were willing
to accede to the change. He was afraid, however, from the remarks
of the leader of the Government that the Administration would not
be in favour of the change. He denied that he had any wish in the
least degree to reflect upon the Department, either as at present
conducted or under the former management. The representations
made to him might not have been correct, and hence he contended
the desirability of an enquiry.

Mr. DAVIES objected to the enfranchisement of the Indians, as
he did not consider they would value that privilege; he asserted that
if the Indians became possessed of portions of the land they would
sell it for liquor.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said he thought it would be extremely
inconvenient to appoint a Committee to enquire into the whole
question affecting Indian life, character and position on the
Continent, and it was quite evident that such a Committee could
produce no possible result. If there was to be a change of policy
with regard to the Indians, that change must originate with the
Government.

At the same time they would not object to any enquiry which the
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House might desire with regard to the several localities and tribes to
which particular members might be desirous of referring. He was
aware that in several of the cases referred to by his honorable
friends the difficulty was that Indians kept possession of lands in
prominent parts of the country which they did not cultivate. The
Government was bound to exercise the wise discretion, and
sometimes probably the wise pressure, which a guardian observed
with regard to his ward. The Government had received no such
petition of charge as that referred to by the hon. member for
Haldimand (Mr. Thompson), and he believed the complaint arose
out of the rather strict exercise of his duty by the superintendent.

The Government would not object to the Committee which the
hon. member for Brant South (Mr. Paterson) had moved for, but it
would be extremely inconvenient to have a Committee of a general
character which would have power to inquire into all the matters
and grievances of the Indians. It would, therefore, be better for
gentlemen who had particular cases to complain of to ask for the
papers containing the necessary information, and, if it were
desirable, make further examination by a Committee of the House.
He thought it would be better to allow the hon. gentleman’s motion
to pass as it stood.

The motion was then carried in its original form.

#* Ok ok

THE RIEL CASE
On the orders of the day being called,
The Clerk read the first order, as follows:

“Hon. H.J. Clarke, Attorney General of the Province of
Manitoba, to appear at the Bar to answer questions relative to the
indictment laid before the Grand Jury of the Queen’s Bench of
Manitoba, and the true bill returned by the said Grand Jury against
Louis Riel, member for the electoral district of Provencher, for the
murder of Thomas Scott.”

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON said that remembering the telegram
received by Mr. Speaker yesterday from Mr. Clarke, he supposed
the House would consent to the postponement of this order. He
moved “That the order of the day for the attendance of Mr. Clarke,
and the two following orders of the day, do stand over till Friday
next at 3 o’clock, then to be the first, second and third orders of the
day.” The second order was as follows:—“Louis Riel, Esq.,
member for the Electoral District of Provencher, to attend in his
place.” The third order was:—“Detective Philip Hamilton, of the
Ottawa police force, to appear at the bar to be examined in the
matter of the warrant for the arrest of Louis Riel.”

The SPEAKER: Is Mr. Clarke in attendance?

The SERGEANT-AT-ARMS (after exploring the lobby): Mr.
Speaker, the Hon. Henry J. Clarke is not in attendance.

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON then repeated his motion.

Mr. BOWELL said he would have no objection to the
postponement of the order for the attendance of Attorney General

51

Clarke, but he saw no reason for the postponement of the two other
orders. The detective ordered to appear was, he believed, in
attendance; and besides that, the Finance Minister had announced
his intention to make his budget speech on Friday, so that if the
motion were carried, the whole matter would lie over till next week.
The second order had been delayed from last week, and there was
no reason why it should not now be called. The third order might
certainly be called, as the witness was in attendance.

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON thought they should proceed logically.
The first and most important business was the evidence of the
Attorney General of Manitoba, and it was only in corroboration of
his evidence that the police officer was to be called. He thought,
therefore, the evidence of that gentleman should be completed. If it
turned out that the Attorney General was too sick to attend at all,
then they might proceed without him, but at the present time it was
only fair and logical that the whole thing should stand over.

Mr. SCHULTZ agreed with the hon. member for Hastings
North (Mr. Bowell). He did not see any connection between the
postponement of the order for the attendance of Mr. Clarke and the
two other orders. The more quickly the House disposed of a matter
so interesting to everybody, either in or out of the House, the better.
The cause which had detained Mr. Clarke today might detain Mr.
Riel another day, and thus there might be an indefinite
postponement of the whole matter.

Mr. BOWELL said he would like to say the evidence he desired
to prove by the detective had nothing whatever to do with Attorney
General Clarke. The evidence was totally separate and distinct, and
therefore did not corroborate anything that the hon. gentleman had
said in his evidence.

He desired to state further that, so far as his case, as the hon.
member for Quebec Centre (Hon. Mr. Cauchon) had put it, was
concemed, he took it to be the case of the House and not his
individually, and all he desired to prove by Attorney General Clarke
had been proved. He did not desire his services any more. The
evidence in that particular was complete. He would like to ask, as a
question of order, whether it was regular to move to set aside three
orders of the day in one motion, and whether they should not be
taken separately as called.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON thought there could be no doubt that it was
quite in order to move the postponement of all the orders of the day
in one motion. It was frequently done here, and in England it was
necessary to move the postponement of all the orders of the day
before the House adjourned. By parity of reasoning it must be in
order here to move that the orders of the day be postponed. He
would say, however, with regard to the merits of the motion, that it
did appear to him to be logical and in consequence he was quite
sure, with the opinion of his learned friends the members of the
legal profession, that the direct examination or the cross-
examination of one witness should be completed before another
witness was put on the stand. This seemed to him to be the common
sense view of the matter.

Mr. PALMER agreed with his hon. friend from Chéateauguay
(Hon. Mr. Holton) on the point of order but he would ask his hon.
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friend from Quebec Centre (Hon. Mr. Cauchon) whether it would
not be well to alter his motion. He could not see any reason why the
policeman should be brought here on Friday. He was in attendance,
and when he was required to prove a distinct and independent fact,
he thought he should be called.

The SPEAKER thought the motion was quite in order. It was
almost an everyday practice to entirely defer the orders of the day in
order to proceed with some other matter.

Mr. PALMER moved an amendment that the first order of the
day be postponed till tomorrow, and then be the first order of the
day.

Hon. Mr. DORION said he thought the object of the motion of
his hon. friend from Quebec Centre would be obtained by
postponing the three orders until tomorrow instead of Friday.

Hon. Mr. CAUCHON: I have no object to that.

Hon. Mr. DORION said Mr. Clarke would be here tomorrow at
half-past seven, and Friday might be an inconvenient day if the
financial statement was to be then made.

Mr. BOWELL said he objected to the postponement of the
second and third orders at all; in the first place, because the matter
might have been taken up last week, and secondly, because there
was no connection between the examination of Mr. Clarke and that
of Detective Hamilton. He did not object to the postponement of the
examination of Mr. Clarke until tomorrow or next day.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON moved an amendment to the amendment
that the first, second and third order of the day be postponed until
tomorrow, then to stand as the first, second and third orders of the
day.

The amendment to the amendment was carried on a division.

#* k%

THE BUDGET SPEECH

Hon. Mr. CARTWRIGHT said he desired to mention to the
House that when he intimated in reply to his hon. friend the
member for Chéateauguay (Hon. Mr. Holton) that he would make his
budget speech on Friday, he made it expressly dependent on his
being able to put the estimates into hands of hon. members of the
House today; and that, as he then told the House, was always a
matter of doubt, as there was a difficulty in getting these masses of
figures through the printer’s hands. As he had not been able to get a
revised copy of the estimates yet, he must perforce postpone the
budget announcement from Friday.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON thought it would be desirable that it should
be understood that the orders would be taken on each day after
these which had precedence had been disposed of—that is, that on
Government days, if the Government orders were got through with
at a reasonable hour, private orders should be taken up, and that on
private members’ days Government orders should be taken up after
the private orders had been disposed of. In that way the
Government would be able to get their measures advanced at least a
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formal stage nearly every day in the early part of the session.

Unless this course were adopted, he doubted whether his hon.
friend, the Minister of Finance, would be able to get on with his
statement as soon as he anticipated, as judging by the Speech from
the Throne it was to be apprehended that the statement would have
to be made in Committee of Ways and Means, and not in
Committee of Supply.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE quite agreed with the hon. member for
Chateauguay (Hon. Mr. Holton) and remarked that the hon.
gentleman had recommended a similar course from the other side of
the House last year. If it were agreeable to the House, the system
would be adopted in the future. That was to have all the orders
printed every day till they reached the end of the paper, whether
Government orders or private orders had precedence.

After a few words from Hon. Mr. Holton,

The House adjourned at half-past five o’clock.

#* kK

NOTICES OF MOTION

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE—That he will on Friday move for
leave to bring in a Bill to amend the Act respecting the Intercolonial
Railway.

Mr. BIGGAR—That he will enquire of the Government on
Friday next whether it is the intention of the Government to place a
sum in the Estimates for the purpose of improving Presqu’lle
Harbour, on Lake Ontario.

Mr. CAMERON (Ontario South)—On Friday next—Address
for returns showing the amounts expended by the several Local
Governments on all harbours, piers, and breakwaters in the
Dominion prior to 1867, and since July 1867 by the Dominion
Government; and also the amount expended on all such works by
any local companies, municipal authorities, Railway Companies,
Harbour Commissioners, or any other Companies or persons, before
or since July 1st, 1867.

Mr. McCALLUM—That an humble address be presented to His
Excellency the Governor General, praying to cause to be laid before
this House copies of all correspondence, if any, between
Government and G. Neilson & Co., contractors for enlarging and
deepening the harbour of Port Colborne, on Lake Erie, in reference
to said contract; also a statement giving the number of yards of rock
removed and the quantity of other work done by the said
contractors on the said harbour, and the amount of money paid the
said contractors for such work, and the length of time occupied in
doing the said work by the said contractors; and, further, a
statement giving the number of yards of rock yet to be removed,
and the amount of other work necessary to be done to complete the
said harbour suitable for entrance to the Welland Canal and Lake
Erie when enlarged and the amount of money required to complete
the said harbour.

Mr. De COSMOS—On Friday next—That a respectful address
be presented to His Excellency the Governor General praying that a
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copy of the memorial of the Chamber of Commerce of Victoria,
B.C., respecting the cancelling of the mail contract with the owners
of the steamship Prince Alfred, and contracting with Malcolm
Hudson & Co. for their steamships to call twice a month at
Esquimalt when making the voyage to San Francisco, China, and
Japan, and vice versa, be laid before the House.

Hon. Mr. BURPEE (St. John - City & County)—On Friday—
Motion, that this House do on Tuesday next go into Committee of
the Whole to consider the following resolution:—that it is expedient
to continue the 2nd and 3rd sections of the Act 36 Vic., Cap. 40,
respecting the admission of Prince Edward Island, until Ist January,
1875, and thence to the end of the next session of Parliament.

Mr. PALMER—That an humble address be presented to His
Excellency to cause to be laid before the House copies of all
correspondence which had taken place since Ist July, 1867, between
the Government of the Dominion and the Judges of the Supreme
Court of Nova Scotia and New Brunswick, touching the inequality
of the salaries of the Judges of the same standing in different
Provinces, and of any representation on the same subject made by
the Bar Society of Nova Scotia and New Brunswick.

Mr. GORDON—Address to His Excellency the Governor in
Council for a return of Order in Council selling or leasing Whitby
Harbour to the present Company; also for a statement of all sums
paid to Government by the said Harbour Company from the date of
the said Order in Council to the present time on account of purchase
of lease of the said Harbour; also for a statement of the annual
revenue and expenditure from and upon the said Harbour
throughout the occupancy of the said Company, also for all
correspondence between Government and the said Harbour
Company concerning said lease or purchase, and having reference
to removal or permanency of the same; also for the names of all
persons forming the said Harbour Company, whether it is the
intention of Government to resume possession of the said Harbour.

Mr. MILLS will, on Monday next, ask leave to introduce a Bill
entitled “An Act to provide for the removal of obstructions in
navigable rivers.”

Mr. WHITE (Renfrew North)—On Friday next—Enquiry
whether Government intends to place in the estimates an
appropriation for the purpose of constructing Locks at Paquette’s
Rapids and Allumette Rapids, in the Ottawa River, or for other
improving navigation at those points, so as to admit of the passage
of steamers.

Mr. DEWDNEY—On Tuesday next—That it is desirable that
Government cause such further surveys for the Canadian Pacific
Railway to be made between Kamloops and Fort Hope, on the
Fraser River, as will determine the best available line for a railway
between those points, and at the same time establish beyond
question whether that route is not the most favourable as being the
shortest, and therefore least expensive to construct as well as
operate, through British Columbia to the best seaport on the
Western coast of the Dominion.

Mr. STEPHENSON gives notice that on Friday next he will
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enquire of the Government whether any instructions have been
given to any person or persons to buy out the Canadian channel in
Detroit River below and in the vicinity of the town of Amherstburg;
and if not, whether it is the intention of Government to take any
steps in that direction; also whether a lightship is to be maintained
during the present season of navigation at Government expense on a
dangerous reef in Lake Erie, opposite the township of Colchester, in
the County of Essex.

Mr. YOUNG:—On Friday next—A Bill entitled An Act to
amend the Act incorporating the Confederation Life Association.

Mr. CASEY:—Address for papers in possession of the
Government of later date than the return made last session in
reference to Port Stanley Harbour.

Mr. McINTYRE gives notice that he will on Monday ask the
Government if it is their intention to abolish postage on
newspapers.

Mr. THOMPSON (Haldimand):—Enquiry of Government
whether the Hon. Wm. McDougall is still in the employ of the
Government in any capacity, if so, at what salary, if not in
Government employ, when he ceased to be employed.

Mr. McDOUGALL (Renfrew South):—On Friday next—
Enquiry of the Government as to the state of the affairs of the Bank
of Upper Canada, when its business is likely to be wound up, and
whether any determination has been come to with regard to
enforcing against the stockholders Government claims which will
be unpaid when the assets have been realized.

Mr. STEPHENSON gives notice that on Monday next, he will
move an humble address to His Excellency for copies of all letters,
petitions, resolutions, communications, reports, and other
documents, and papers relating in any way to the sale or disposal of
that portion of land situate in the town of Chatham, and known as
the Barrack Ground, received since 1867.

Mr. McDOUGALL (Renfrew South).—On Friday next—For a
Select Committee to enquire into the state of the Quebec Office for
Culling and Measuring Wood, and to recommend, with a view to
efficiency and economy, such changes in the regulations and staff
in and out of the office as may be required by the existing
circumstances and dimensions of the Quebec timber trade;—the
Committee to consist of . and to have the power of sending for
persons, papers, and records.

Hon. Mr. DORION gives notice that he will on Friday next
move for leave to introduce a Bill to amend the Act respecting the
prompt and summary administration of Criminal Justice in Ontario
cases as respects the Province of New Brunswick.

Mr. BOURASSA:—On Thursday next—Enquiry of Ministers
whether any correspondence has taken place between the
Government of Canada and the Quebec Government in relation to
the transfer of certain properties at Chambly, Saint-Jean, Quebec, or
elsewhere for the establishment of a Lunatic Asylum for the
Province of Quebec.

Mr. SCHULTZ:—On Friday next—Whether it is the intention




COMMONS DEBATES

54

of Government to make grants of land to half-breed heads of
families, and the old settlers in Manitoba; whether Government has
decided to grant to the present holders the hay lands in Manitoba.

Mr. COSTIGAN:—On Friday next, will move that an address
be voted to Her Majesty representing that it is essential to the peace
and prosperity of the Dominion of Canada that the several religions
therein prevailing should be followed in perfect harmony by those
professing them, in accord with each other, and that every law
passed either by this Parliament or by the Local Legislatures
disregarding the rights and usages tolerated by one of such religions
is of a nature to destroy that harmony; that the Local Legislature of
New Brunswick in 1871 adopted a law respecting Common
Schools, forbidding the imparting of any religious education to
pupils and, that that prohibition is opposed to the sentiments of the
entire population of the Dominion in general and to the religious
conviction of the Roman Catholic population in particular, that the
Roman Catholics of New Brunswick cannot conscientiously send
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their children to schools established under such law, and are
nevertheless compelled, like the remainder of the population, to pay
taxes to be devoted to the maintenance of those schools; that the
said law is unjust and contrary to the spirit of the Constitution, and
causes much uneasiness among the Roman Catholic population
disseminated throughout the whole Dominion of Canada; and that
such a state of affairs, if continued, is likely to prove a cause of
disastrous results to all the Confederated Provinces, and praying
that Her Majesty will be pleased to cause an Act to be passed
amending the British North America Act of 1867, in the sense
which this House believes to have been intended at the time of the
passage of the said Act, by providing that every religious
denomination in the Province of New Brunswick shall continue to
possess and enjoy all such rights, advantages, and privileges with
regard to their schools as such denomination possessed and enjoyed
in that Province at the time of the passage of the said Act to the
same extent as if such rights, advantages and privileges had been
then duly established by law.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS

Thursday, April 9, 1874

The SPEAKER took the chair at 3 p.m.

Prayers

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE

The SPEAKER informed the House that the Speaker of the
Senate had stated to him that it was the wish of that body that a
resolution passed in the House in 1867 should be carried fully into
effect, and that messages from this House should be taken to the
Senate by one of the clerks, as business had frequently been
interrupted by the introduction of messages by members of the
House. He had agreed with the Speaker of the Senate, subject to the
wish of this House, that messages should be sent to that body by
one of the clerks as Bills were now sent.

#* ok ok

BANKS

The SPEAKER laid before the House lists of shareholders in the
Ontario Bank to the 31st March, 1874, and in La Banque de Saint-
Jean to the 4th April, 1874.

L
NEW BRUNSWICK ELECTION COURT

The SPEAKER laid before the House the general rules of the
Election Court for the Province of New Brunswick.

#* ok ok

PROHIBITORY LIQUOR LAW

Mr. CHISHOLM presented a petition praying for a Prohibitory
Liquor Law.

A large number of other petitions praying for a Prohibitory
Liquor Law were also presented.

Mr. PICKARD moved that the petitions in favour of a
Prohibitory Liquor Law be complied with. (Laughter.)

#* ok ok

PETITIONS

Mr. MOSS presented the petition of H.S. Howland and others,
praying for an Act to incorporate the Ontario and Pacific Junction
Railway Company; also a petition in favour of the protection of
native industries.

STANDING ORDERS
Mr. RYMAL presented the first report of the Committee on
Standing Orders reporting several bills.

#* ok %

BILLS INTRODUCED

Hon. Mr. HOLTON:—To amend the Act Incorporating the
Caughnawaga Ship Canal Company; also, to amend the Act
incorporating the Canadian and Great Northern Telegraph
Company.

Mr. YOUNG:—To amend the
Confederation Life Association.

Mr. IRVING:—A Bill entitled the “Grand Trunk Railway
Amendment Act of 1874

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said before the hon. gentleman could take
any progress with the Bill he must get the consent of the Crown, as
it might involve the rights which the Government had in the
Company.

Mr. IRVING said he would act upon the suggestion of his hon.
friend.

Mr. CHARLTON:—To prevent cruelty to animals while in
transit by railway or other means of transport.

Mr. ROSS (Durham East)—To incorporate the London and
Canada Bank.

Hon. Mr. BLAKE:—To regulate the construction and
maintenance of marine electric telegraphs.

Mr. THOMSON (Welland):—To incorporate the Niagara
Grand Island Bridge Company.

Mr. COCKBURN introduced a bill to incorporate the Collins
Bay Rafting and Forwarding Company.

Act incorporating the

#* ok %k

THE ESTIMATES

Hon. Mr. CARTWRIGHT brought down a message from His
Excellency, signed by his own hand.

The SPEAKER read the Message as follows:

Duftferin, the Governor General, transmits the estimates of sums
required for the services of the Dominion for the year ending June
30, 1875; and in accordance with the provisions of the British North
America Act of 1867 he recommends these estimates to the House
of Commons.

Government House, Ottawa,
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April 9th, 1874.
ESTIMATES FOR 1874-1875

Estimated expenditure for the financial year ending 30th June
1874, together with the sums granted for the financial year ending
30th June 1875.

* % %
SERVICES

Public debt, including Ontario and Quebec

Trust Funds $12,376,037
Charges of management 207,072
Civil Government 946,881
Administration of Justice 494,161
Police 62,895
Penitentiaries 341,155
Legislation 572,953
Arts, agriculture, and statistics 94,680
Immigration and quarantine 357,640
Pensions 123,184
Militia, including Mounted Police in the

Northwest 1,313,500
Public Works, chargeable to capital 11,606,625
Public Works, chargeable to income 2,723,300
Ocean and river service 400,397
Lighthouse and coast service 524,980
Fisheries 62,185
Geological Survey and observatories 92,550
Marine Hospitals and sick and distressed

seamen 75,000
Steamboat Inspection 14,200
Subsidies, including P.E.I. 3,757.464
Indians 149,100
Boundary surveys 119,198
Miscellaneous 79,300
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COLLECTION OF REVENUE

Customs 685,939
Excise 227,950
Culling timber 78.800
Weights and measures 50,000
Inspection of staples 3.000
Public Works 2,867,845
Post office 1,505,500
Dominion lands 100,000
Minor revenues 10,000

#* ok ok

HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY

Mr. SCHULTZ enquired why an answer had not been made to the
Address of the 26th March, 1873, for copies of the following
documents, namely, the draft surrender from the Hudson’s Bay Co.
to Her Majesty, approved by the Governor General of Canada on
the 5th July, 1869; the report of the Upper Committee of the Privy
Council on the said draft of the said Order in Council; the Order in
Council approving the said draft; all correspondence between the
Hudson’s Bay Company and the Government of Canada in
reference to any claim or application by the said Company of 500
acres of land around Fort Garry; all Orders in Council relative to
the said lands; all patents granting the whole or any portion of the
said lands to the Hudson’s Bay Company. And if any reason existed
for those papers not having been laid before the House, what
reason?

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE: Directions have been given to have
the Address complied with. I am not able to give the reasons why it
was not complied with last session.

#* ok %k

PACIFIC RAILWAY

Mr. De COSMOS asked if the Government intended to
commence the construction of the Canadian Pacific Railway at
Esquimalt this year; and, if so, when?

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE: The Government cannot possibly
state when the construction of the Railway will be commenced as
the surveys have not been completed nor have they been able to
determine the precise point at which the commencement will be
made.
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Mr. De COSMOS asked if the Government intended to locate
the line of railway in accordance with the Order in Council
establishing Esquimalt as the western terminus of the Canadian
Pacific Railway. If so, would the twenty-mile belt of land referred
to in the Order in Council be surveyed and offered for sale or pre-
emption this year, and at what price?

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said that the first part of the question
was answered by his answer to the last question. As to the second
part, he had simply to say that it would be quite impossible to
survey the twenty miles or locate them during the present year.

Mr. De COSMOS enquired whether the Government intended to
build a telegraph line along the line of railway on the east coast of
Vancouver Island, and particularly between Victoria and Nanaimo,
in advance of the construction of the railway.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said the Government did intend to
construct a telegraphic line in advance of the actual construction of
the road when once they were able to determine its location.

#* ok ok

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY TERMINUS

Mr. ROULEAU inquired whether it is the intention of
Government to locate the terminus of the Intercolonial Railway in
the town of Lévis, in the County of Lévis, District of Quebec.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said the terminus proper of the
Intercolonial Railway, as the hon. gentleman knew, was at the
Riviere du Loup. The question, he presumed, was intended to be
whether it was intended to strike a switch into Lévis. He might say
that the question had not yet been under the consideration by the
Government.
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EXPORT DUTY ON TIMBER

Mr. CHARLTON moved for a Select Committee to enquire into
the working of the Act 31 Vic., Cap. 44, so far as it relates to
imposing an export duty on saw logs, shingle bolts, and stave bolts;
and that the Committee be composed of the following members:—
Messrs. Currier, McDougall (Renfrew South), McCallum, Scriver,
Colby, Stuart and Charlton.

The motion was carried.

#* kK

PROTECTION TO AGRICULTURALISTS

Mr. ORTON moved that, in view of the necessity of an increase
of our tarift, a Select Committee be appointed to enquire as to what
will best conduce to the prosperity of the agricultural interests.
Mr. Orton spoke at length on the agricultural interests of the
country and said that in the House, while other interests were
attended to, nothing was done for our farmers. He referred to the
question which had been put by a committee at a previous session,
but that committee had never reported. It was, he argued, necessary
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to increase taxes in order to make up the deficiency in our revenue
and the amount required to carry on our proposed public works, and
in all cases it had been the farmer who had to pay the piper. They
were the larger proportion of our people, and should be better
considered than heretofore.

He referred to the amount of agricultural products which we
exported, and which last year amounted to $10,914,944, from
which the United States derived a revenue of $2,181,103, whilst
from their exports to Canada the Canadian Government derived no
revenue at all. The amount of agricultural products imported last
year into Ontario was $9,879,945 from which, at a duty of 10 per
cent, might have been derived $987,993. Into Quebec had been
imported $1,833,830 worth from which might have been got
$181,384. In the other Provinces the imports had been about
$2.,500,000, which would have given us a revenue of $230,000. The
total amount of agricultural products imported in the year was
$13,993,805, from which could have been derived a duty of
$1,399,377.

Not only would there thus be derived a considerable amount of
revenue, but our farmers would be protected, while at present they
were placed in an unfavourable position, and they would be
relieved from the effect of what was an unequal competition. He
then moved that the Committee consist of the following gentlemen:
Messrs. Willson, Ross (Prince Edward), Stirton, Cameron
(Cardwell), McCallum, Burpee, McQuade, Bowman, Stephenson,
Gillies and the mover.

Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE said he didn’t intend to discuss the
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